Florida's Dynamic
Waterfront Community

RIVIERABEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AGENDA
MARINAVILLAGE EVENT CENTER-190 E. 13TH STREET
RIVIERABEACH, FL 33404
REGULAR MEETING
August 26, 2021
6:00 PM

NOTICE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990,
PERSONS IN NEED OF A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN
THE PROCEEDINGS SHALL CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CRA CLERK AT
561-844-3408 NO LATER THAN 96 HOURS PRIOR TO THE PROCEEDINGS; IF
HEARING IMPAIRED, TELEPHONE THE FLORIDA RELAY SERVICES 1-600-
955-8771 (TDD) OR 1-800-955-8770 (VOICE) FOR ASSISTANCE

CHAIRPERSON
SHIRLEY D. LANIER -DISTRICT 3
CHAIR PRO-TEM
KASHAMBA MILLER-ANDERSON - DISTRICT 2
CRACOMMISSIONERS
TRADRICK MCCOY - DISTRICT 1
JULIAA.BOTEL-DISTRICT 4
DOUGLAS A. LAWSON-DISTRICT 5
ADMINISTRATION
JONATHAN EVANS, CRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

SHERLEY DESIR, CRA CLERK



PITTMAN LAW GROUP

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to
appeal any decision made by the CRA Commission with respect to any matter
considered at this meeting, such interested person, at own expense, will need a record of
the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the
appeal is to based, pursuant to F.S. 286.0105.

BE FURTHER ADVISED, the meeting location is subject to change. The public is
encouraged to visit the CRA's website for up to date information on meeting location and
information.

ANY PERSON WHO WOULD LIKE TO SPEAK ON AN AGENDA ITEM PLEASE
COMPLETE A BLUE PUBLIC COMMENT CARD LOCATED AT THE FRONT
DESKAND GIVE IT TO THE STAFF PRIOR TO THE ITEM BEING TAKEN UP BY
CRA COMMISSION FOR DISCUSSION. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE
GIVEN A TOTAL OF THREE (3) MINUTES TO SPEAK ON ALL ITEMS LISTED
ON THE CONSENT AGENDA AND THREE (3) MINUTES TO SPEAK ON EACH
REGULAR AGENDA ITEM. THE TIME LIMIT FOR PUBLIC COMMENT MAY BE
REDUCED BYA VOTE OF THE CRABOARD OF COMMISSIONERS BASED ON
THE VOLUMINOUS NATURE OF PUBLIC COMMENT CARDS. IN NO EVENT
WILL ANYONE BE ALLOWED TO SUBMIT A COMMENT CARD TO SPEAK ON
AN AGENDA ITEM AFTER THE RESOLUTION IS READ OR ITEM
CONSIDERED.

CALL TO ORDER

Roll Call

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

AGENDAAPPROVAL

Additions, Deletions, and Substitutions

Disclosures by Commission and Staff

Adoption of Agenda

Comments from the Public on Consent Agenda (Three Minute Limitation)
CONSENT AGENDA

ALL MATTERS LISTED UNDER THIS ITEM ARE CONSIDERED TO BE
ROUTINE AND ACTION WILL BE TAKEN BY ONE MOTION. THERE WILL BE
NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS UNLESS A COUNCILPERSON
SO REQUESTS, IN WHICH EVENT, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE
GENERAL ORDER OF BUSINESS AND CONSIDERED IN ITS NORMAL
SEQUENCE ON THE AGENDA.



1. REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF MONTHLY
VENDOR INVOICES

MINUTES

2. REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF MEETING
MINUTES FROM JUNE 9, 2021 REGULAR BOARD
MEETING MINUTES

3. REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF MEETING
MINUTES FROM JULY 29, 2021 REGULAR BOARD
MEETING MINUTES

RESOLUTIONS

END OF CONSENT AGENDA
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
PRESENTATIONS

4. RIVIERABEACH CRAAUDIT FINANCIAL STATEMENT-
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
5. MARINA VILLAGE: FOOD TRUCK OPPORTUNITY AT
SPANISH COURTS
DISCUSSION

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC -7:30 PM Non-Agenda Item Speaker (Three
Minute Limitation)

Please be reminded the CRA Board of Commissioners has adopted "Rules of Decorum
Governing Public Conduct during Official Meetings" which has been posted at the front
desk. In an effort to preserve order, if any of the rules are not adhered to, the
Commissioner Chair may have any disruptive speaker or attendee removed from the
podium, from the meeting and/or the building, if necessary. Please govern yourselves
accordingly.

Public Comments shall begin at 7:30 PM unless there is no further business of the CRA
Board of Commissioners, which in that event, it shall begin sooner. In addition, if an item
is being considered at 7:30 PM, then comments from the public shall begin immediately
after the item has been concluded.

Any person who would like to speak, during public comments, please fill out a public
comment card located at the front desk and give it to the staff before the public
comments section is announced.

REGULAR
6. MARINA VILLAGE CARPET REFRESH PROJECT
7. BERKELEY LANDING PROJECT UPDATE

DISCUSSION BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR



DISCUSSION BY GENERAL COUNSEL
STATEMENTS BY THE RBCRA COMMISSION
ADJOURNMENT




CITY OF RIVIERABEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: 8/26/2021
Agenda Category:

Subject: REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF MONTHLY VENDOR INVOICES

Recommendation/Motion: APPROVAL

Originating Dept FINANCE Costs

User Dept. Funding Source
Advertised No Budget Account Number
Date

Paper

Affected Parties Not Required

Background/Summary:

REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF MONTHLY VENDOR INVOICES

Fiscal Years

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact

NO. Additional FTE Positions
(cumulative)

Ill. Review Comments

A. Finance Department Comments:

B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments:

C. Department Director Review:



Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date

Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount

Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email

Type of Contract

Describe

ATTACHMENTS:

File Name

MONTHLY_VENDOR_INVOICES_FOR_AUGUST_26_2021_MEETING.pdf

BRIGHTVIEW _#7426864_$6316.67.pdf

BRIGHTVIEW_#7468819 $6316.67.pdf

J_MICHAEL_HAYGOOD_#NC-161_$8_294.50.pdf

CONSTANT_COMPUTING_#102786_$3675.00.pdf

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer
CRA Evans, Scott
CRA Internal Review Evans, Scott

Action
Approved
Approved

i Upload
Description Date Type
MONTHLY
VENDOR
INVOICES Cover
FOR AUGUST 8/19/2021 Memo
26, 2021
MEETING
BRIGHTVIEW
#7426864 8/19/2021 mfekﬁgl
$6316.67
BRIGHTVIEW
#7468819 8/19/2021 ,'?Ai‘t’gﬁgl
$6316.67
J MICHAEL
HAYGOOD Backup
#NC161 81972021 \ 1 terial
$8294.50
CONSTANT
COMPUTING Backup
#102786 81972021 \ - terial
$3675.00

Date

8/19/2021 - 7:15 PM
8/19/2021 - 7:16 PM



Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
RATIFICATION OF CONSULTANT/VENDOR INVOICES
TO BE CONSIDERED AT THE AUGUST 26, 2021 BOARD MEETING

INVOICE

ITEM VEN DOR NAM E Approved Contract Maximum EXPIRES RES # DATE; INVOICE # ACTION
AMOUNT
1|BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC (V12459) 5/30/2022 RES 2021-09  4/14/2021 7426864 $6,316.67
LANDSCAPE- SERVICES- JULY EXTERIOR MAINTENANCE FOR EVENT CENTER
2|BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC (V12459) 5/30/2022 RES 2021-09  4/14/2021 7468819 $6,316.67
LANDSCAPE- SERVICES- AUGUST EXTERIOR MAINTENANCE FOR EVENT CENTER
3|J MICHAEL HAYGOOD (V12285) N/A N/A NC-161 $8,294.50
LEGAL SERVICES
4|CONSTANT COMPUTING (V12152) MONTHLY RES 2020-21 9/23/2020 102786 $3,675.00
IT SERVICES- JULY- MONITOR MANAGEMENT, SUPPORT HARDWARE MAINT.
TOTAL $24,602.84




PAYMENT REQUISITION FORM

RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

kel ——

TODAYS DATE: 7/12/2021 BCP
VENDOR NAME: Brightview Landscape Services C&S
VENDOR #: 12459 CDE
INVOICE #: 7426864 CRA
INVOICE DATE: 7/1/2021 MEC
PO #: X mMv
COMPLETED BY: Neimah Spence RBEC,LLC

FUND ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION JOB AMOUNT
81150103-534000 Riviera Beach Mairna Vilage Exterior Maimtenance July $ 6,316.67
| INVOICE TOTAL| s$6,316.67

COMMENTS: APPROVED BY:

v

SECTION A - ceanncm:cir

MARKET TREND, PREVIOUS

SECTION B - OTHER

E, CATALOG PRICE, ADVERTISING PUBLICATIONS, ETC.
| HAVE DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND REASONABLE. MY REASONS INCLUDE:

CRA POLICY ON PURCHASES LESS THAN $2,500 REQUIRES THAT THE PURCHASE PRICE IS "FAIF AND REASONA Iz" IF COMPETITIVE QUOTES ARE REQUIRED,
PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION C AND SUBMIT QUOTES WITH INVOICE. IF UNDER $2500 PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION A OR B BELOW.

PLEASE ANNOTATE BELOW HOW YOU DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND RESONABLE; EXAMPLES INCLUDE: PROFESSIONAL MARKET EXPERIENCE,

SECTION C - QUOTES

VENDOR

PRICE QUOTED COMMENT / RANKING

RECEIVED BY FINANCE: |

SANTI!

ENTERED IN TYLER: |

Hall

DATE MAILED: |

A= 7: BUoY .

REVISED-11/07/2019



INVOICE

BrightViewlr  \ _ 15455

Landscape Services p— e T )
T DO [03 -8 Yood

Riviera Beach CRA Customer#: 19941880
2001 Broadway Ste 300 Invoice #: 7426864
Riviera Beach FL 33404 Invoice Date: 7/1/2021
Cust PO #:
Job Number | Description Amount
353000208 Riviera Beach Marina Village 6,316.67
Exterior Maintenance
For July
RECEIVED
RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Total invoice amount 6,316.67
Tax amount
Balance due 6,316.67
Terms: Net 15 Days If you have any questions regarding this invoice, please call 561-784-3450
Please detach stub and remit with your payment
Payment Stub
Customer Account#: 19941880 Amount Due: $6,316.67
Invoice #: 7426864
Invoice Date: 7/1/2021 Thank you for allowing us to serve you
Please reference the invoice # on your check
and make payable to:
BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.
Riviera Beach CRA P.O. Box 740655
2001 Broadway Ste 300 Atlanta, GA 30374-0655

Riviera Beach FL 33404



Riviera Beach CRA

Payment Authorization Checklist

Vendor Name: BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.

Control No.: RES 2019-07 Invoice No.:jL{ (Zz(-é’?> G L/

Invoice Date: __/ / / / Za e

Payment Amount: $ (03 ) . (-07

Project Supervisor/Responsible Official: N@ M g l/\ 5 %?W

Reviewed/Approved
by |

E{Project “scope of work and deliverables” reviewed?

[l Payment support documentation appropriate based on
work scope?

H-Deliverables due with this invoice have been received?

[1Iffinal payment, have all deliverables been received?

L Amount of payment is in agreement with payment
schedule or is appropriate and is within the limits of

the total agreement amount, on a cumulative amount
basis?

Expense reimbursement amounts meet Agency
guidelines or amounts approved by the agreement.

[0-Phe nature of work being performed is within the scope
of the CRA plan.

[1 Funds for payment have been budgeted and are
available from the appropriate source(s) for payment.

The invoice and supporting documentation have been reviewed and it

is approved fo ent.
T
o

Date: 7//&/:“
Appr&‘j}%(xmit_yd f

" Vlia/omy

00 Payment approved by the Board of Commissioners by:

Motion No. 2019-07 or the Consent Agenda, at its meeting on (If applicable)

MAY 8, 2019




RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
PAYMENT REQUISITION FORM

TODAYS DATE: 8/6/2021 BCP
VENDOR NAME: Brightview Landscape Services C&S
VENDOR #: 12459 CDE
INVOICE #: 7468819 CRA
INVOICE DATE: 8/1/2021 MEC
PO #: X MV
COMPLETED BY: Neimah Spence RBEC,LLC
FUND ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION JoB AMOUNT
81150103-534000 Exterior Mantenance August $ 6,316.67
| INVOICE TOTAL| s$6,316.67

COMMENTS: APPROVED BY:
CRA POLICY ON PURCHASES LESS THAN $2,500 REQUIRES THAT THE PURCHAEE PRICE IS "FAIR AND REASONABLE." IF COMPETITIVE QUOTES AR!HEQUIRED,

PLEASE COMPLETE SECI'I\ON C AND SUBMIT QUOTES WITH INVOICE. IF UNDER $2500 PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION A OR B BELOW.

SECTION A - CERTIFICATIO
PLEASE ANNOTATE BELOW YOU DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND RESONABLE; EXAMPLES INCLUDE: PROFESSIONAL MARKET EXPERIENCE,

MARKET TREND, PREVIOUS PURCHASE, CATALOG PRICE, ADVERTISING PUBLICATIONS, ETC.
I HAVE DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND REASONABLE. MY REASONS INCLUDE:

SECTION B - OTHER

SECTION C- QUOTES
VENDOR PRICE QUOTED COMMENT / RANKING

RECEIVED BY FINANCE:
ENTERED IN TYLER: \, ;

DATE MAILED:

REVISED-11/07/2019



Riviera Beach CRA
Payment Authorization Checklist

Vendor Name: (ér‘\\'\l View \,OIH dSC "’{'t S'ef AN
Control No.: Invoice No.: 7 b’ (D E-%-l q

Invoice Date: ?/ [ ! 10 ZJ/ Payn)ent Amount: C-Pl g! b - (D 7

Project Supervisor/Responsible Official:

Reviewed/Approved by

U Project “scope of work and deliverables”

reviewed? ,\/ ('/(

M Payment support documentation appropriate (7/)
based on work scope? i

0 Deliverables due with this invoice have been W
received? n

U If final payment, have all deliverables been W
received? A%

U0 Amount of payment is in agreement with
payment schedule or is appropriate and is within
the limits of the total agreement amount, on a }\/QQ
cumulative amount basis?

0 Expense reimbursement amounts meet Agency

guidelines or amounts approved by the }kSn
agreement.

O The nature of work being performed is within the V\
scope of the CRA plan. P‘-’

U Funds for payment have been budgeted and are

available from the appropriate source(s) for v_&
payment.

The invoice and supporting documentation have been reviewed and it is approved for
payment.

W 3_____\ Date; g/é {/200/
S Q/\S}ﬁ KN
[ Payment approved by the Board of Commissioners by Motion No.

Q01% ~(3™  or the Consent Agenda, at its meeting on % 20)
(If applicable)




INVOICE

BrightView [/ CCEIVED

Landscape Services

Riviera Beach CRA RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY  customer #: 19941880
Riviera Beach FL 33404 Invoice Date: 8/1/2021
Cust PO #:
Job Number | Description Amount
353000208 Riviera Beach Marina Village 6,316.67
Exterior Maintenance
For August
V- 3G se,
» O {
SHSODR- DB
Total invoice amount 6,316.67
Tax amount
Balance due 6,316.67
Terms: Net 15 Days If you have any questions regarding this invoice, please call 561-784-3450
Please detach stub and remit with your payment
Payment Stub
Customer Account#: 19941880 Amount Due: $6,316.67
Invoice #: 7468819
Invoice Date: 8/1/2021 Thank you for allowing us fo serve you
Please reference the invoice # on your check
and make payable to:
BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.
Riviera Beach CRA P.O. Box 740655
2001 Broadway Ste 300 Atlanta, GA 30374-0655

Riviera Beach FL 33404



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
PAYMENT REQUISITION FORM

TODAYS DATE: 7/19/2021 BCP
VENDOR NAME: J MICHAEL HAYGOQOD C&S
VENDOR #: 12285 CDE
INVOICE #: NC-161 X CRA
INVOICE DATE: 7/19/2021 MEC
PO #: MV
COMPLETED BY: SDESIR RBEC,LLC

FUND ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION JoB AMOUNT
81150101-531000 ADMINISTRATIVE LEGAL FEES: CONFERENCES, DOCUMENT REVIEW; $ 8,294.50
DOCUMENT PREPARATION; RESEARCH; CLIENT CORRESPONDENCE
| INVOICE TOTAL| $s,204.50

COMMENTS: APPROVED B¥-

/VM 7110 ‘)-’

SECTION A - CERTIFICATION

MARKET TREND, PREVIOUS PURCHASE, CATALOG PRICE, ADVERTISING PUBLICATIONS, ETC.
| HAVE DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND REASONABLE. MY REASONS INCLUDE:

CRA POLICY ON PURCHASES LESS THANAREQUIRES THAT THE PURCHASE PRICE IS "FAIR AND REASONABLE." IF COMPETITIVE QUOTES ARE REQUIRED,

PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION C AND SUBMIT QUOTES WITH INVOICE. IF UNDER $2500 PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION A OR B BELOW.

PLEASE ANNOTATE BELOW HOW YOU DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND RESONABLE; EXAMPLES INCLUDE; PROFESSIONAL MARKET EXPERIENCE,

SECTION B - OTHER

SECTION C - QUOTES

DATE MAILED: |

VENDOR PRICE QUOTED COMMENT / RANKING
1
2
3 ! !

L. 7]

RECEIVED BY FINANCE: | Wik EiT eV | ) (
7 L y g
ENTERED IN TYLER: | _‘!?MJT L L | \:E //("D 6 2___/
¢

REVISED-11/07/2019



Riviera Beach CRA
Payment Authorization Checklist

Vendor Name: J MICHAEL HAYGOOD
Control No.: MAY 2021 Invoice No.: NC-161
Invoice Date: 07/16/2021 Payment Amount: $8,294.50

Project Supervisor/Responsible Official: Sherley Desir

Reviewed/Approved by

X Project “scope of work and deliverables” reviewed?

JE

available from the appropriate source(s) for payment.

X Payment support documentation appropriate based on |JE
work scope?

X Deliverables due with this invoice have been received? |JE
If final payment, have all deliverables been received?

X Amount of payment is in agreement with payment JE
schedule or is appropriate and is within the limits of
the total agreement amount, on a cumulative amount
basis?

X Expense reimbursement amounts meet Agency JE
guidelines or amounts approved by the agreement.

X The nature of work being performed is within the scope | JE
of the CRA plan.

X Funds for payment have been budgeted and are JE

The invoice and supporting documentation have been reviewed and it
is approved for payment.

U Payment approved by the Board of Commissioners by:

Motion No.

or the Consent Agenda, at its meeting on (If applicable)

C:\Users\sdesir\Desktop\PAYMENT- FLORIDA FISHING .docx




J. Michael Haygood, PA

701 Northpoint Parkway S t m/lt
Suite 209

West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 .

561-684-8311 Inwoice'No: NC-161

Date: 7/16/21

Billto: Riviera Beach Conmwmunity Redevelopment Agency
Scoll Evany
2001 Broadway
Suite 300
Riviera Beach, FL 33404

General Administration
Date Desoriptionn Timekeeper — Time — Rate ~ Amount:
5/3/21 Telephone Conference J. Michael 0.5 hrs $265.00/HR $132.50
Haygood
Telephone conference with Tauwnawew Sequiny and A nwnettow Jenking.
5/3/21 Docuwment Review J. Michael 2.7 hwy $265.00/HR $715.50
Haygood,
Review of Resolutions and contracty for Avt in Public Places.
5/4/21 Review Document J. Michael 1.5 hwy $265.00/HR $397.50
Haygood
Review and: commenty to-agenda item for detow center.
5/4/21 TReview Docuument J. Michael 0.5 hry $265.00/HR $132.50
Haygood
Review flyer for Community Gordew.
5/5/21 TReview Document J. Michael 1.5 hwy $265.00/HR $397.50
Haygood,

Review and corrected memorvanduwm re: selection of P-3 Consultant.
5/5/21 Telephone Conference J. Michael 0.4 hry $265.00/HR $106.00



5/5/21

5/7/21

5/7/21

5/10/21

5/11/21

5/11/21

5/12/21

571221

5/13/21

5/13{21

5/14/21

5/14/21

5/17/21

Haygood,

$450.50

$265.00

$450.50

$132.50

$212.00

$212.00

$848.00

$185.50

$79.50

$662.50

$132.50

$106.00

$212.00

Telephone with Lina Bualby.
Document Preparation J. Michael 1.7 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood,
Preparation of resolution approving selection of P-3 Consultant.
Telephone Conference J. Michael, 1.0 hwy $265.00/HR
Haygood
Telephone conference with staff re: Detox facility.
Research J. Michael 1.7 hwy $265.00/HR
Haygood,
Review of research re: Sober Homes.
Client Correspondence J. Michael 0.5 hrs $265.00/HR
Haygood,
Prepawraliov of emaily re: Riviera Resorty.
Client Correspondence J. Michael 0.8 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Review of Statule and emails to- Staff re: procurement.
Document Review J. Michael 0.8 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Review of proposed licensing agreement for the: Ocean Mall for art project and. contract.
Meeting J. Michael 3.2 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Attendance at CRA meeting.
Telephone Conference with Staff J. Michael 0.7 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Conference call re: Agenda itenw review of proposed detow facility.
Correspondence J. Michael 0.3 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Prepavation of email to-Staff re: Rivierow Resorts.
Revise Document J. Michael 2.5 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Review and revised Site Development Agreement and Restrictive Covenanty.
Conference Call J. Michael 0.5 hwry $265.00/HR
Haygood
Telephone conference withv Staff re: Riviera Resorty.
Telephone Conference J. Michael 0.4 hwy $265.00/HR
Haygood
Telephone conference with Stoff.
Review Document J. Michael 0.8 hry $265.00/HR
Haygood

Review proposed memorvandwunw for 11th Street Project.



5/18/21

5/19/21

5/24/21

5/24/21

5/25/21

5/26/21

Revise Document J. Michael 4.2 hwy $265.00/HR $1,113.00
Haygood,

Revised Site Development and Disposition Agreement for 11th Street and prepowed,

Exhibity, including mortgage, restrictive covenant.

Review Document J. Michael 0.7 hws $265.00/HR $185.50
Haygood,
Review of proposed. scope of sexvices for P-3 Consultont for Marina.
Review Document J. Michael 0.7 hry $265.00/HR $185.50
Haygood,
Review RFP for Consultant for Brondway and Blue Herow proberty.
Review Document J. Michael 0.5 hrs $265.00/HR $132.50
Haygood
Review public recorvds request response:
Document Review J. Michael 0.8 hry $265.00/HR $212.00
Hoaygood
Review of proposed, contiract for Paul Skyers.
Meeting J. Michael, 2.4 hry $265.00/HR $636.00
Haygood
Attendance at CRA meeting.
Hourly Fees Total 31.3 $8,294.50

hry

Balance: $8,294.50



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
PAYMENT REQUISITION FORM

TODAYSDATE: || 720 (202 BCP

VENDOR NAME: ((‘)ﬂ%l—ﬂ FH’ (’)HY)UH IT] N C&S
VENDOR #: 1A15 B CDE
INVOICE #: [()9 7 g[/p NL CRA
INVOICE DATE: Lpl 7)) [0 2 N MEC
PO #: o MV
COMPLETEDBY: N F< (b~ RBEC,LLC
FUND ACCOUNT NUMBER DESCRIPTION JOB AMOUNT

&NDION-FDI00 e 5 rg;grla Dlﬂk’ﬁ’\d@ 2110.

42

RN0165-54629 00 ;@{ JLEesEeentl o9

RG] s N E = s AR A

-

#2015

L QO

INVOICE TOTAL $0.00

COMMENTS:

N Q@

CRA POLICY ON PURCHASES LESS THAN $2,500 REQUIRES THAT THE PURCHASE PRICE "FAIR AND REASONABLE." IF COMPETITIVE QUOTES ARE REQUIRED,
PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION C AND SUBMIT QUOTES WITH INVOICE. IF UNDER $2500 PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION A OR B BELOW.

SECTION A - CERTIFICATION

PLEASE ANNOTATE BELOW HOW YOU DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND RESONABLE; EXAMPLES INCLUDE: PROFESSIONAL MARKET EXPERIENCE,
MARKET TREND, PREVIOUS PURCHASE, CATALOG PRICE, ADVERTISING PUBLICATIONS, ETC.

I HAVE DETERMINED THAT THE PRICE IS FAIR AND REASONABLE. MY REASONS INCLUDE:

SECTION B - OTHER

SECTION C - QUOTES

VENDOR PRICE QUOTED COMMENT / RANKING

RECEIVED BY FINANCE: I

ENTERED IN TYLER: |

UL

DATE MAILED: [

REVISED-11/07/2013



Riviera Beach CRA
Payment Authorization Checklist

Vendor Name: C‘Ongb ]q‘( (_\()m’)l, ‘H mC,
Control No.: 9@% & , Invoice No.: 'O?"jg{p
Invoice Date: ——] ( ?ZU :l gp' Payment Amount: 5, [_07 O . q}

Project Supervisor/Responsible Official: o 'K_/
Reviewed/Approved by
El)éroject “scope of work and deliverables” ,
reviewed? =
Payment support documentation appropriate &2_/
based on work scope?

[(WDeliverables due with this invoice have been )
received? -
[

U If final payment, have all deliverables been
received?

\%(_Amount of payment is in agreement with .
payment schedule or is appropriate and is within S)/\fl_/
the limits of the total agreement amount, on a

, cumulative amount basis?

\ﬁ\EXpense reimbursement amounts meet Agency ”
guidelines or amounts approved by the < *-——_/\
agreement. '

T?\The nature of work being performed is within the g
| scope of the CRA plan. =i

Séunds for payment have been budgeted and are

available from the appropriate source(s) for \gﬂ‘
payment. : S

The invoice and supporting documentation have been reviewed and it is approved for

P nt.
Date: —'l ‘ ‘73@ '%2 J

7

yment approved by the Board of Commissioners by ﬁon No.

Qﬂ = or the Consent Agenda, at its meeting on |95| 220
(If apphcable) I




INVOICE

BILL TO

Riviera Beach Community
Redevelopment Agency
2001 Broadway

Suite 300

Riviera Beach, FL 33404

Constant Computing

1007 N Federal Hwy #2

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304
(954)683-9711
invoices@constantcomputing.com
www.constantcomputing.com

INVOICE # 102786
DATE 06/30/2021
DUE DATE 07/31/2021

TERMS Net 15

DESCRIPTION

Business Rate

Monitoring & Patch Management -
Advanced network monitoring & inventory,
patch management of physical and virtual
servers, patch management of
workstations, Antivirus Service - 3 sites, 11
Servers, 22 Workstations (up to 35 A/V
Devices)

Business Rate

User Support — Troubleshoot/resolve user
issues, troubleshoot/resolve application
issues, install softiware, manage printers,
instruct on usage, troubleshoot/resolve
PC/hardware issues, troubleshoot/resolve
PC backup issues, consultation on user
requests, manage user workstations.

Business Rate

Servers & Network — Troubleshoot/resolve
server issues, troubleshoot/resolve server
application issues, troubleshoot/resolve
backup issues, configure services, manage
server & network appliances, maintenance,
evaluate & resolve
errors/performance/health issues,
configure server applications & network
appliances.

Business Rate

Virtual CIO - Planning, evaluation, assist in
vendor management, consultation, network -
documentation, product research, audit
support.

Business Rate

0.756

1.50

7.75

RATE

1,550.00

125.00

125.00

125.00

125.00

AMOUNT
1,550.00

93.75

875.00

187.50

968.75



DATE
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DESCRIPTION QTy RATE AMOUNT

Projects & Setup — Work on projects, setup
applications & hardware, install
workstations, change/add severs/network
appliances, migrations, manage data,
modify backup/disaster recovery solutions.

CBAANGEDUE  $3675.00



monitor ISP
outage/resolution

monitor ISP
outage/resolution

It Riviera MO - Marina Clean & Safe
UserSupport,
ServersNetwork,
VirtualCTO,
ProjectsSetup
June 1 Remote support,  0.25 sn
monitor ISP
outage/resolution
June 2 Remote suppor, 0.25 us Remote support, 0.25 sn
troubleshoot/resol monitor ISP
ve user issues outage/resolution
June 3 Remote support, 0.25 sn
monitor ISP
outage/resolution
June 4 Remote support, 1.25 sn Remote support, 0.25 sn
troubleshoot/resol manitor ISP
ve user issues, outage/resolution
consultation,
troubleshoot/resol
ve exchange
issues
June 5
June 6
June 7 Remote support, 0.5 ve
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
consultation
June 8 Remota 2 sn
support,
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
review network
and servers,
configure network
settings
June 9 Remote support, 0.25 sn
monitor ISP
outage/resolution
June 10 Remote suppont, 0.25 sn
monitor ISP
outage/resolution
June 11
June 12
June 13 Remote support, 0.25 sn
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
consultation,
review recorder
alert
June 14
June 15 Remote support, 0.25 sn Remote support, 0.25 sn
monitor ISP monitor ISP
outage/resolution outage/resolution
June 16 Remote support, 0.25 sn
monitor ISP
outage/resolution
June 17
June 18 Remote support, 0.25 sn Remote support, 0.25 sn



Total

Riviera MO -
UserSupport,
ServersNetwork,
VirtualCTO,
ProjectsSetup

Marina

Clean & Safe

June 19

June 20

June 21 Remote support,
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
consultation, data
services

June 22

June 23

June 24

June 25 Remote support,
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
consultation

June 26' Remoate support,
troubleshoot/resal
ve user issues,
upgrada Windows
10 to latest
version on PC's,
troubleshoot
install issues,
test/verify

June 27

June 28 Remota support,
troubleshcot/resol
ve user issues

June 29

June 30 Remote support,
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
upgrade Windows
10 to latest
version on PC's,
troubleshoot
Install issues,
testiverify

1 ve

0.25 us

0.25 us

12.75

Remote support,
monitor ISP
outage/resolution

Remote support,
monitor ISP
outage/resolution

2.25

0.25 sn

0.25 sn

Remote support, 0.25 sn
monitor ISP

outage/resolution

Remote support,
troubleshoot/resol
ve user issues,
upgrade Windows
10 to latest
version on PC's,
troubleshoot
install issues,
test/verify

0.75 ps
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Funding

User Dept. ADMINISTRATION
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Number

Date

Paper
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Background/Summary:

REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM JUNE 9, 2021 REGULAR
BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Fiscal Years

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact

NO. Additional FTE Positions
(cumulative)

I1l. Review Comments

A. Finance Department Comments:
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C. Department Director Review:

Contract Start Date
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Number of 12 month terms this renewal
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Contractor Company Name
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Contractor Address
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Upload Date
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Rl VI ERA BEACH COVMUNI TY REDEVELOPNMENT AGENCY

Regul ar Meeti ng

Marina Village Event Center
190 East 13th Street
Ri vi era Beach, Florida
Wednesday, June 9, 2021
6:10 pom - 8:17 p.m

| N ATTENDANCE:

Chair Shirley Lanier

Vice Chair KaShanmba M I | er- Ander son
Comm ssi oner Julia Botel
Comm ssi oner Dougl as Lawson
Comm ssi oner Tradrick M Coy
Executive Director Jonathan Evans
General Counsel M chael Haygood
CRA Clerk Sherley Desir

Fl orida Court Reporting
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BE | T REMEMBERED that the followng Riviera
Beach Community Redevel opnent Agency Regul ar Meeti ng
was had at the Marina Village Event Center on
Wednesday, June 9th, 2021, beginning at 6:10 p.m, wth
att endees as herei nabove noted, to wit:

CHAI R LANI ER:  Good afternoon. We will call
the R viera Beach Community Redevel opnent Agency
neeting of June 9th, 2021 to order.

Madam d er k.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Here.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner Botel .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Here.

THE CLERK:  Conmi ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Her e.

THE CLERK: Vice Chair MI | er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Present.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANIER: Here.

THE CLERK: We al so have Jonat han Evans,
Executive Director of the CRA; M chael Haygood, General
Counsel of the CRA; and Sherley Desir, Cerk for the
CRA.

CHAIR LANIER  Thank you. W wll have a

Fl orida Court Reporting
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nmoment of silence, with the Pledge of All egiance |ed by
Commi ssi oner Lawson.

(Pl edge of Allegiance recited.)

CHAIR LANIER As we review the agenda for
this evening, staff -- or are there any additions,
del etions or substitutions?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: None from
staff, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANIER: Are there any discl osures by
Comm ssion and staff in regards to this agenda that's
presented to us this evening? Can | get a notion to
adopt the agenda as is?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Move to adopt the agenda
as is.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conmm ssi oner Botel .

COW SSI| ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Vice Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Motion passes; notion carries.

Fl orida Court Reporting
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CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, unani nous vote.

Consent agenda. Al matters |isted under
this itemare considered to be routine and action w |l
be taken by one notion. There will be no separate
di scussion of these itens unless a Council person
or Comm ssioner so requests, in which event, the item
w Il be renoved fromthe general order of business and
considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.

Do we have any public comments for our
consent agenda?

THE CLERK: W don't have any public
coment s.

CHAIR LANFER Can | get a notion to approve
t he consent agenda?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Move to approve the
consent agenda.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Second.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Moved and seconded. Madam
derk.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Botel .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Conmmi ssi oner Lawson.

COW SSI ONER LAWEON:  Yes.

Fl orida Court Reporting
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THE CLERK: Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: I'msorry, Vice Chair
M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

CHAIR LANIER: Mpdtion passes, fivelzero.

Regul ar agenda nunber four, Madam d erKk.

THE CLERK: A resolution of the Board of
Comm ssioners of the Riviera Beach Conmunity
Redevel opnent Agency approving an agreenent wth
Lanbert Advisory, LLC, for an anobunt not to exceed
$49, 000 to provide professional consulting services for
t he 2600 Broadway redevel opnent project, providing an
effective date.

The acceptance of public comment cards is now
cl osed. We have no public comment.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.

M. Jonat han Evans.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, at this tinme I'd |ike
for our Planning and Devel opnent Director, M. Scott

Evans, to nake this presentation.

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 6/ 9/ 2021

6

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

CHAIR LANIER M. Evans, go ahead.

MR, SCOIT EVANS: Thank you. Good eveni ng
Chai r person and Board.

This is a contract to approve for the
Communi ty Redevel opnent Agency with Lanbert Advi sory,
and it's for consulting services to advise, prepare,
devel op and negotiate a public-private partnership
agreenent for the redevel opnent of our existing
property which is |ocated at 2600 Broadway, which is
t he northeast corner of Broadway and Bl ue Heron.

And on May 12th, at our previous CRA Board
neeting, the Board approved denolition of the existing
buil ding on the site. And during that -- at that
neeting the Board al so received a presentation on the
potential concept for what this site could becone, and
the Board directed staff to nove quickly to bring back
the next step in the process.

The attached agreenent wi ||l engage Lanbert
Advi sory to provide the Board wwth a nultitude of
advi sory services, including but not limted to site
anal ysis, financial assessnent, preparation of the
devel oper solicitation, evaluation of the devel oper
solicitation. They wll conduct a Board wor kshop and
then they will also assist in the formati on and

finalization of the devel opnent agreenent for your

Fl orida Court Reporting
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1| final consideration.

2 And this project, this process is estinmated
3| to have a tineline of about six nonths. And on April

41 21st the Gty Council approved the execution of

5| agreenents for public-private partnership advisory

6| services with four firns, Avison Young, Jones LaSall e,
7| Lanbert Advisory and PFM  And they approved -- Gty

8 | Council approved Resol ution 35-21, which approved the
9| Gty to enter into continuing service agreenents wth
10 | those firns.

11 The proposed scope includes several tasks.

12| The first one is to conplete a site analysis and

13 | financial assessnent of the concept.

14 Task two is the creation of a devel opnent

15| solicitation. This is the RFP or I TN, whatever nethod
16 | is finally decided upon. And then to conduct a

17| workshop with the Board to get your feedback and

18 | comments on the direction for that solicitation.

19 The task three is to market and coordi nate

20 | the issuance of the devel opnent opportunity.

21 Task four, they wll evaluate the devel opnent
22 | responses and advise the CRA Board on the npst suitable
23 | sel ection.

24 Task five would be -- they would coordinate a

25| presentation wth the highest ranked devel oper and

Fl orida Court Reporting
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present recomendati ons and anal ysis for your
consi derati on.

And task six would be to negotiate the
devel opnent agreenent with the sel ected devel oper and
present it to the CRA Board for approval.

The CRA has negotiated the attached
consul ting agreenent. Lanbert Advisory has strong
residential credentials. And the proposed project is
primarily a md-rise residential project with sone
ground floor conmmercial to activate the street and
possi bly sone office space on the second fl oor.

The cost for the contract includes a base fee
of 39,000 and an additional amount, not to exceed
10, 000, for negotiation of the final devel opnent
agreenent which wll be brought back to the Board. So
the total contract amount shall not exceed 49, 000. And
once conpl eted, the concept that was presented to the
Board at our |ast neeting, a conservative valuation for
what that project mght bring in tax revenue is nore
t han $350, 000 per year.

And staff recommends that CRA Board adopt the
proposed resol ution approving the agreenent wth
Lanbert Advi sory.

Thank you Madam Chair.

CHAI R LANI ER  Thank you for your

Fl orida Court Reporting
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presentation, M. Evans.

Are there any questions fromthe Board in
regards to this itenf

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you.

M. Evans, with regard to the study that
we're undertaking in terns of density and intensity
al ong our Broadway and Bl ue Heron corridors, how does
this project overlap, if it does, with the work that
Treasure -- is it Treasure Coast that's doing that
wor k? How does this project overlap and will this
consul tant take into consideration whatever
recommendati ons conme from Treasure Coast ?

MR. SCOTT EVANS: The final recommendati ons
from Treasure Coast would be -- it would require us to
delay this project considerably before we issued it.
So what we're proposing is to go over the existing
zoning wth the consultant and review that also in
coordi nati on with Devel opnent Services, and then al so
possibly to have an option that if we were to perhaps
add a couple of floors of height or perhaps we m ght
I ncrease density, that mght be able to be included in
the solicitation so the response could be, well, here's

the project, and if | did get the additional height.
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But we wll make sone assunptions so that we
can nove forward now in case the Board would like to
consider a project that's slightly higher or nore dense
than the current zoning regul ati ons woul d approve. But
If we waited for the final approval of all those
changes to issue the solicitation, you know, that woul d
be about another six nonths del ay.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: So if | understand you,
you' re saying that if the consulting cones back and
says, you know, it |looks |ike we could do sonething
hi gher than -- you referred to it as md-rise -- then
we could take that into consideration and nmake sone
exceptions, even though the zoning hasn't changed yet.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: Yes. And we could ask for
proposal s that m ght have an option to go higher.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Ckay, thank you.

CHAIR LANIER: Are there any other questions
fromthe Board?

COW SSI ONER MeCOY:  Yes.

CHAIR LANIER.  You're recogni zed, sir.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

M. Scott Evans, | guess the submttal to the
RFP, where is that? Do we have that? | think you said
we did an RFQ for --

MR, SCOTT EVANS: Yes.

Fl orida Court Reporting
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COW SSI ONER McCOY:  -- PFM and - -

MR SCOIT EVANS: So these -- sorry, Madam
Chair.

The resol ution 35-21 was approved by Cty
Council, and | believe that's attached to the agenda
item And so when the City Council approved that, that
was they had the responses to all of the P3 procurenent
fromthe four firnms, and we selected Lanbert. They
were one of the first firnms to conplete their
conti nui ng services agreenent and they had a strong
residential credential. So we've attached the
resolution that -- it's not signed because | couldn't
get the signed version, but it was approved by the
Counci | .

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay, let ne restate ny
question, because that's not what | was asking. |'m
| ooking for specifically how did they respond to our
request for qualifications? And whatever that docunent
I's, where is that |located? |s that sonething that can
be provided to us, whatever was eval uated that got us
to the continuing agreenents?

MR SCOIT EVANS: Yes, the Gty's Procurenent
Depart ment woul d have that.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY: Ckay. And the reason

ask is because, you know, |I'm/looking at their

Fl orida Court Reporting
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1| proposal, and I'mnot exactly sure that | understand

2|1 howqualified they are. | nean | don't have a probl em
3| with supporting it, but | specifically was | ooking at

41 the proposal, and it seens to be two separate ones. So
5| help ne understand. So this one that's submtted in

6 | the backup speaks specifically to 2600 Broadway.

7 MR, SCOTT EVANS. Yes, sir.

8 COWM SSI ONER McCOY: |Is that separate from

9| what they submtted for the request for qualifications?
10 MR, SCOIT EVANS. Yes, the request for

11| qualifications was just to find conpanies who are

12 | experienced in public-private partnerships. And this
13 | particular scope of services before you tonight is the
14 | specific scope of work to provide the CRA Board with

15| fromstart to finish to devel op, market and approve a

16 | devel opnent agreenent with a public-private partner.

17 COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: Al right, thank you.
18 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.
19 Are there any other questions for M. Scott

20 | Evans regarding this iten?

21 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Madam Chai r.

22 CHAIR LANIER. Yes, go ahead, sir.

23 COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you, nm'am

24 M. Evans, just for clarity's sake, you said
25| that there was -- were they the only responsive firmto

Fl orida Court Reporting
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this sheltered market request fromthe four firns that
we had?

MR. SCOTT EVANS: Yes. So we have four firns
under continuing services who are approved for
continui ng services agreenents. Only two of the firns
had conpl eted a continui ng services agreenent as of the
creation of this agenda item They're still working on
t hose agreenents wth the Gty Attorney's Ofice.

And of the two firns, Lanmbert, during the
eval uati on process, was highlighted as having strong
residential credentials. And they do have a
representative today, M. Eric Liff, in case you have
any questions for him But so we negotiated this
agreenent directly with Lanbert in order to try and
make -- nove it as quickly as possible.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Ckay, the request for
RFQ how |l ong did we have that out to these four firns
or the two that were actually eligible to apply?

MR. SCOTT EVANS: So we -- these four firns
were all approved by Cty Council to be under contract.
So we chose one firmthat we felt was the strongest and
negoti ated this agreenent directly with them

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  So you sel ected from
the firnms?

MR, SCOIT EVANS: Yes, we selected only one

Fl orida Court Reporting
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firmto negotiate wth.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  From ny under st andi ng,
the sheltered market gives the opportunity for all the
firmse to be responsive to any of our requests. So
that's not how the sheltered market was set up when
we -- our intent was to create a vehicle to send out a
request and giving all four firnms the opportunity to
respond. But what you're saying is only two of the
firms were eligible or able to do it. So wth even
those two firns, we didn't give both firns the
opportunity to respond to the request to actually
subnmit this bid.

So that's not how | think the intent of
nmyself or ny coll eagues intended for these sheltered
markets to be established. W intended for themto
gi ve an opportunity for each one of these businesses.
W passed an electrical RFQ we passed a construction
RFQ and we passed this one. So just to select themis
count er productive to giving everyone the opportunity.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: | don't think this was one
of the sheltered nmarket opportunities, but I'm--

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  You created a -- we
created an RFQwith four private -- public-private
partnership advisory firnms to allow for us to have a

pool of vendors to select from
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MR, SCOTT EVANS. Yes, sir.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  But we didn't actually
gi ve the pool the option -- the opportunity. W
literally just picked one off of the bl ock.

MR SCOIT EVANS: Yes, it was in order to
make it on tonight's agenda, it was only possible to
negotiate with one firm |If we were to -- we could
either wait for all four firnms to be under contract, or
we could issue to the other firns and then conduct an
eval uation process. Staff commttee advertised that we
were going to nake a selection. So the process, the
conpetitive process would take nore tinme and we coul d
do that, but that would result in a delay.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  So the entire Council,
all of ny colleagues on this dais has shown that we are
aggressive with noving in a safe nmanner and a
constructive manner that's going to help establish a
unity within our business departnent, wthin our Cty
and within the different departnents that we have.

Ri ght now this doesn't give transparency for ne when it
cones to just handpicking the firnms fromthis pool

w t hout giving every firmthe opportunity to be
responsi ve.

| understand that we were rushing to get it

done because we do want to see this building devel oped.
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We gave direction to the staff to get this done

I mmedi ately. But this wasn't the direction that we
gave. | don't want to see it rushed, | want to see it
done properly.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER.  Yes, go ahead.

VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: So with this
firmbeing selected for this particular project, wll
the other groups be in the running for -- wll they be
chosen next when we do sonething el se?

MR SCOIT EVANS: Yes. W recently -- well,
for exanple, for the Marina project, we've invited all
three firns to provide a proposal to the CRA, and one
firmhas responded. The other firns said that because
they don't have the continuing services contract yet,
that they're not in a position to work on our project.
And the other firm has taken several weeks, but | guess
they're working on the proposal. They are interested.
So we did, because the Marina project is nmuch |arger,
we sent that offer to all three firns who were sel ected
by the CRA Board.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Not i ncl udi ng
Lanbert though.

MR SCOIT EVANS: Yes, we included Lanmbert.

Fl orida Court Reporting
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1 VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: So in al

2| fairness, would it be appropriate for us to | eave

3| Lanbert out of the next round of, for exanple, the
4| Marina project and just go with the other three and
5| give them an opportunity, since Lanbert has al ready
6| been selected for this one, or wwll potentially be

7| selected --

8 MR. SCOTT EVANS: Yes, we could do that.

9 COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

10 CHAIR LANIER. Go ahead.

11 VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Oh, |'msorry.
12 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: |'m sorry.

13 CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, you're recogni zed.

14 COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: | think my only concern

15| about that would be is the Marina project not going to
16 | be a nmuch larger project, and to elim nate sonebody

17| just because they've done this relatively small project

18| seens to ne unfair. |'mjust one voice, but --
19 CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead.
20 VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  And | understand

21| what she's saying with that, but | think it would be

22 | unfair to doing it the way that we're doing it now with
23| this particular project if that's the case. | nean

24 | obviously, we want to nove forward, but we want to be

25| fair and equitable in how we're doing it.
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And so if we're going to nove forward with
sel ecting Lanbert in this fashion, wthout giving the
-- you know, rotating or giving everyone a fair
opportunity to weigh inon it, | could not agree with
allowmng themto be in the next group of projects that
we do. | nean if we're going to do it, we have to do
It both tines, you know, be fair about it.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, M. Jonathan Evans, can
you speak to this, because | think what is happening is
this. W had a neeting. | don't knowif it was the
| ast neeting or the neeting before that. W were
presented with four different firns to be able to do
business wwth the Gty CRA in regards to upcom ng
proj ects.

And our understandi ng, at |east ny
under st andi ng, because | don't like to say all ny
col | eagues' understandi ng because |I'monly speaking for
nyself. My understanding is that there would be a poo
of four or how many ever submtted. You would vet
those four firms, and then as projects cone up, like
the 2600 bl ock, like the Marina, |like the -- whatever
ot her projects, 1llth Street, whatever projects that we
have, that we would solicit fromthat pool a bid, if it
were, to be able to see who would be best fit for that

proj ect .
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Now, | don't know what the criteria is in
regards to how that is going to be done or how that
w Il be done, but it should be done in that way i nstead
of choosing one and then choosing another. And then |
think that every -- the four that canme to us and you
presented to us should have an opportunity to be able
to bid on a project fromthe GCty, and not the Gty
just choose, CRA just choose who it is, because if
that's the case, we could have just took the four,
choose one and there's just one the whole tine.

So if you can speak to that, M. Jonat han
Evans, | would appreciate it.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,
Madam Chair. So the itemthat's before you this
eveni ng, obviously, based on the conversation that we
had with the Board, the intent was to bring this
consultant on board as quickly as possible to be able
to nove forward with the solicitation docunent and then
negotiating the terns and conditions once we do receive
proposal s.

Wth respect to the solicitation process, we
selected four firnms to be able to utilize based on
their expertise and skill sets. Sonme of these firns
possess a nore vast skill set and a deeper bench as it

relates to econom c devel opnment proj ects.
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1 So when staff does | ook at who is the nost

2| suitable firmfor the job, they do | ook at the

3| solicitation docunent, they do | ook at the experti se,

41 and they do | ook at the speed in which the Board w shes
5| to nove on the project.

6 So there is a process whereby staff believes
7| that this firmis well suited to be able to nove

8| forward with this project. The others are still going
9 | through the continuing services agreenent process, and
10| then we would have to go through the solicitation. So
11| in order to expedite this particular initiative, we

12| wanted to bring this to you all. This is they went

13 | through a conpetitive solicitation process. There's no
14 | specific nmechanismthat requires you to ask themall

15| for proposals. You can, certainly, or you can sel ect
16 | the one that's best suited.

17 | f we, when we go through the sane process

18| for the Marina Phase Il, there is one firmthat has a
19 | deeper know edge base as it relates to the conplexities
20 | associated with that process, and so there's going to
21| be a firmthat invariably that staff feels nore

22 | confortable with noving forward.

23 | think this particular firmhas the depth

24 | and the experience to be able to bring this process and

25| project out of the ground as quickly as possible. |If
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we | ook to ask all firnms to go ahead and respond, we
can certainly do that, but then that's going to, in
fact, delay the process, could be anywhere between two
to three nonths before we get it back to you all to get
to this exact point.

So we thought, based on the direction or the
conversations the Board had, that speed and a sense of
urgency was the direction that we wanted to go.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.

Yes, let nme respond to him ask hima
guesti on.

And | see now what you're saying. You have

four firnms. One may be good in plunbing, one may be

good in drywall, but if you're doing a drywall project,
of course you would go with the one who is -- has the
background in drywall. So | see what you've done.

Thank you for that explanation.

Yes, go ahead, you're recogni zed,
Commi ssi oner Lawson.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Well, M. Evans, I'mgoing to be in support
of nmoving forward with this because | do want to see
this done. But for the future, what | want to see is

that the pool is properly utilized, where we give every
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1| opportunity to the vendors, the four vendors to apply
2| for anything that conmes before the Board, because

3| putting it back out is only because it was not done

4| properly the first tine. So it would delay us three
5| nonths because we did not give every firmthe

6 | opportunity, even though there was only two firns that
7| actually have the paperwork in currently, which

8 | understand that would be the only two that woul d have
9| an opportunity to respond.

10 For the next solicitation, | want to make

11| sure that we give everyone at |east a certain

12| tinmeframe, whether it's 30 or 45 days, to respond so
13| that when it cones before the Board, that we've given
14| all four fromthese selected firns an opportunity to
15| respond. So that's what | want to see noving forward.
16 But | wll be supportive of this, colleagues,
17| because | do want to see sone progress done with

18 | getting these projects up and going.

19 Thank you, Madam Chair.
20 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.
21 Are there any other comments in regards to

22| this iten? W did not get a notion for that item Can
23| | get a notion to approve this itenf
24 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: | nove that we approve

25| the resolution (inaudible) to approve an agreenent wth
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Lanbert Advi sory.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Second.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. | want to say one
nore thing before we nove on. | just wanted to have
the public to understand the reasoni ng behind the CRA
noving in this direction. It just really just clicked
and nade sense to ne in regards to why, out of four,
you woul d choose one, based on the fact that they have
a better forte at doing this particular project. So |
can understand that. And | trust the judgnent of the
CRA to be able to understand which one woul d best suit
us for the City, but also giving everybody the sane
opportunity.

Madam Clerk, can | get a -- call the
guestion, please.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssioner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conmm ssi oner Botel.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Vice Chair MI | er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.
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1 THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

2 CHAI R LANI ER:  Unani nous vote.

3 Nunber five, Madam C erk.

4 THE CLERK: A resolution of the Board of

5| Comm ssioners of the Riviera Beach Community

6 | Redevel opnment Agency approving a professional service
7| agreenent with Street Art Revolution for $114,641 and
8 | Fondos Studio, LLC for $16,400 to provide public

9| artwork and painting services to designated properties
10| within the CRA District, providing for an effective
11 | date.

12 The acceptance of public comments is now
13| closed. There are no public coments.

14 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: | nove that we accept
15| the resolution of the Board to approve the Street Art
16 | Revol ution and Fondos Studi o contracts.

17 COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Second.

18 CHAIR LANIER: Al right, very good. o

19 | ahead, M. Evans. Could you introduce the presenter?
20 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,

21 | Madam Chair and nenbers of the Board, I1'd like to

22 | introduce M. Andre Lewis that will be naking the

23 | presentation on behalf of the CRA

24 CHAI R LANI ER Go ahead, sir.

25 MR LEWS:. Good evening, Conm ssioners.
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So we're going to go through the art and
brandi ng project, round three. So just to give you a
little bit of background -- okay. Al right, to give
you a little bit of background, back in Septenber of
2020 the agency received budget approval for $165, 000
for round three of this project. |In Novenber of 2020
RFP 2020-03 was put out on the street seeking art and
pai nting services.

April of 2021 the agency received subm ssions
fromStreet Art Revolution and Fondos Studios, LLC.
Each design was scored and ranked. Also, the
Boar d- appoi nted representative, Conm ssioner Dr. Julia
Botel, attended the evaluation commttee neeting and
oversaw t he process.

So thank you, Conmm ssioner; thank you.

CHAIR LANI ER Thank you very nuch. Are
there any questions in regards to this itenf

MR LEWS: No, | was just saying --

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: | don't think he's
finished.

MR LEWS: No, | was thanking Conm ssi oner
Botel for attending the eval uation.

CHAIR LANTER | got distracted. 1'mso
sorry, | got distracted. | was about to shut it down.

Go ahead.
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MR LEWS: Al right. So we'll start off
wth the first art design. |It's for the OCcean WAl k
beach entrance. It is the front side of the beach
entrance. |It's about six foot tall and 146 feet across
with the two poles, and you can see the design. | know
you have copies there. | knowit's a little dark here,
but you can see the design bel ow and al so the
underwat er design for the poles on each side. And this
is Street Art Revolution. Their price for this is
11,400. And this would be the back side, the sane
stance, the poles and the wall itself, and this is
going all the way across.

Now, this is the retaining wall entering into
t he beach area fromthe Ccean Wal k entrance. This art
Wil run right across the bottom [It's about two feet
hi gh and 120 feet across. You can see the multiple
desi gns there show ng a wave notion with the decorative
col or fishes going across.

The next design will be for Fondos Studi o,
LLC, and it would be installed at Seashell Cty, which
Is right across fromthe current CRA office at 2100
Broadway. And this wll be installed by, | said,
Fondos St udi o.

CHAIR LANTER  Sir, is that on the front part

or the back or the side?
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MR LEWS: It will be on the front part. It
wll replace the nural that's there now.

CHAIR LANIER Ch, okay.

MR LEWS: Yes. And this is a 3-D nural,
and you know, it will give an opportunity for art
splunkas. As | was told by one of the artists that
visit the site, they can take a 3-D picture and post
it.

The next design, as you can see below, wll
be for the commercial building at 65 Wst 21st Street.
The nural size is about 18 feet high and 90 feet
across. And this wll be installed by Street Art
Revol uti on.

The next one is at Bicentennial Park's
concession stand wall, and it's about 18 feet high, 32
feet across. Street Art Revolution. And you can see
t he young people inspired art bel ow.

This is also on the east side of the
Bi centenni al Park concession stand building. You can
see the art below And it also, in the next slide
you'll see it enconpass the actual poles. And this is
for the pole base itself. And these are for the six
poles that are out there. You can see the underwater
I nspired design going 60 feet up the pole.

Now, the next three slides are for the
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submtted -- we requested that the artist give us sone
Ri vi era Beach inspired scul ptures, and this is what was
given to us for the next three slides. These are --
woul d not be a part of this round three, but it wll be
for future installation, and we wanted to have an
opportunity to present it to you. So this will be the
proposed scul pture will be placed at 13th Street and
Avenue C entering into Marina Vill age.

The next one is proposed for the corner of
Bl ue Heron and Broadway, currently the CRA owned
property on that corner. It currently has a wel cone
sign. W would replace it with this scul pture, and you
can add the welcone R viera Beach to the sign. And in
addition, if we had future devel opnent, we could nove
it to another |ocation.

And this one is proposed for 23rd or 22nd
Avenue on Avenue E. This will be a part of the future
devel opnent for Avenue E. It called for a roundabout
to slowtraffic in that area, and one of the proposed
| deas fromthe architect was to put either a nmural or a
| arge tree and/or a scul pture in that roundabout, and
this would be one of the proposed i deas.

So for the budget, Street Art Revol ution
contract anmount would be 114,641. Mirals by Georgetta
or Fondos Studio, LLC would be for 16,400. The total
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proj ect amount would be 131,041. The total project
square footage will be 6,188 square feet, and that
amounts to $21 per square foot. And the industry
average i s between 20 and $30 per square foot for a
normal size or a normal |ooking mural. |If you get into
the 3-D art, you know, the nore the detail, the nore
expensive it gets.

And I'll take any questions that you have at
this tine.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead, pl ease.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you.

| love street art. | love art in public
pl aces. But when | | ook at the price tag on this item
It seens to ne that we have so many itens, sSo many
| ssues that we have right nowin the Gty and the CRA
that we m ght want to take a | ook and ask staff to
provide us with a list of other itens that we could use
this noney for, maybe table this or vote individually
on the separate projects or maybe one or two of them
could get done now. And | would really lIike to hear
fromstaff what other things we could use this anount
of noney for. $131,000 is a |ot of noney.

| particularly like the scul ptures, which are

not even in that $131, 000 anobunt. But |'mwondering if
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when we do the project at the Marina, could we not fold
sone sort of art in public places into the devel oper's
responsibility so that the -- | think that particular
scul pture is very, very nice, and I'd love to see it
there, but I don't think the Gty should pay for it. |
t hi nk whoever does that devel opnent m ght want to -- we
m ght want to ask themto pay for sonething |ike that.

But my concern right now is spending $131, 000
on art, which again, | amvery nmuch in favor of, | |ove
the murals that we've done so far, but it just strikes
me that right now we have so nmany ot her pressing issues
that we should at |east take a | ook at what ot her
t hings the CRA can spend that noney for. So ny request
woul d be that we get fromstaff a list of itens that we
can spend $131, 000 on.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, Comm ssioner Lawson,
you' re recogni zed.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you.

This is part of the programthat we started
to create. W' ve started to cone up with a nore robust
plan, which is the arts in public places. The direct
funding that we're using could actually be funded
t hrough the AI PP program wi th busi nesses investing into

the community.
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We' ve done research throughout the nation
when it cones to arts in public places, and the
I nterest that the business sector has in devel oping and
hel ping the communities growis beneficial to their
busi ness itself.

So they have no probleminvesting into our
streets, into our scul ptures, into our nurals that
we're actually placing around the comunity, because
that's going to increase the quality of their business,
the residency and beautify the community, which is al so
going to put their total revenue up. So putting a
percentage and creating a robust plan is going to all ow
for us to actually not use the tax paying dollars, but
actually use the dollars of businesses conming to the
community to make noney off of our city.

So | agree trenendously with ny col |l eague
Dr. Julia Botel when it cones to the spending that
we' re doi ng, because we budgeted this itemto allow for
beautificati on because we have to invest into the CRA
District, but at the sane tinme we have to quickly and
aggressively create the plan and the programto outline
beautification wth using the businesses that are being
attracted.

At our neeting last night we i mgi ned Riviera

Beach. Qur Cty Manager stated that we're going to be

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 6/ 9/ 2021

32

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

spendi ng 500, $600 mllion in devel opnent. |nmagine a
percentage of that going towards our arts in public

pl aces, our prograns for our kids in the community, the
di fferent devel opnent and grow h that we have, because
the arts in public places is not just putting up
murals, it's an entire built-out program where there's
going to be education, where it's going to be nurals,
where it's going to be structures, where it's going to
be beautification of our community, but then also

wor king with our School District in the programm ng of
the arts.

So the robust and diverse plan that we're
trying to build, | think we need to get to work on
funding it. And |I'mconcerned with the anount of noney
we're spending for these nurals, but I do know that we
have to invest. W have to put investnent into the
city.

But the scul pture I'd be in support of. The
murals it's difficult to get behind because | know t hat
t he mai ntenance is a high cost, and then al so these
probably have a |ife expectancy of two to three years.
So spending that 130,000 on two or three years is
difficult for me to accept.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.
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1 VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON: Madam Chai r.

2 CHAIR LANIER: Yes, go ahead, you're

3| recogni zed, Commi ssioner M| er-Anderson.

4 VICE CHAIR M LLER-ANDERSON: | was going to
5| ask about the mai ntenance cost. Do we know what it is,
6| the cost of the maintenance for these nural s?

7 MR LEWS: WlIl, as a part of the proposal,
8| we have all the nurals being sealed after they have

9| been installed, and we've seen that they've held up,

10 | especially for the last three years. So there isn't

11| really a mai ntenance plan that is a part of their

12 | proposal. But we're |ooking at, you know, cleaning, if
13| for sone reason they were vandalized. But that's the
14 | purpose of having it sealed after it's installed, so we

15| can sinply wash it off.

16 COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: NMadam Chai r.
17 Sorry. Are you done?
18 CHAIR LANIER: Are you finished,

19 | Comm ssi oner?

20 VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON: (Nods head.)
21 CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead.
22 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: So the beautiful one

23| that we have on the side of, what is it, that pawn shop
24 | on the corner of Blue Heron and Broadway, that's | asted

25| quite a fewyears. |I'mtrying to renenber how | ong
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ago.
MR LEWS: Yes.
COW SSI ONER BOTEL: |t seens to be in pretty
good shape. | think they do last a fairly long tine,

given that we've protected themin that way.

And | do want to also say before |, you know,
conpletely dismss this as a possibility, it's painful
to have soneone |ike Ms. Fondos and like Street Art
come to us, spend the tine that it takes to respond to
an RFP, take the tinme to give us sone draw ngs, work
with us to change them You know, | hate to say no,
we're not going to do any of this.

But, for exanple, the stuff over at the
ocean, and | should -- shane on ne, | nean |'mtelling
you don't do anything on Singer |sland and probably
sone of ny constituents wll say: Wat is she, crazy?
But, you know, the Ocean Wal k beach entrance, maybe it
just needs a coat of paint right now. Maybe we just
need to spruce sone things up.

Whereas the Seashell City, because that's
ri ght when you cone into the city, maybe we should do
t hat one and nmaybe the one on 21st Street, 65 West 21st
Street. Ones that are sort of nore visible right in
the city are ones that we should say let's do those

now, but hold off on Bicentennial Park, hold off on the
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Ccean Walk Mall so that the people who took the tine to
propose these things at least get a little sonething to
get started, but we don't have to spend $131,000 to do
the whole thing. That's just --

MR LEWS: Yes. So if it's the desire of
the Board for us to choose sone of them and do that,

t hat can be done al so.

CHAIR LANIER. Are there any other questions
for this presenter?

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: So if I mght, could I
propose that we table this itemuntil we get sone
direction fromthe Gty admnistration -- or excuse ne,
the CRA adm nistration as to whether or not we have
ot her projects to which this noney could be put and
whet her we could divide this proposal up into chunks so
that we could vote separately on whether or not we want
to do Ccean Reef -- | mean the Ccean Wal k Mall area or
Bi centennial Park or the ones that are right in the
city.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. Board, what is
your pl easure?

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: 1'I1l make that notion.

CHAIR LANIER  Go ahead.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: | was just going to
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agree wth ny coll eague when it cones to repurposing
sone of these funds, allowng for us to have nore of a
di scussi on and di al ogue with maybe being selective of a
few of the nurals and then using sonme of those funds to
repurpose to a project that's going to be inpactful and
beneficial to the comunity econom cally and al so maybe
progranm ng operations-wise. So | will second the
not i on.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you.

CHAIR LANIER: A notion has been nmade to
table this item and it's been seconded. Are there any
di scussion in regards to this notion?

COW SSI ONER MCOY: So yes, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: (Ckay, so what

specifically are we | ooking to happen when we send this

back, Comm ssioner Botel, |like what's the expectation?
COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: | would like -- you
know, because this is CRA noney, | want people to

understand it's not City noney, it's CRA noney, so it
has to be spent for specific CRA projects.

| would like to have fromadm nistration a
list of CRA projects to which we could put this --
toward which we could put this noney, and also a

recommendat i on about whether or not there m ght be one
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or two nural projects that we could nove forward wth
so that we use a snmall anmount of noney for art in
public places, but reserve the rest of the noney for

ot her projects that -- housing, for exanple. | nean
there are things that we really need as a city that are
nore pressing.

And again, | amvery nmuch in favor of art iIn
public places. | love the nurals. But it's just that
right nowit strikes nme that there are so nmany things
t hat we need noney for, that | would Iike for
adm nistration to tell us what potentially sonme of
t hose things could be.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Fol | ow up.

CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay, that's fine. |
have no issue with it. But | just want to make sure
t hat the CRA Executive Director knows what we're
expecting so we're not just sitting here expecting
sonething to cone back. | just want to hear fromhim
on, you know, how this can be, you know, how we can see
what you're asking us, Dr. Botel.

CHAIR LANIER  Before you go, M. Evans, are
there any other questions in regards to this item
before we get to a response fromthe Executive

Director? Very good.
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Go ahead, sir.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, | think, you know, two
opportunities just off the top of the head w t hout
havi ng, you know, further conversations wth staff
woul d be | ooking at our down paynent assistance
program as well as the grants that we provide to
residents to do hone repairs. | think that those
prograns are prograns that are very popular wthin the
CRA.

And then we could al so | ook at an expansi on
of our Clean and Safe Program our -- where we, you
know, installed the snoke detectors and the Ri ng
Door bel | s and what have you.

But we woul d have a nore robust conversation
with staff, but that's kind off the top of ny head sone
prograns that we certainly want to | ook at, especially
t he conponent that | ooks to address sone of the housing
chal | enges that we have in our community.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER.  Yes, let ne nake a comment. |
do like the project. | do think it's too nuch noney,
but I do want to see sonething fromit.

Al right, very good. Go ahead, Comm ssioner

Lawson.
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COW SSI ONER LAWSON: Thank you, Madam Chair.

| conpletely agree. | want to see those
projects and those funds go towards beautification of
our residences in the CRA the funding for the hones,
for just inproving the quality of the home ownership in
our city, in addition to sone of the projects that we
have, but not using $170,000 of it, because there's
down paynent assistance that we have, 11 townhouses
that are going to be comng up in our CRA on 1l1th
Street. W have houses, we have yards that are in bad
shape.

So right now sone of those prograns that
M. Evans just outlined is what we want to see sone of
that noney allocated to or reallocated to. After
com ng out of this pandemc, | want to really assi st
wi th addressing the slumand blight in that CRA
District. That's assisting those honeowners in that
CRA District. So applying and reall ocating sone of
t hose funds, while still addressing sone of the needs,
but on a limted basis.

| | ove the roundabout on 13th. That is a
good idea. Possibly |ooking at a few other ones. But
we can sit down with the Executive Director, tal k about
sone of the concerns and possibly bring this back to

t he Board | ater.
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Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: So the notion
that Dr. Botel has is to table it until we get nore
i nformati on about how we can utilize the funds and then
possi bly get nore information or have a di scussion so
that we're able to narrow down to which art projects we
want to realize.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: (I naudi bl e.)

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair --

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: -- if |
may, if you would postpone the itemin |ieu of tabling
It, because tabling it, then you would have to pull it
off the table. |If you postpone it until -- if you give
staff, nmaybe at your next or maybe the first CRA
nmeeting in July, we can provide sone options for the
Board to consi der.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you. | nodify ny
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not i on.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWBON:  Still second.

CHAIR LANIER Go ahead and nodify it so that
the Cerk can get it.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: To postpone rather than
t abl e.

CHAIR LANI ER.  Ckay, very good. Does that
second still stand?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. W have any public
comments for this iten? Do we?

THE CLERK: Not for this item Just general
publ i c coment.

CHAI R LANI ER  Okay, call the question,
pl ease.

THE CLERK: Commi ssi oner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conm ssi oner Botel.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Conm ssi oner Lawson.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Vice Chair MI I er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.
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CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. Let us nove on to
our next item

THE CLERK: RFQ 1024-21-2, request for
qual i fications for |egal services.

The acceptance of public comments is now
cl osed. We have one public conment.

Mary Brabham for public comment.

CHAIR LANIER:.  Yes, we'll have the
presentation first and then we'll have public coment.

THE CLERK: Okay.

CHAIR LANIER M. Jonat han Evans, could you
provide us the information for this itenf

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,
Madam Chair and nenbers of the Board. The item before
you this evening is the culmnation of the solicitation
that the CRA put out concerning |egal services, based
on the direction provided by the Board. The Cty
has -- or the CRA has put out a solicitation. There
was four firns that responded, three of which have made
It to the final steps in the process, and then one that
has w thdrawn fromthe process, leaving two -- well,
one entity and one particul ar individual to nmake the

presentation this evening. W've allotted about
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30 m nutes each for the presenters to provide an update
or a presentation on their experience and experti se.

The internal staff did | ook at the
solicitation packets and then provided a ranking as to
their review of the solicitation. | do want to share
with the Board that the decision resides exclusively
with the Board. Even though staff did provide the
ranking in the solicitation packet, the -- that is
nerely fromthe standpoint that they were responsive
and responsi bl e respondents to the proposals, and based
on the subm ssions, staff did provide scores, but the
scores are not necessarily gernmane to the discussion
and the decision that you will nake this evening.

After the presentation is provided by both
entities, we then have a scoring sheet that we woul d
ask for you to fill out ranking nunber one and nunber
two. We do need you to al so conmunicate in the ranking
sheet publicly your ranking, because that's consistent
with the statute as it relates to ranking and
comruni cating that in a public forum After that, the
clerk will grab the scoring sheets, provide the tally,
and then provide you with the nunber one and nunber two
ranked firns.

After that, staff wll ask for direction to

nove forward with the negotiation for the terns and
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conditions of a contract to provide |egal services to
the CRA. It is ny recommendation that the CRA Board
allow for me to work with the Gty Attorney to draft an
agreenent at the conclusion of the neeting this evening
to bring back to you at a future neeting for
consi der ati on.

Wth respect to the solicitation and the
amount of time that it was out, | wll ask that our
Procurenment Director, M. Pensel, provide sone
information to the Board and to the public as to the
solicitation process and where the solicitation was
posted and how | ong it was out and how many persons did
downl oad the packet. But we have gotten to two
I ndi viduals or two firnms, the Pittman Law G oup, as
wel |l as M chael Haygood, our general counsel for the
CRA.

Ms. Pensel, if you can provide an update on
t he procurenent side.

M5. PEMSEL: (Good eveni ng, CRA Board, Chair
and nenbers. For the record, ny nane is Althea Pensel.
|"'mthe Director of Procurenent.

| wanted to go over, as M. Evans said, our
I nformati on about the firnms. W did issue a
solicitation. That solicitation was issued on

March 3rd, 2021, and it was advertised in the Pal m
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Beach Post as well as the Gty's procurenent website,
and additionally, the CRA's website.

On May 3rd we received four proposals for
| egal advisers. Two of the firns are from Pal m Beach
County, one is fromLeon County, and the other one is
fromM am - Dade County. The firnms that responded was
Fox Rothschild LLP, J. Mchael Haygood, Pittman Law
G oup and the Center for Professional Legal Services.

The conmittee held a witten eval uati on of
t he proposals on May 14th, and that conmttee consisted
of three staff persons. The ranking in the end, which
Is only to provide a scoring nmechanism a witten
eval uation scoring nechanism has M chael Haygood as
one, Fox Rothschild is two, and the Pittman Law G oup
Is three, the Center for Professional Legal Services as
four.

W received, when we issued it, we received
80 downl oads or 80 reviews. It was broadcast to 80 | aw
firms. O that 80, 24 of themreviewed it. O that
24, six downloaded it. And we al so received an
additional suppliers of six, that were six firns that
were added as well. As a result, we received the four
pr oposal s.

Are there any questions? O again, to

reiterate what M. Evans said, we did have four. Fox
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Rot hschild w thdrew only because there was a schedul i ng
conflict between a current commtnent with a Board on
the sane day or the sane tines that the CRA Board and
the City neet, so they had to w thdraw because of that
commi t ment .

CHAIR LANFER:  So we only have two
appl i cant s?

MS. PEMSEL:  Yes.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead, you're
recogni zed, sir.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you.

Ms. Pensel, thank you.

Well, first and forenost | just want to thank
the individuals, the firns that did apply. Thank you
for your interest in the Cty, and thank you for
wanting to participate as the attorney for the Gty.

Qut of the 80 that viewed this solicitation,
did you follow up with these firns to find out why they
didn't apply or what interest they had or what were the
steps that were taken to not really having an interest?
Because with the two that we have remai ning before us,
that's a | ow percentage of viewng to what actually

appl i ed.
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1 M5. PEMSEL: | did not. Because t he four
2| responses we had, | did not.
3 COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  And then t he ot her

41 thing is you said the solicitation was put out at the

5| CRA website, the Pal m Beach Post and the Gty website.

6 MS. PEMSEL:  Yes.

7 COMM SSI ONER LAWEON: Was t here anywhere
8| else?

9 M5. PEMSEL: |'mnot sure. Those are ny

10 | sources. That's where | placed it.

11 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  That's a very

12| limted --

13 M5. PEMSEL: |'msorry, say it again.

14 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  That's a very limted

15| path of marketing if we're trying to find a w de base
16 | of options for the Gty. | was just trying to

17| (i naudi bl e) over the last couple days as to why that

18| we're noving in such a positive direction where we have
19| an amazing staff, we have coll eagues that are actually
20 willing to work and nove forward with the Gty and work
21 | together to get things done in the comunity, yet we

22| only had a limted nunber of responsive individuals.

23 | had to | ook back at the option of it's

24 | probably Iimted marketing, because the only two

25| remaining options we have is our state |obbyist and our
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former attorney. So as of right now, |'m concerned
with how we're marketing and soliciting and producing
to people across the country for the Cty of Riviera
Beach.

We have to do a better job soliciting for
everything across the board, not just this
solicitation, but everything that we do, because
there's no reason that we're only getting one, two,

t hree responses to these RFPs and RFQs that are going
out for multimllion dollar contracts, for hundreds of
t housands of dollars that people wll be nmaking a year
for salaries to cone operate with a Council and with a
Cty Manager and with a CRA Director that's very
progressive in the direction of working together to get
t hi ngs done.

Sol'ma little frustrated wth the nunber
that we have, but |I'mexcited to hear about the
presentations that they have to bring to the table.
But we have to work on a better process of procuring
t hese individuals that give the options for our
residents to select nore of a base, okay.

Thank you, Ms. Pensel.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI R LANI ER  Thank you. Are there any

guestions, any other questions in regards to this item
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1| or of this particular presentation, | should say?

2 M. Evans, Jonat han Evans.

3 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,

4| Madam Chair. At this particular nonent we will all ow

5| for the first firm Pittman Law G oup, to make their

6| presentation to the Board. And then follow ng that

7| presentation, if there's no questions, then we wl|l

8| nove to the second presenter, which will be

9| M. Haygood.

10 CHAIR LANI ER:  Very good. M. Pittmn.

11 MR PITTMAN. Good evening. It's nice to get
12| this mask off for a little bit. Thank you all for the

13 | opportunity to conme before you, and Madam Chair and

14 | Council nmenbers, M. -- shall | say Executive Director
15| on this one -- thank you all for having us.
16 | first want to start with thanking the

171 committee for their work in trying to put forth --

18 | well, evaluating the fol ks who wanted to work for you.
19| | appreciate themputting that -- that's hard work.

20 I've done it before. | know all of you have before

21| too. It's very, very hard work, and it |leads up to the

22| difficult task that you have as well.
23 So on behalf of our firm we are very, very
24 | happy to be here today, because we want to help, and we

25| want to help this CRA wth the aggressive and anazi ng
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projects that you have before you, and we are prepared
to do that.

And | do want to introduce ny coll eagues t hat
| brought with nme tonight, and you'll hear from both of
them But our lead attorney, Chris Smth, who nany
peopl e m ght renenber spent quite a bit of tine in the
State Legislature, but he spent the | ast decade as a
real, real |awyer, because that's his training. And
we're happy to have himpart of our teamat Pittnan Law
G oup now.

And Attorney MKkinney-WIIlians, who has al so
been an attorney for -- well, | don't want to date you,
Ms. Mckinney-WIlians, but for al nost 20 years and
board certified in education |aw as well.

So we're happy to be here. W want you to
get to know us better. And | say that because |I've
worked with many of you in a different capacity in
being our firmhas represented you in Tall ahassee for
many, nmany years. And in the neantinme, if you didn't
know, we're a law firm And we have a very, very
robust | ocal governnent practice, and when this
opportunity becane avail able, we thought, you know, we
do so nmuch down there already, we could really lean in
alittle nore. And that's why we're here.

W want you to know that in our full
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1| service -- in our effort to -- sorry. | feel |like Vice
2| President Pence who had that fly on his head.

3 In that effort, over the |last 20 years we

41 have built a very, very robust |ocal governnent

5| practice, and we've got five |awers that have

6| expertise in different areas of |ocal governnment worKk.
7| But throughout it all, we are a very, very strong team
8 | and we hope, as we celebrate our 20th year of a firm

9| that was built and devel oped, created right here in

10| Riviera Beach, that we crown it with the opportunity to
11| do great work for the CRA

12 You know al ready that one of the great things
13 | about our firmis we are a Florida firm a firmwth an
14| office in Mam, an office here in R vera Beach, an

15| office in Tallahassee, and on July 1st opening an

16 | office in Olando because of the significant |ocal

17| governnent work that we're doing there. W are

18 | buil di ng sonet hing that has not been done for a

19| boutique mnority firm and that is we're building a

20 | quality firmto do difficult transactional work for

21 | | ocal governnments throughout the state. And we're good
22 | at it because we love doing it. And we're hoping we're
23| able to do that here.

24 Every lawer in our firmhas served as

25 | general counsel of sonme |ocal governnent or sone entity
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or organi zation throughout their career. And so we
bring a cul mnation of that type of experience to what
you need here at the CRA

| think we have slides. Oh, |'m supposed --
oh, that's what this is. Dd |l say we're not a
technology firn? Okay, so | press this button? On,
this is cool. GCkay, all right, | got it. | did this
one. Al right.

Qur public entity experience, we provi de day
to day or on an as-needed basis |legal services to a
nunber of | ocal governnents, including the Gadsden
County Board of County Comm ssioners, the Gty of
Tal | ahassee Muni ci pal Code Enforcenent Board, Leon
County Code Enforcenent Board, Tall ahassee-Leon County
Board of Adjustnent and Appeals, Broward County,
Broward County Del egati on, School Board of Leon County,
School Board of Wakulla County, Cty of Getna, Gty of
Jacob, Fl ori da.

So we are very, very busy, but we're very
selective in these opportunities that we go after.
We're very selective because we |ike what we are. W
like that we're a boutique law firm a law firmthat's
able to give significant tine and quality work to the
clients that we go after.

And having a famliarity with Ri vera Beach,
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it only made sense for us to lean in here and try to
continue to do great work for this great city.

| want to show you an organi zational chart so
that you can see what this representation m ght | ook
like. |'m Sean Pittman, by the way. | don't know if |
even introduced nyself. |'m Sean Pittman, by the way,
t he managi ng partner of this firm

Attorney Chris Smth would be the | ead
attorney for this opportunity. Attorney Opal
Mcki nney-W I lianms, who's here, would be -- she's a
senior attorney at our firmand would al so be secondary
in the seat. And of course, you can see we have two
other attorneys at the firm all of which are very,

very involved in | ocal governnent work.

| wanted to -- | don't |ike tal king about
nysel f, but |I'm supposed to tonight. | have spent
considerable tinme, | started ny career in |ocal

governnment as a staff attorney for the House of
Representatives and throughout that tine devel oping
just a | ove and appreciation for |ocal governnments and
what they need in order to take care of the people's
noney and what they need in order for people |like you
to actually service your constituents.

| started out here in Riviera Beach,

graduat ed from Suncoast H gh School and then went to
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Tal | ahassee for ny undergraduate and | aw school
education. After | left being a staff attorney, | then
went on to do significant adm nistrative work before

t he Departnment of Business and Professional Regul ati on,
and then on to starting nmy own firmand maki ng sure
that we were growing in those areas as it relates to

| ocal governnents and governnents throughout this
st at e.

And t hroughout that tinme and that work, 1've
recei ved many accol ades for that work, sonme of the
stuff you'll see in your packet. But the things that
|'"'m-- a couple things I'm nost proud of is being
appoi nted as general counsel Designate of the National
Bar Associ ati on and bei ng awarded by the Tal | ahassee
Barristers a Hall of Fanme Award for ny years of | egal
work and a recipient of the National Bar Association
Heman Sweatt Award, which was presented by Attorney
Benjam n Crunp during his years and tine as President
of the National Bar Associ ation.

So very, very proud of that work. And now
much of those accol ades are because | lead a firm of
amazi ng | awers that cone before many entities and
offering themthe sane thing that we're offering you
tonight, and that is an opportunity to work cl osely

with you and advi se you, help you wth safeguards and
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maki ng sure that the statutes and interl ocal agreenents
and | eases and contracts and devel opnent agreenents and
all those things that are very, very inportant to a
communi ty redevel opnent organi zation, that we are able
to assist you in that way.

| wanted to go from here and introduce our
| ead attorney in this project, and that's Attorney
Chris Smth. And I'll et himtal k about hinself. 1'm
sorry, I will say, because | always tell himthat al
his pictures |ook |ike an al bumcover, so don't mnd
that. That's just him So let ne turn it over to
Attorney Chris Smth.

MR. SM TH. Good afternoon, Board.

Just a quick introduction of nyself. [|'ma
' 95 graduate of FSU College of Law, so |'ve practiced
| aw for over 25 years. | began ny legal career with a
firmin Fort Lauderdale, and we represented Al anp
Rent-a-Car, and | was in charge for about five years
negotiating all of their |eases nationwi de. So on
behal f of a mmjor corporation, | negotiated nost and
wote a lot of the | eases as Al anb began expansi on
nati onw de.

After that | left the firmand went to a firm
In which we did litigation on behalf of the Florida

League of Cities. Rivera Beach is not part of the

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 6/ 9/ 2021

56

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

sel f-insurance, and so we never had an opportunity to
represent Riviera Beach, but from Vero Beach to Key
West, | represented cities during litigation aspects of
it. So it was after a case was filed, after an

acci dent was done, | was in charge of prepping for
trial and even sitting in sone of the trials defending
muni ci palities fromeverything frompublic records
requests to auto wecks and stuff. Quite a |ot of
experience representing nmunicipalities once litigation
Is filed.

As Attorney Pittman nentioned, | served nmany
years in the Florida Legislature on the Rul es
Commttee, Vice Chair of the Rules Conmttee in the
House and in the Senate, in which we dealt with a | ot
of legislation and even revanped sone of the
| egi slation that you're dealing with. And as a Vice
Chair of the Rules Conmttee, it was ny job to nake
sure that the Legislature followed all of its rules and
that the House and the Senate conducted itself in a
manner that was spelled out by statute and by the
Constitution.

After leaving the Legislature, | was
appoi nt ed general counsel of the Broward Del egati on.
That is inportant, because | went from being the senior

nmenber of that delegation to now being its general
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counsel, its lawer. And | took that role very serious
in that we, in order to, as you know, file legislation
I n Tall ahassee as a local bill, there's a lot of things
that has to be done locally with your own rules, with

t he House rules, with the Senate rules and within
statute. So | had to make sure that was done.

But the reason | really nention that role is
| went from senior nenber policy maker to general
counsel, and | understand the difference in that. |
went fromsetting the policy to making sure that the
policy set by those elected is inplenented in a correct
manner .

And | take that role very serious and w |
take that role serious by serving as your general
counsel, not as a policy maker, but to follow the
direction of the policy nmakers and make sure that your
policies are inplenented in a way consistent with
Florida | aw and federal |aw

When it conmes to CRAs, |, in 1996, as a young
| awyer, started the Fort Lauderdal e Comrunity
Redevel opnent Associ ati on, which was a | ocal
associ ation which was the precursor to the Fort
Lauderdale CRA. |'ve worked for many years with the
Fort Lauderdale CRA, and as a matter of fact, |'ve

wor ked on both sides of the table with the CRA,
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benefiting and using sone of the prograns within the
CRA wthin Fort Lauderdale. And |I'm proud to announce
I n 2020, ny project won the redevel opnment project of
the year for the state of Florida, a project that | did
In conjunction with the Fort Lauderdal e CRA

| wll be the attorney sitting here at your
neetings, advising you upon request. | will be the
attorney giving you the | egal advice on a day to day,
but | will be one of many to provide counsel to you and
w || seek the assistance of the next person speaking,
Attorney WIllianms, as well as other expertise in our --
wthin our firmand with outside counsel that we may
fromtinme to tinme develop. But | will be the person at
t he day-to-day neetings to nake sure that we do
everything in a |legal and orderly fashion.

MR, PITTMAN. Ckay, thank you.

Qur next speaker is Attorney Opal
Mcki nney-W Il lianms. And she, |like ne, doesn't like to
tal k about herself a lot, but I wll tell you the
reason | brought her on the Pittman Law G oup is
because of her particular expertise in the Sunshine Law
and in public records |law and in procurenent |aw. And
there's probably no one better in this state. And |
stole her from-- over a year ago now, froma |arge | aw

firmthat pretty much runs things in north Florida, and
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for our firmto be able to bring her on board and be
able to offer her to you tonight is a significant
achi evenent .

So Attorney Opal Mkinney-WIIians.

M5. MCKI NNEY-W LLI AMS:  Thank you, Attorney
Pi tt man.

Good eveni ng, everyone, Madam Chair,

Comm ssioners, M. Evans. |It's a pleasure to neet you
all. 1'mgrateful for the opportunity to be here.

My nane is Opal Mkinney-WIIlians, and as
Attorney Pittman said, | amproud to be a senior
attorney at Pittman Law G oup.

Alittle bit about ne. | ama proud product
of M am -Dade County public schools. | attended
Florida A&M Uni versity where | graduated with ny
Bachelor's in crimnal justice, and | attended Florida
State Col |l ege of Law.

| have had over 18 years experience
representing |ocal governnents, school boards and
counties and doing a little bit of work for cities
al so. Over the years, |'ve been able to work -- 1've
had the pl easure of working with a variety of |ocal
governnents, advising themon a variety of issues,

I ncl uding, as Attorney Pittman said, Sunshine Law,

Public Records Act, procurenent. That's been a | ot of
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what |'ve done.

But |'ve also been able to work with, sitting
nostly as general counsel, working with | ocal
governnents on property acquisition and di sposition,
public-private partnerships, intergovernnental and
I nterl ocal agreenents and arrangenents and general
conpliance with state and federal |aw

|"'mvery proud of the work that |'ve done
over the years. As Attorney Pittman said, it's a good
thing to be able to do work for governnent that's doing
work for our people. So |'m happy to be here, and |
think at this point we're ready to answer any questions
you m ght have.

MR, PITTMAN. Yes, and before we do that, |
want to add one thing that Attorney Chris Smth left
out. And one of the reasons we're so happy to have him
work with us is expert in Robert's Rules of Order that
| think you may have -- you started the groundwork of
that, not really in |l aw school but as chai rman of
commttees in the Legislature. But that is one of the
strong points that | also think he'll bring to this
body. Oten it won't always be what you want to hear,
but it will be the letter of Robert's Rules, and |
think that's really inportant.

And before we take your questions, listen, we
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1| know that what you do here is very, very inportant.

2| There was a |law put in place that provided for an

3| opportunity for blighted areas of our community, for

4| areas where our seniors live, for areas that deserved
5| opportunity to contribute to their own destiny. W

6| know that that's the work that you do here, and we know
7| whether it's rehabilitative or whether it's

8 | conservation or redevel opnent, we know that what's nost
9| necessary is that you do it within the confines of the
10| | aw.

11 We al so know that we are not the policy

12 | maker. You are the policy maker. But in your interest
13| to be creative and to think outside the box, it's very
14 | inportant for us to nmake sure that you color wthin the
15| lines. That's what we wll be here to do.

16 And we thank you for the opportunity. W

17| thank the commttee for giving us the opportunity to

18 | stand before you today. But we know you're very

19 | serious about this work, and we know that we'll be a

20| partner that will be -- our interest init wll be

21| congruent with yours.

22 So with that, we're happy to take any

23 | questions you may have for us. And Madam Chair, thank
24 | you.

25 CHAIR LANI ER  Thank you, sir.
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COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you.

M. Pittman, where is 2655 North Ccean Drive,
Suite 303?

MR PITTMAN: It's right across fromthe
Ocean Mall, the 2655 buil ding.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: |Is that the high-rise
t hat --

MR PITTMAN. It's right on the corner where
Bl ue Heron turns into North Ccean.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: So it's the tall
buil di ng --

MR PITTMAN. Tall building wwth the --

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Gar age.

MR PITTMAN. -- reflective -- the garage and
the reflective w ndows.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: Right, right. So you'll
have an office right there?

MR. PITTMAN. Qur office is there.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Ckay.

MR PITTMAN:  And it has been since 2006.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Gkay. \When you | ook at
It on Trip -- on Google maps, it looks like it's sort

of in the Ccean Walk Mall. |'mthinking, no, you can't
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1| have an office over there.

2 MR PITTMAN. | wouldn't mind it there. But
31 y'all could help with that, but --

4 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Are you high enough to
5| have a good view?

6 MR. PITTMAN. No, we -- Councilwoman, we've
7| been there a long tine. And it's a great |ocation

8 | because, you know, listen, | grew up here. Wen

9| think about that property across the street fromthere,
10| | get -- when I'min the office, get to |ook at what's
11| real potential and real opportunity. And the things

12 | that even have been done there to date is, | think,

13| headed in the direction of where we need to go.

14 So yes, we're there, and we will do office

15| tinme there. | nmean M. Smith, Attorney Smith |ives

16 | right in Fort Lauderdale, so being here with you wll
17| be easy. And Ms. Mkinney-Wllianms will be down during
18 | the course of the neetings and both working in the

19| office during those days and the days before as

20 | necessary.

21 COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you.
22 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.
23 Are there any other questions for the Pittman

24 | Law Group, specifically M. Sean Pittman or his staff,

25 | partners?
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1 VR. PI TTMAN: Part ners.
2 CHAI R LANIER.  Ckay.
3 MR PITTMAN. Don't say staff. That wll

4| cost ne.
S CHAIR LANTER  No, | didn't nmean to di sparage

6| and say staff --

7 MR. PITTMAN:  No. Thank you, Madam Chair.

8 COW SSI ONER M LLER- ANDERSON: Madam Chai r .

9 CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

10 VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: | just wanted to

11| say thank you all for your presentation. And the only
12 | question | have is so the two of them would be

13| available to attend the neetings when we have them each
14 | week or whenever we have the neetings. W would have
15| soneone here present during those neetings?

16 MR. PITTMAN. Yes, Councilwoman. And

17 primarily Attorney Chris Smth will be the one here.

18 VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Ckay.
19 MR. PITTMAN. But we've committed al so
20 | Attorney Opal Mkinney-WIllians -- sorry. Her nane's

21| so long, it's --

22 VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Kind of Iike

23| mne. Like mne, right.

24 MR, PITTMAN. Like yours; like yours. So you

25 | rel ate.
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VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

MR, PITTMAN:  But she will be down as
support. So oftentines you'll have two | awers here,
if not all the tine.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Ckay, all right.
Vel l, thank you all so nuch for presenting. G eat
I nf or mati on.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: M. Pittnman, thank you
again --

MR. PI TTMAN:  Counci | man.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  -- for being a part of
the city for many years and obvi ously having an
I nterest in serving as our counsel.

Availability to the Council and to the staff.
| understand that we will have representation here at
our Council neetings, whether -- or our CRA neetings,
whether it's once or twice a nonth. But accessibility.
We tend to call our |legal counsel on a regul ar basis.
So how accessible wll that be? Are we going to get a
bill for those phone calls or are you guys going to
just be accessible to us for those constant phone

calls, because we want to nake sure we're prepared and
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1| ready for these neetings comng in.
2 MR, PITTMAN. Absolutely. And listen, it's

3| what we do now, so it's not outside of our routine with

41 other clients. And the good thing about it -- because
5| | know you -- if Attorney Smth doesn't get back to you
6| in 15 mnutes, you'll probably call nme or you'll cal

7| Attorney Opal Mkinney-WIllianms. But you also know

8 | Attorney Jasnmyne Henderson in our office and Attorney
9| dayton Know es. That would not be an issue.

10 And | think as it relates to even the current
11| work that we do, |'mnot sure that anyone here woul d
12| say that we're not extrenely responsive. And that

13| can't change because of the work we have to do here is
14| for taxpayers and for people who expect us to show up
15| for work.

16 COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Perfect. And can you
17| tell us a little bit about your experience with |arge,
18 | conpl ex devel opnent agreenents, property acquisition?
19| And we have sonme mmjor projects that we're currently
20 | working on, so | want to hear a little bit about that
21 | experience and how it can be beneficial for what we're
22 | doi ng here.

23 M5. MCKI NNEY- W LLI AMS:  Ckay, so the

24 | experience that |'ve had has been sitting as general

25| counsel to local governnents, working through
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devel opnent agreenents with an eye towards the issues
and the particular laws that the |ocal governnent has
to deal wth.

So oftentines the devel oper, there wll be
separate counsel who may be involved in drafting the
particul ars of the devel opnent agreenent. Sonetines ny
job is to review all docunents to provide insight, to
revise, to prepare with an eye toward what the
governnment is in need of. And so that's what |'ve done
for every local governnent that |'ve done -- been
i nvolved in. Certain -- there have been certain
projects that were public-private partnerships and then
ot her projects involving developnent. And so that's
how | ' ve approached it.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  That was ny question --

MR, PITTMAN. And, let ne add -- oh, sorry.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes, that was ny
foll owup question, just your involvenent in the
public-private sector of devel opnent and that
devel opnent aspect, because that's sonething that we' ve
been speaki ng about, especially within the conferences
that we've travel ed throughout the country. And
direction with the devel opnent we're doing on the Cty
and CRA level is the P3 option.

MR PITTMAN.  Sure.
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1 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: And we' re | ooki ng at

2| that, and we want to nmake sure that we have sone

3| insight and we have counsel that can kind of protect

4| and cover us and guide us through these steps.

S MR SMTH Well, fromnmny standpoint, right

6| nowin Broward County, Broward County and the Cty of

7| Fort Lauderdale are seeking to do a P3 project for a

8| joint Gty Hall. | served as one of the counsels for a
9 | devel oper that presented for that. W subsequently

10| pulled out the last mnute for other reasons, but | was
11| part of devel oping that devel opnent plan and submtting
12| it to Broward County.

13 So not fromthe nunicipal standpoint, but

14| fromthe devel oper standpoint, |'ve recently worked on

15| a P3 project, Wiite's Construction and a coupl e of

16 | others, that presented for that project in Broward

17| County.

18 COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you, M. Pittman.
19 And thank you.

20 MR. PITTMAN: Thank you, Councilnman, for the

21 | questions.

22 CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

23 Are there any ot her questions for this group?
24 | Very good.

25 Thank you so nuch for your presentation, sir.
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MR. PITTMAN. Thank you all for having us.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

CRA Director.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, we're awaiting M. Haygood. He stepped out to
allow for privacy for the firmto be able to nmake their
presentati on.

CHAIR LANIER  Ckay, very good. Do we
have -- | guess we'll wait until after the second
presentation for our public coment for this item

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So | guess | want to ask

a question of the Executive Director. So obviously,

this is transactional in nature that we'll be using the
law firm But, you know, in the unlikely -- and I
woul d hope that this is highly unlikely. | nean we

woul dn't be expecting any kind of litigation services
fromour counsel, wll we?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if I may?

CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: No. That
woul d be sonmething that that woul d be probably nore

specialized. And then the -- your counsel woul d
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provide a recommendation as to who would be best suited
to handle the litigation.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, good eveni ng,

M. Haygood. You can proceed.

MR. HAYGOOD: Madam Chair, Council nenbers,
good afternoon. For the record, ny nane is M chael
Haygood.

And you have a copy of ny response. |'mjust
going to highlight sonme of the areas that | think are
rel evant to serving as general counsel, not only to
this CRA, but the other CRAs that | represent.

My initial training out of |aw school was for
municipalities. | represented -- | worked for the Gty
of West Pal m Beach, the Gty of Mam and Boca Raton.
| n those positions | served various departnents.

Pl anning was an area that |1've wanted to be invol ved
in, but also did procurenent and al so pensi ons.

After leaving the Assistant City Attorney

position -- ny last position was with the City of Boca
Raton -- | actually started working for CRAs. As |'ve
listed in ny response, | actually established the --

established in the sense of drafting all docunents
necessary to set up the CRAs in Wst Pal m Beach, Boca

Rat on, Boynton Beach, Port St. Lucie, and actually the
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Cty of Riviera Beach Redevel opnent Agency al so.

Since then | have worked as general counsel,
or currently work as general counsel, obviously, for
the Riviera Beach Community Redevel opnent Agency and
the City of Lauderdal e Lakes Community Redevel opnent
Agency. | also serve as special counsel to the City of
Fort Lauderdal e Community Redevel opnent Agency.

Sonme of the things |'ve done in the CRAs was,
as | said, draft formation docunents for the creation
of the agency. |'ve served as issuer's counsel -- this
Is in West Pal mBeach -- for the initial bond issue
that was backed with TIF funding. | think it was
one -- | knowit was the first in Pal mBeach County.

At that tinme the statute had not been tested,
and we were being chall enged on whether or not we could
| ssue the bond issue by the State Attorney's Ofice.
We established the fact that it was constitutional.
There was a big question for a long tinme whether or not
the statute was constitutional because of the way the
TIF was conputed. And sone -- there was sone areas,
| egal areas that thought that was actually a bond issue
and that the CRA should have been -- gone to
ref erendum

| also worked in -- | actually served as

I ssuer's counsel for a bond issue that we did for the
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1| Kravis Center parking. This was when the Kravis was

2 first established, so that's been a few years.

3 At that tinme | was doing also em nent domai n.
4 | did the em nent domain work for Quadrille Boul evard,
5| which is the street that goes from-- | guess it was a

6| bypass, if you will.

7 | worked in Boca Raton Community

8 | Redevel opnent Agency when it was first fornmed. Also in
9| Boynton Beach and Port St. Lucie. Again, nost of that
10 | work centered around establishing the CRA and getting
11| it up and running.

12 In the Fort Lauderdal e Conmunity

13 | Redevel opnent Agency | actually served as specia

14| counsel in the negotiations of several devel opnent

15| agreenents. One project | think is about conpleted

16| now. It was -- | don't renenber the nunber of units.

171 1 think it was about 200 units that was designated as
18 | workforce housing. The Cty actually provided, or the
19| CRA provided a $2 million grant to the devel oper for

20| this property. There are also several smaller projects
21| that we did. | negotiated devel opnent agreenents on

22 | Systron (phonetic).

23 | currently serve as the general counsel for
24 | the Lauderdal e Lakes Community Redevel opnent Agency.

25| W did quite a bit -- | don't know how famliar you are
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1 with the CGty, but we did quite a bit of acquisition.

2 They were concerned that they didn't have any
3 | new housing stock, so we acquired 20 acres for a m xed
4| use project, which is called the Bella Vista at

5| Lauderdale Lakes. It included a library. They didn't
6| have a library, so it included the construction of a

7| library and the construction of an apartnent

8| building -- all of this is on Gakland Park Boul evard --
9| and did sonme townhouses in the project also. W also
10 | acted as the counsel for the financing of the library
11| when the CRA went out and borrowed funds to actually

12| build the library and then gave it to Broward County.
13 The City is currently constructing an 84

14| single famly hone devel opnent by Pulte Hones. |

15| actually went in and we bought the property initially
16 | from-- bought it out of bankruptcy. It had been

17| foreclosed by a bank out of Birm ngham | don't recall
18 | the nane of the bank. W bought the property, held it
19| for a while, and recently, | think within the |ast few
20 | years, sold it to Pulte Hones. They held a very active
21 | mcro business |oan program and we also had to

22 | pborrow -- had | egal counsel for the purchase of a

23| $50 mllion line of credit.

24 |' ve been here, as you know, for quite a few

25| years, and so have seen a lot. |'ve been involved in a
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| ot of things that the CRA's done over those years,
I ncluding the -- including setting up the new markets
tax credit information.

We al so acted as -- there was originally an
agreenent between the City and the CRA about the
operations of the Marina. W negotiated all those
docunents and al so acted as issuance counsel for the
| ssuance of the revenue bonds that were used to do the
i nfrastructure i nprovenents here at the Mrina.

| " ve sonewhat specialized now in affordable
housing. W also represent the Pal m Beach County --
make sure | get the nanme right -- the Trust. | think
It's the Trust of Pal m Beach County, Land Trust of Palm
Beach County. W're currently negotiating a contract
bet ween two nonprofits to build a project that's going
to be out on, | think down in south county, out in Lake
Wrth at | east.

At one point we served, or | served as
general counsel for the Pal m Beach County Housi ng
Fi nance Authority.

We enjoy the work. W enjoy specifically the
housing. |If there is an issue that cones up, which |
don't have expertise in, such as the -- we had an issue
when we were doing the construction here, we brought in

Mal col m Cunni nghamto act, who is a specialist in
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construction law. And we also used a different firm
when we had to negotiate the | ease -- excuse ne -- for
the Ti ki Bar.

Really, that's in a nutshell ny background.
Again, | enjoy the work, and if you have any questions
"1l be glad to try to answer them

CHAIR LANI ER Thank you for your
presentati on.

Are there any questions for M. Haygood in
regards to his presentation?

Very good. Thank you so nuch, sir.

MR HAYGOCOD: Thank you.

CHAIR LANIER  Appreciate it. W especially
appreciate all the hard work your provide to the Gty.
Thank you so nuch.

M. Evans, is there anything else that we
have to have, to do in regards to this itenf

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,
Madam Chair. Wth respect to you' ve had the
presentations, if there's no further questions for the
entities that have submtted, now is the discussion and
del i berati on conponent of the item

There is sone information that staff is
requesting fromthe Board. W do have sone fornms, | do

believe, for you to rank the nunber one and nunber two
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firm The firmthat obviously has the nost nunber ones
I's the highest ranked firm

W will ask that we go through each of the
el ected officials to provide us your nunber one and
nunber two, and then the clerk will receive the
docunent and then tally the scores. But you do need to
state publicly who the nunber one and nunber two you
have on your rankings or scoring sheet.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, sir.

Bef ore we nove on to discussion in regards to
that item we're going to take care of two itens of
busi ness. Nunber one, there's a public coment for
this particular item and we have to break for our
regul ar public coment for our residents.

Madam Clerk, if you can go ahead wth the
public comment for this particular item

THE CLERK: For this itemwe have Mary
Brabham f or public comments.

M5. BRABHAM  (Good evening. M. Mary
Brabham Rivi era Beach.

| was glad to see that others did apply from
| think it was -- | think she said Leon County and
M am - Dade, Fl ori da.

| also would |ike to know, in order to build

on our strength, for sonmeone to find out why did they
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1| wthdraw. You know, sonetines, you know, they can al so
2| give us sonme critiqueness as well, regardl ess whet her

3] or not they withdrew or not. That's just like with a

4| student. W have to find out, you know, where they at
5| in order for you to neet the standards of where they

6| are. So that was one thing that | wanted to say.

7 And these attorneys here, you all know them
8| very, very well. Nowis the tine to critique themif

91 you would like themto step up their ganme, because as
10 | everybody know, all over the | andscape it's quite

11| different now W are total in different settings.

12 Pittman Group nmade nention about Leon County
13| School Board. W need nore -- I'mgoing to say it --
14| teeth and nails in our representations so that they can
15| bring home the neat and butter for this city here. W
16 | are not going to continuously pay this noney here and
171 we do not receive neat and butter.

18 So I want you all to consider that, and if

19| it's anything that you all need to bring to, you know,
20| so that they can -- they like to know too where they

21| at, even though they're in the rankings, but they need
22 | to know too, because a | ot of tinmes when neetings go on
23 | and then one of the Council, some of the Council people
24 | may bring up sonething.

25 And this is the tine for you, as a Board, to
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do your homework. They are famliar with us and we are
famliar with them and we do | ove them but we know,
and | know for a fact, that you need to critique them
to whereas to get their teeth and nail in
representation and neat and butter.

Now, Sean, Attorney Sean Pittnman nade nention

about Benjamin Crunp. | did read that article. He is
a mentor. He love -- | believe that they went to
school together or they did sonething. It was a great

article. But please consider that.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you so nuch,
Ms. Brabham

|s that the public comment for this itenf

THE CLERK: For this item yes.

CHAIR LANIER: At this nmonent we'll take our
public comments fromthe residents. Please be rem nded
t he CRA Board of Conmm ssioners has adopted rul es of
decorum governi ng public conment during official
neetings, which has been posted at the front desk. In
an effort to preserve order, if any of the rules are
not adhered to, the Comm ssion or Chair may have any
di sruptive speaker or attendee renoved fromthe podi um
fromthe neeting and/or the building if necessary.

Pl ease govern yoursel ves accordingly.

Public comments shall begin at 7:30, unless
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there's no further business of the CRA, which in that
event, it shall begin sooner. |In addition, if any item
IS being considered at 7:30, then comments fromthe
public shall begin imediately after the item has
concl uded.

Any person who would Iike to speak during
public comment, please fill out a public coment card
| ocated at the front desk and give it to the staff
before the public coment section is announced.

Madam d er k.

THE CLERK: W have J. B. D xson, followed by
Mary Brabham

M5. DIXSON: J. B. Dixson, Singer Island in
Ri vi era Beach.

First, on behalf of everybody who listens to

t hese proceedi ngs at honme and who cone here and sit

here, | would really like to ask the Council people to
pl ease use your m crophones. |'msitting in the second
row. | cannot understand a word, other than Chai rwoman
Lani er, who uses her m crophone. It's really, really

difficult to hear. And when you watch it on tel evision
at home, it's also very difficult to understand what
people are saying. You need to put your nouth next to
your m crophone. Thank you.

The reason that | came up here toni ght was
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really to go back not so nmuch to the public art
subj ect, but the financing part.

| think that we've heard a lot fromthe
public that they want the priorities, like water, to be
paid attention to. And | think that that's the intent
of the Council when they ask the CRA and |'m sure
they'll also ask the City to | ook at where those funds
can be spent, because nobst people do not understand,
and | think that both the CRA and the City needs
perhaps to educate people in the fact that there is not
just one big pot of nobney in either organi zation.

And | know you all know that, but other
people don't know that. They think there's one big pot
of noney, and they don't understand. And | nost of the
time don't understand which ones are comng fromgrants
that are restrictive. |If we've applied for a grant for
a community garden, we have to do a garden. You know,
we cannot do a park. Well, | guess we could probably
do a park. But, you know, we can't do a playground,
let's say.

And if we have applied for funds for art,
they can only be spent on art, is ny understandi ng.

And if I'"'mnot correct, we really need -- you need to
tell me and | think you need to tell a lot of people

every tinme you go to do sonething like that, |ike
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public art, that soneone applied for a grant, they got
the grant, hooray, hooray, it can only be used for
these things. |t cannot be used, let's say, for the
water plant, just |ike the water plant nobney cannot be
used for public art.

| know that sounds very sinplistic, but |
t hi nk nost people do not understand that and do not
under st and the budgeting process. And | know t hat
you' re about to go into your budget process, and |
t hi nk that woul d hel p peopl e who cone to those neetings
to understand better how you all ocate funds and how
sonetinmes you nust allocate funds. Thank you.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

Madam d er k.

THE CLERK: Mary Brabham

M5. BRABHAM Mary Brabham Riviera Beach.

Rei magi ne Riviera Beach. The workshop | ast
ni ght was very informative, very, very, very. | would
say it was excellent. M. Brabham woul d grade that A
And residents, this is our tine in the sun.

Now, the next workshop wll be on -- please
correct me if I"'mwong -- | think June the 15th. It
wll be on June the 15th at 6:00 p. m

Now, | know that Ms. Ernestine and the rest

of us | adies that canvasses you, a |ot of tinmes you
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1| tell us we don't want to talk, Ms. Brabham You don't
2| have to talk. Your presence is nore valuable than you
3 | opening your nouth, because it shows our working staff
41 that you are attentive. And you do not have to speak.
5| It is enough of us to dial ogue what you want conveyed.
6 So Ms. Brabham says that we hear you, and

7| we're proud of our Gty Manager and the Board trying to
8 | nove us in sonme things where we need to be noved at.

9 | attended M. Earl Davis' funeral on | ast

10| Saturday. And | constantly stress ny condol ences to

11| that famly, and | ask that the community pray for his
12| wife as well as the famly to give her strength.

13| M. Davis was truly a servant. See, we cone to serve
14| and not to be served. You may not like it, but it's

15| part of the scope, and a | ot of tinmes you build on what
16 | you don't Iike.

17 So Earl Davis did a lot for this comunity,
18 | and we do appreciate his service. He had a saying that
19| says -- and no one could say it better than his sister:
20 | What's on your mnd and who put it there? So

21 | Ms. Brabham going to take that one, because he woul d

22 | always tell nme that too.

23 So, and Ms. Charlotte Duval (phonetic),

24 | everybody know Ms. Charlotte. She would attend the

25| meetings here. She is very, very ill, and | ask that
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1| you all keep her in your thoughts and prayers for a

2 | speedy recovery. So you all think about those.

3 And to all of the bereaved famlies,
4| Ms. Brabham shares her condol ences with you. [|'ve been
5| there; |'ve been there. Your pain is your pain, but we

6| all share a pain. So I constantly say that | think

7| about you all. And when I"'minforned -- | can't be to
8| everything. So ny thoughts and prayers are with you as
9| well as our comunity. Thank you.

10 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, Ms. Brabham

11 M. Evans, do you have any comments for those
12 | public conments for the itemand for the regular public
13 | comrent ?

14 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,

15| Madam Chair, just briefly.

16 The next workshop for Reimagi ne R viera Beach
17 1 i s Tuesday, June 15th, and there will be two nore

18 | sessions after that. Every Tuesday we w |l be having
19 | that session for the nonth of June. And if you haven't
20| registered, please register online. |If not, you're

21 | nore than welconme to show up at the Wells Recreation

22| Center at 6 p.m, and you can register on site.

23 That's it, Madam Chair.

24 CHAIR LANIER: Al right, very good, thank

25| you. All right, so direct us in our next endeavor
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here. Are we going to just rank and then pass it down
to you and then you tell us the results, or how do we
do it? W discuss it? | don't know what it is there
to discuss, but maybe there nmay be sone questions that
the Board wants to discuss with each other.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: So Madam
Chair, ny recommendation would be for the Board, if the
Board wi shes to have a di scussion, they can certainly
do that. |If not, you can go straight to the ranking.
After you do wite in your ranking, if then you can
call upon each of your coll eagues to conmmunicate their
ranki ng, and then pass the formdown. W wll then
have the Cerk tally it and then provide the
i nformation to the Board.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. Are there any
comments, or do you want to bring sonmething up in
regards to this item Board?

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So just out of
curiosity, |ooking at the tabulation sheets that was
done by the evaluation commttee, two questions. |
want to guess at these initials of these eval uators,
but can sonebody say who those are?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,
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Madam Chair, if | may.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: The
eval uation commttee was Scott Evans, M. Annetta
Jenkins and M. Randy Sher nman.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Ckay, foll ow up.

CHAIR LANIER.  Yes, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay. And it appears
that fromthe score sheet, that there's a line for oral
presentations. Ws that conducted with the eval uators?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if | my?

CHAIR LANIER  Go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: No, there
was no oral presentation. They were ranked solely on
t he book.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  COkay, all right.

CHAIR LANIER: Al right, very good. |If
there are not any other questions in regard to this
item please fill out your form ranking form

MR, HAYGOOD: And sign it.

CHAIR LANFER  And sign it and --

COW SSI ONER MCOY: It says nane and
Si gnat ur e.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Correct.
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CHAI R LANI ER Nane and si gnature.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Print and sign.

CHAIR LANIER  Print and sign.

Al right, very good. There's only two here,
so we'll start down with Comm ssioner --

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  |I'msorry. Never m nd.
Di sregard.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Conmi ssi oner Lawson, could you
provi de your rankings, please, sir.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Ranki ng nunber one,
Pittman Law G oup; nunber two, J. M chael Haygood.

CHAI R LANI ER Comm ssi oner M Coy.

COMM SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes, Madam Chai r.
J. Mchael Haygood, nunber two; Pittman Law G oup,
nunber one.

CHAI R LANI ER: Conmi ssi oner Bot el .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Pittman Law G oup,
nunber one; M chael Haygood, nunber two.

CHAI R LANI ER: Conmi ssioner M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Pittman Law
G oup, nunber one.

CHAIR LANIER:  And for the Chair, Pittman Law
G oup, nunber one; J. M chael Haygood, nunber two.

W'l |l pass these down. You can go over

t hese, and you can provide us with sone feedback on
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1| that, and we will wait until you do that.

2 And we're going to go ahead, and M. Evans,
3| since you' re not doing the ranking, could you go ahead
4| and give us your comments for this evening, please.

S EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: | have no
6 | comments, Madam Chair.

7 CHAIR LANI ER:  Very good. Comments by the

8 | general counsel.

9 MR HAYGOOD: No, ma'am

10 CHAIR LANIER: Starting with M. Dougl as

11| Lawson. Conm ssi oner Lawson, do you have any comments

12| for this evening?

13 COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.
14 CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

15 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  As a just followup for
16 | our Procurenent Departnent, | want to nake sure that

17| nmoving forward we provide the utnbst exposure to the
18| Gty with every solicitation that goes out fromthis

19| Board, every RFP or RFQ ITN, any job entry. | just

20| don't want it to be a |l ocal exposure, because we're not
21 | doing the nmaxi mum opportunity or benefit for the City
22 | of Riviera Beach.

23 So we want to give the opportunity to really
24 | develop and grow this community with international

25| recognition. So the only way that we can do that is by
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marketing the city properly and effectively. | think
that we have to do a better job wth that.

|'"'m so appreciative of the firns that have
applied, but they're only going to see it if they're
| ooking at the Pal m Beach Post or our Gty website, and
that's unacceptable. W didn't even -- go ahead.

Ms. Pensel, if you wanted to comment on that.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, | think I know what Ms. Pensel's going to
communi cate, so | may be able to save her a trip.

We did put it out on DenmandStar. Wen staff
said the website, it's the website through DemandSt ar,
which is a national exposure. So it went out
national ly.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  So why was it not
pl aced on the CRA Association, like the -- or
associ ations |ike the FRA, National Board, Florida
Boar d?

CHAIR LANIER M. Evans.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: As it
relates to those particular outfits, | don't have a
response. Those are certainly sone things that we can
put it out. But we did put it out on our DemandStar.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Okay. And just the

comments noving forward. |'msatisfied wwth the firm
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we've selected, |['"'mexcited wwth the firmwe've
sel ect ed.

W need to do a better job wth every
procurenment option that we have, every RFP that goes
out, because receiving one or two responses for this
muni ci pality that's on the up and up, that is noving in
a great direction, | want to see nore and give nore
opportunities for our residents to pick from

Those are nmy comments for the night. Thank
you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANI ER  Thank you, sir.

Counci | man M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Just a coupl e things.

So in response to that, Ms. Pensel suggested that it
was posted on the CRA, the Gty and on DemandStar. And
| tell you, | have this problemall the tine. Wen you
go to the CRA and to the Gty, it loops you to
DemandSt ar .

So you can m nus one, because | did downl oad
t he packet, and that doesn't necessarily nean that
soneone is interested in the solicitation when they
download. |It's just as a nenber of the governing body,
| just find it so difficult that | don't even know what
the City is soliciting for, and I|"'mnow forced to go to

this website, create a user account, and | get all of
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1| these nessages just to know what we're putting out.

2 | had soneone ask ne: Wy did you guys pull
3| back on the solicitation for Utility District security
4| canmeras? And |I'msaying to nyself | have no i dea what
5| you're referring to, but | have to literally go to the
6| website that the general public does.

7 So I don't believe that everybody that

8 | actually accessed those links and selects it actually
9| has interest in downl oading or interest in soliciting.
10| So | don't really believe that we get as nmany hits as,
11| you know, as we hear, but that's the only way you can
12 | access the information.

13 The second itemwas, you know, Dr. Botel,

14| thank you for bringing that itemregarding the

15| painting, because, you know, | | ook sonetinmes to try to
16 | figure out do we -- we have a lot of responsibility,

17| and | think nore inportantly, the nmurals and the street
18| art, which | don't support us putting a sculpture in

19| the mddle of Avenue E. That's just an acci dent

20| waiting to happen.

21 But | think we need to readdress our entire
22 | priorities for the CRA. W' ve purchased a nunber of

23 | properties, both on the Gty and CRA side, and it seens
24| |ike we're buying properties with no real, you know,

25| short-term but long-termplan wthin the next tw and
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a half years on how we execute and how we bring this
all together, because if we're relying on the private
sector to hel p devel op, we have to have skin in the
gane besi des the property.

So there are sone other things that | woul d
expect, like | was surprised to see in the devel opnent
agreenent that we basically contribute alnmost a mllion
dollars in two properties, in two parcels, wth nothing
in return.

So I think going forward there is going to be
sone nonetary contribution when we begin to do a Phase

|1 redevel opnent, or | think now, which is back on the

tabl e, the Avenue F and Bl ue Heron project -- Blue
Water, | believe it was, or sonething of that -- Blue
Wat er ?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Bl ue
Lagoon.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: Bl ue Lagoon proj ect.

So, you know, | nean art is good, but the
purpose is, as | heard nentioned today, is to reduce
slumand blight, and I don't want us to get too far
with that, because we can paint pretty pictures and
still have crunbling infrastructure.

So, and | would hope, you know, when we bring

this back that we kind of take a | ook, which is kind of
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1| an opportune tine that now we're going into budget

2| discussions, to |look at how we reallocate not just the
3| 160,000 that we have set aside for nurals, but overall
41 our priorities as to what we're doing in the CRA

5| because it seens like déja vu and |'ve seen this novie
6| before, seens |ike we keep tal king about the sane

7| thing.

8 And as well as the special events. |'m being
9 | asked about special events that | have no idea. And we
10 | ought to be a pronotion conpany at this point, the

11| nunber of special events that we're doing. And you

12 | know, the very first thing that I would expect is |

13 | want to see what our return on investnent is. Dd we
14| get, you know, a certain nunber of participants, and
15| you know, what was the overall consensus, what was the
16 | survey, what was the buy-in or what did fol ks take out
171 of it other than having a party.

18 And | astly, M. Evans, | know | asked this
19 | question yesterday in our neeting about Phase |1, but
20 | was there sone sort of tineline that you indicated as
21| far as when we'll see that again, or in light of the
22 | tax credit applications?

23 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam

24| Chair, if I may?

25 CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.
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EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Wth
respect to the Phase I, we are noving forward with
bringing an item before you all for consideration as it
relates to the application for the tax -- state tax
credit program and having the Board nake a
determnation if that is the project that they wish to
support as they go through the phases, as well as the
di scussion as it relates to site control, because there
has to be sone type of an agreenent in place with
regards to site control, and then the consulting,
getting the consultant cued up and ready to review the
financial structure.

So there's a couple of things that wll be
com ng back before the Board. | wll| put together a
tinmeline and send that to the Board via e-nail so you
have a tentative schedul e and when we can anticipate
sone itens com ng before the Board for decisions.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: One last thing, Madam
Chair.

CHAIR LANIER: Yes, one last thing. Go
ahead, sir.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: M. Evans, the
conversation that | brought to you yesterday regarding
Anmbassadors' pay for holiday, do you want to respond to

that, or is that best fitted for a budget di scussion?

Fl orida Court Reporting
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But | wanted to see if we can retro during the fiscal
year now.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,
Madam Chair, if | may.

| did have the conversation with staff today.
We are having a discussion tonmorrow. |[It's in regards
to the conpensation for sonme of our frontline
personnel, that they don't -- they're not entitled to
or do not receive the sane type of benefits that are on
the Gty side.

So one of the things that we wll be offering
to those enpl oyees that do work holidays, they would
get the sane type of pay as their coll eagues on the
Cty side. Also, we wll ook for those that worked
Menorial Day to conpensate themthe sane way we woul d
conpensate persons that worked Menorial Day on the Gty
si de.

But as part of the budget discussions, we are
going to look to create parity both on the CRA and City
side with respect to conpensati on and conpensati on
phi | osophi es and benefits.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANTER Al right, thank you, sir.

Comm ssi oner Bot el .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Thank you.

Fl orida Court Reporting
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Am | speaking into ny m crophone, M. D xson?
Thank you.

| first wanted to thank M. Haygood for his
service. That was a very, very difficult decision, |I'm
sure not only for ne, but for ny coll eagues as well.

| want to rem nd people that we'll have the
dedi cati on and opening of the Singer I|sland conmunity
garden on June 20th from4 to 6 p.m Bring your dads.
That's Father's Day. But it will be fun for them we
proni se.

And pl ease, col |l eagues, mark your cal endars.
It's going to be a very nice event and | hope that you
can all join us there for that event.

On Sunday, this comng Sunday from-- that's
the 13th, from2 to 5 at the Ccean Wal k Mall under the
bl ue awni ngs, we'll have a celebration of Wrld Oceans
Day where you can learn how to cook a lionfish, join
Loggerhead Marine Life staff to help us clean up the
beach, hear about dol phin research, neet sone | ocal
di vers and a host of other interesting ocean rel ated
t hi ngs.

As did one of our speakers, | would like to
encour age people to attend the Rei magi ne Riviera Beach
wor kshop. It was such an informative presentation | ast

evening. And they'll feed you. So get out there next
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Tuesday. It's at Wells. Not here. It's over at
Wells, and it's at 6:00 on next Tuesday.

And this norning | attended the Pal m Beach
County Housing Steering Conmttee neeting along with
Ms. Jenkins. And | would like to know if we can pl ease
ask Ms. Jenkins to do a report about housing at one of
our upcom ng neetings. W need to adopt a housing plan
for the city. W need to conmt to doing affordable
housi ng wor kshops so we can understand, all of us
understand the need that we have here.

We need a vigorous affordable housing trust
fund linked to a substantive comunity
benefits/workforce set-aside program And | know t hat
Ms. Jenkins is the person that could informus about
all those topics, so | would hope that she woul d speak
Wi th us on the issue of affordable housing at one of
our next meetings.

And that's all | have. Thank you.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.

Comm ssi oner M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam
Chair.

Just wanted to say thank you, M. Haygood,
for your service to the CRA Board over these |ast few

years.
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And | ook forward to, you know, working wth
our new group, the Pittman Law G oup.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

My comments are residents in the Federal
Garden area, including those who mssed the traffic
cal mMm ng i nformati onal session can review the video on
the City of Riviera Beach's You Tube website, and you
can still vote on the traffic calmng options of your
preference by using a SurveyMonkey link that is on the
Cty's website.

Al so, the Riviera Beach Urban Farm Project is
I n need of volunteers for planting, weedi ng and
cl eari ng garden space on Tuesdays and Thursdays from5
to 7 or Saturdays from8 to 10 during the nonths of My
and June at Barracuda Bay, 1621 West Bl ue Heron
Boul evar d.

A nonth or two ago we planted seeds. And if
you pass by Blue Heron, those things are flourishing,
so we will have sone food very soon. But | encourage
residents to becone involved with this community
garden. This garden is going to produce, you know,
everywhere fromfive to 10,000 pounds of food for the
residents of this city.

Sustainability, us taking care of ourselves

Fl orida Court Reporting
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1| and able to be -- and being able to have community

2| involvenent, because it's not just planting and seeding
3| there. They' re having workshops, they're having

41 meditation, they're having yoga, they're going to have
5| a farmers market. So | want you to get in on the

6| ground floor of this perfect |ocation and perfect

7| programthat the Cty has put out. Thank you so nuch.

8 And M. Evans, do you have any information in
9| regards to the ranking, sir?

10 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,

11 | Madam Chair.

12 At this particular tine |'d ask the Cerk to
13| be able to provide the rankings based on the

14 | subm ssions by the Board.

15 CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

16 THE CLERK: Do | just nanme the law firmthat
17 | won?

18 CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

19 THE CLERK: (Ckay. The law firmis Pittman

20 | Law Group for the CRA

21 CHAIR LANIER: Al right, thank you, M. Sean

22| Pittman and your group for your presentation, and
23| welconme to the City of Riviera Beach. W | ook forward
24| toreimagining the City of Riviera Beach and for you to

25| help us to get there. Thank you so nuch.
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EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: W need
official action fromthe Board.

CHAI R LANI ER: W need official action.
Could we please get a notion to accept these rankings?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Make a notion to accept
t he ranki ngs.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Second.

CHAIR LANIER:  Second by --

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: And Madam
Chair, to direct the Executive Director and the Gty
Attorney to work on a contract with the nunber one
ranked firm

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: | make a notion to
direct the Executive Director to work on the contract
with the Gty Attorney.

CHAIR LANIER:  There's a second from
M| | er-Anderson.

d erk.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conm ssi oner Botel .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.
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THE CLERK: Conm ssi oner Lawson.
COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Vice Chair MI | er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you. Welcone to the

9| city, Pittman G oup.

10

11

We ar e adj our ned.

(Wher eupon, at 8:17 p.m, the proceedi ngs

12 | were concl uded.)
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CERTI FI CATE

THE STATE OF FLORI DA g
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH )

|, Susan S. Kruger, do hereby certify that
| was authorized to and did report the foregoing
proceedi ngs at the tinme herein stated, and that the
f oregoi ng pages conprise a true and correct
transcription of nmy stenotype notes taken during the
pr oceedi ngs.

The certification of this transcript does
not apply to any reproduction of the sane by any neans
unl ess under the control and/or direction of the
certifying reporter.

| N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny

hand this 6th day of July, 2021.

Susén S. Kruger
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1| ADJOURNVMENT
2 The CRA Regul ar Board Meeting was
3| adjourned at 8:17 p.m The m nutes were approved by

41 the Board of Conm ssioners on

Shirley Lanier, Chairperson
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Rl VI ERA BEACH COVMUNI TY REDEVELOPNMENT AGENCY

Regul ar Meeti ng

Marina Village Event Center
190 East 13th Street
Ri vi era Beach, Florida
Thur sday, July 29, 2021
7:05 pom - 9:37 p.m

| N ATTENDANCE:

Chair Shirley Lanier

Vice Chair KaShanba M I | er- Ander son
Comm ssi oner Julia Bot el
Comm ssi oner Dougl as Lawson
Comm ssi oner Tradrick M Coy

Mayor Ronnie L. Fel der

Executive Director Jonathan Evans
General Counsel M chael Haygood
CRA C erk Sherley Desir
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BE | T REMEMBERED that the followng Riviera
Beach Community Redevel opnent Agency Regul ar Meeti ng
was had at the Marina Village Event Center on Thursday,
July 29, 2021, beginning at 7:05 p.m, with attendees
as herei nabove noted, to wt:

CHAIR LANFER W will call the Community
Redevel opnent, the City of Riviera Beach Community
Redevel opnent Agency to order. It is July 29th, 2021.
The neeting is starting at 7:05 p. m

Madam Cl erk, for the roll call.

THE CLERK: Comm ssi oner M Coy.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Here.

THE CLERK:  Conmi ssi oner Botel .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Here.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Her e.

THE CLERK: Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Here.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANIER: Here.

THE CLERK: We have Jonat han Evans as the
Executive Director for the Riviera Beach CRA

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Present.

THE CLERK: M chael Haygood as the counsel
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for the CRA, and Sherley Desir, CRA derk.

CHAIR LANTER  Shirley Lanier, |'mthe CRA
Clerk too?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Desir.

CHAIR LANIER  Onh, she said Desir, okay.

Al'l right, very good. W wll have the
Pl edge of All egiance and a nonent of silence from
Comm ssi oner Dougl as Lawson.

(Monent of silence observed. Pledge of
Al'l egi ance recited.)

CHAIR LANFER:  As we | ook at our itens under
agenda, do we have any additions, deletions or
substitutions for this itenf

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: None from
staff, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANIER: |I'msorry, for the whole
agenda. None fromstaff. Any fromthe Council,

Comm ssion? Very good.

As we | ook at this agenda before us this
eveni ng, are there any disclosures by Comm ssion or
staff in regards to any of these itens that are |isted
on this agenda this evening? Very good. Can | get a
notion to adopt the agenda as is?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: So noved.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Second.
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CHAIR LANI ER Madam O er k.

Let nme interject before you give the roll
call that the Mayor has joined the dais.

Go ahead, nm'am

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conmm ssi oner Botel.

COW SSI| ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair M| er-Anderson.

VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Chair Pro Tem
here. | nean yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANIER: Here.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. The consent
agenda. All matters listed under this itemare
considered to be routine, and action will be taken by
one notion. There will be no separate discussion of
these itens unless a Council person so requests, in
which event the itemw ||l be renoved fromthe general
order of business and considered in its normal sequence
on the agenda.

Are there any itens on the consent agenda
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t hat anyone wants to pull for further discussion?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: WModtion to approve the
consent agenda.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Second.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. WMadam d erk.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssioner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conm ssi oner Botel.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

CHAIR LANIER:  Very good. W are at the end
of our consent agenda and are into our regular agenda.

Nunber four, Madam C erk.

THE CLERK: A resolution of the Board of
Comm ssi oners approving an agreenent with Pittnman Law
G oup, LLC for a termof three years to provide |ega
services to the RBCRA

Acceptance of public comment cards is now

cl osed.
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CHAIR LANIER Do we have any public comments
on this itenf

THE CLERK: Yes, | do.

CHAIR LANTER Al right, very good.

M. Evans.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, this item before you
this evening is to seek approval of the --

CHAIR LANIER: Let's back up. W didn't get
a notion for it.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Mbdtion to approve the
resol ution authorizing a contract wwth the Pittman Law
G oup.

CHAIR LANTER Al right, very good. W have
a notion on the floor for this item

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Second.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Very good. Madam Cerk, could
you say that the public coment for this itemis
cl osed.

THE CLERK: The acceptance of public coment
cards is now cl osed.

CHAIR LANIER  Sorry, M. Evans. Go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, the item before you

this evening is to enter into an agreenent with the
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Pittman Law Group for the purposes of providing | egal
services to the Comunity Redevel opnent Agency for a
termof three years. |If there are any questions on the
Item our City Attorney, Ms. Dawn Wnn, is present to
provi de any gui dance or perspective with respect to the
agreenent that's before you this evening. And staff
recommends approval of the resolution.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you. Are there any
di scussions in regards to this itemfromthe Council?

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER: Yes, go ahead, sir.

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes, discussion for the
contract. Taking a |ook at the terns of the
contract -- well, do we have any public coments, Madam
Chair?

THE CLERK: Yes, we do.

CHAIR LANIER.  Yes, we do. I'msorry, you're
right.

Go ahead, Madam d erk.

" msorry, M. Wnn.

THE CLERK: Ms. Brabham for public comment.

M5. BRABHAM Ms. Mary Brabham Riviera
Beach.

| did have a card on the consent here. | did

give her a card before you even started --
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CHAI R LANI ER  Ckay.

M5. BRABHAM -- in with your neeting. This
was about the posted position --

CHAIR LANI ER You guys had comments for
consent ?

M5. BRABHAM -- of the CRA as well. So |
don't know how you all are going to conduct this, but
now you' re on item nunber four.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, we apol ogi ze,

Ms. Brabham Could you go ahead and give your
comments? Even though we voted on it, you can go ahead
and give your comments for the consent agenda.

M5. BRABHAM | also had a card in there for
I tem nunber four.

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, ma'am but go ahead and
do the three mnutes for that --

M5. BRABHAM  Thank you.

CHAIR LANFER.  -- and we'll|l go ahead and --

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So procedurally, because
It's required that we have public comments before we
decide, | think we have to nove back to reconsi der
consent. That is the only proper way to nove forward.

And | think M. Evans is trying to get your attention.
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CHAIR LANFER  Oh, were you trying to get ny
attention?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,
Madam Chai r .

CHAIR LANFER Al right.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: The
Commi ssioner is absolutely right.

CHAI R LANIER:  Yes, okay, we can just back up
t hen.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: So | woul d offer --

CHAIR LANIER:  So who nade the notion to --

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: | withdraw the notion to
approve the consent agenda.

CHAIR LANI ER  Very good.

VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: | think | did.
| withdraw m ne as well.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  So, Madam Chair, can
we -- can | nove to reconsider consent?

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Second.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So noved.

COMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Second.

CHAIR LANTER Is there a second? Very good.
Soit's off the table. And Ms. Brabham --

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: Roll call: roll call.
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CHAIR LANFER  Roll call for the --

COWMM SSI ONER LAWEON:  To reconsi der the
consent.

CHAIR LANIER: -- to reconsider the consent
Item -- agenda.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssioner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conm ssi oner Botel.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. Now, Ms. Brabham
you can give us your public coment.

M5. BRABHAM Now we can speak on the item on
t he consent now?

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, mm'am

MS. BRABHAM  Ckay.

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, nma'am

M5. BRABHAM Ms. Mary Brabham Riviera

Beach.
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To post those positions for the clerk as well
as the admnistrative assistant is very inportant for
this Board here. This Board here is the Board that
we're hoping that will nove our redevel opment. Wat we
as the general public want, we want that roundabout.

W want nultitaskers, because we know that the budget
is in a shortfall, not just on the Gty side, but as
well as all over.

So in order to get qualified and good people
in these positions here, | for one, and | know that
others stand with ne as well, if we are to | ook better,

be better, we need to have people in the positions

wher eas that not common on-the-job training. | don't
have tinme to train you. | need for you to bring it to
that table there. | need for you to be at the table

there, whereas that if sonething needs to be done,
you're already famliar with this, you already know how
to nove it.

And a lot of tines we get stagnated and
anti quat ed because you' ve had sonebody in positions for
unpt een years, you sort of get that stagnation and that
anti quated m nd, you know, whereas that, you know, this
Is howit's going to nove. But critical thinking is
al ways thinking that it's also dictated out of the box

as wel | .
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So if we are to nove and if we are to see
ourselves in a better linelight for the Gty here, we
need that type of not just skill set, but soneone that
cones on the job that have been in that field there,
that Ms. Brabhamw ||l not have to stand over your
shoul der and watch you.

And anot her thing too, we cannot keep afford
to hire people that know soneone, you know, because a
| ot of times we get hung up and caught up in there,
because this is also what |1've seen in this City tine
and tinme and tine again.

And if you do not work out, | don't want you
to stay in here a year, tw years or three or four
years. | think we did pass sone resolutions in
reference to those type of amendnents that do not stay
in here, do not do this to us, do not just sit and
parlay our noney and do not live up to the profession.
Thank you.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, Ms. Brabham

Consent agenda next. Do you have the cards
for the consent agenda?

THE CLERK: | did for her. That was ny
m stake. | don't have any nore.

CHAIR LANIER  Ms. Larson, you didn't have --

CONe on up; COmMe on up.
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1 M5. LARSON: Bonni e Larson.
2 For a long tinme ny cards would get lost. |

3| hope this is not starting again, because | put it there

4| even before the neeting started; | put it there.
S) Al right, we have on here -- well, first of
6| all, let me do the short one. It says request for

7| approval of neeting mnutes fromMay, My 28th. That's
8| two nonths late. That's unacceptabl e.

9 Now, I'ma little disappointed. W used to
10 | have a court reporter, and | think that was a very good
11| idea. It's worth its weight in gold, because now we

12 | have an RFP for a clerk, executive admnistrative --

13| slash -- the sane person, CRA Cerk. Should we have

14| had a clerk all along, or is this just sonething we

15| want to do now or what's the deal wth that? But |

16 | read the -- | read what that person's supposed to do.

171 Boy, that list is about a mle long. | don't know how
18 | one person can do all that.

19 The other thing in there is transcribing the
20| mnutes. Do you have any idea howlong it takes to

21| transcribe mnutes? You listen to it, you backtrack on
22| it, hours and hours and hours. | think that court

23 | reporter was well worth it, and it got here and it was
24| word for word. Because to put -- in any office you go

25| into, the receptionist usually gets charged with doi ng

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 7/ 29/ 2021

14

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the m nutes, and everybody hates that. They don't want
to do the mnutes because it's so tine consum ng.

We had, years ago, | renenber one particular
neeting when the Gty was doing their own m nutes, and
they said a particular speaker | shall not nane tal ked
about the Marina. That was in the mnutes. So-and-so
tal ked about the Marina. That told you nothing. And
that's the way our mnutes were going. W can't have
t hat .

W' ve got a lot of things com ng up, going
on. We need word for word so if sonething happens, we
got it right there in witing. And like |I said, |
don't know how one person can do all those things, and
what does that |eave for the office manager to do? |
don't know.

| went to the Gty today, or the CRA today
| ooking for a copy of the backup of this neeting
because | had a | ot of comments on it. | couldn't get
it. The CRA said, oh, we're noving, we don't have a
printer. | was over at the Gty where they' re noving,
they said, no, we don't have a working printer. Nobody
had a printer for tonight's backup. And out here
there's no backup. | would |ike a copy of that.

Now, what kind of organization is that when

the office manager doesn't have a printer? That makes
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1| no sense. | said: Could you send it to sonebody el se,
21 you know, in the Cty, maybe they could print it? No,
3] can't doit. So that's also unacceptable. The office
4 | manager has got to be on top of things, and it's not a
5| good situation to say we don't have a printer. So |

6| wll be |ooking for the agenda tonight. | want to see
71 it, the backup, because | have a ot of things to

8 | comment on tonight. Now |l can't tell you on page so

9| and so because | didn't get it. That's nmy story and

10| I"'msticking to it. Thank you.

11 CHAIR LANI ER Thank you, M. Larson.

12 Are there any other consent agenda comment
13 | cards?

14 THE CLERK: No, there isn't.

15 CHAIR LANTER Al right, very good.

16 | M. Evans, do you want to address those comments from
17 | the consent agenda?

18 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,

19 | Madam Chair.

20 The position that fol ks were tal king about is
21| an existing position in the agency. It was nore of an
22 | administrative level position and clerk duties. But

23 | really secondary, we decided to flip the job duties and
24 | responsibilities to nake the clerk function nore robust

25| and professionalize the position, so we added
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addi ti onal degree requirenents.

We did put that we did want sonebody wth a
CMC or MMC, Certified Municipal Cerk or Master
Muni ci pal Clerk, so that provides for additional depth
and understanding of Florida statutes and the operation
of acity clerk. Aso, they will be assisting in sone
clerical duties and responsibilities.

Qur office manager, Ms. Desir, functions as
the office adm nistrator, but also our de facto HR w ng
of the agency. So she's involved in a |ot of personnel
actions, onboardi ng persons, working with Human
Resources, benefits adm nistration and the like. So
there's a lot of things that that particular position
does, whereby this position would be nore focused on
the city clerk and in supporting sonme of the other
duties and responsibilities in the office.

We do apol ogi ze for the inconveni ence. CRA
staff is nmoving. The nove shoul d be conpl eted over the
next couple of days, and so we're hooking up, getting
t hi ngs connected to the network. And so we shoul d be
able to provide those types of services, and so we can
cure that concern that one of the residents pointed out
I n subsequent neeti ngs.

And we w ||l provide additional copies at the

regul ar neetings that have backup. But again, those
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backup docunents are quite lengthy, so if persons do
want the backup, if you could provide us advance
notice, we can also provide that to you, because in
sone cases, | know on the Cty side and also on the CRA
side, you can have five to 1,000 pages of backup. So
If there is advance notice, we certainly wll
accommodat e f ol ks.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  About the
guestion about the transcription, we still have the
| ady that does the mnutes, right?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Right.
We still have the transcription services, and she just
provides it in a renote, because she obvi ously watches
our nmeeting. And then what will happen, then that
information is provided to the clerk, and then the
clerk is the custodian in nmaking sure that that gets
pl aced on the agenda.

That's why we' ve decided to bol ster the
requi renents associated with the job, because we wanted
to nake sure those types of things are done with a | ot
nore frequency and are conming to the Board in a shorter
tinmeline than it has been. But also, it does depend on

the tinme that person has that is transcribing the
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m nutes and providing themto us to getting it on the
agenda with the Board to approve.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

W are at the end of our consent agenda.
We've had public comment. |Is there any other
di scussi on regardi ng the consent agenda?

COW SSI ONER MeCOY: Move to approve consent.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Second.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Madam O er k.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Comm ssi oner Botel .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conmi ssi oner Lawson.

COW SSI ONER LAWEON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion approves.

CHAIR LANIER:  Mbtion approved, five/zero.

| t em nunber four.

THE CLERK: A resolution of the Board of
Comm ssi oners approving an agreenent with Pittnman Law

G oup, LLC for a termof three years to provide |ega
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services to the RBCRA

The acceptance of public comment cards is
cl osed.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Move to approve the
agreenent wth Pittman Law G oup.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Second.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. M. Evans.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, pursuant to the actions
that the Board took with regards to | egal services and
directing staff to go out for conpetitive solicitation,
staff has done that, and the Board authorized staff to
negoti ate an enpl oynent agreenent with the Pittman Law
Goup to provide |legal services for the Community
Redevel opnent Agency.

Wrking in collaboration with the Gty
Attorney's Ofice, we were able to cone to terns with
an agreenent that's before you this evening, and staff
I s reconmendi ng approval of the resolution. And the
City Attorney, Ms. Dawn Wnn, is here to answer any
| egal questions the Board nmay have related to the
agr eenent .

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

Do you have a presentation, or are you j ust

answeri ng questions?
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M5. WNN. | have a short presentation.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Sure. Go ahead.

M5. WYNN.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

As M. Evans stated, this is a contract with
the Pittman Law Goup for a termof three years. The
firmwll receive, according to the RFP, a nonthly
retai ner of $10,000, which will apply to the first 40
hours of services, and thereafter, any additional
services will be billed at the rate of $250 per hour
for each attorney.

Because your |ast CRA neeting was cancel ed,
there will need to be a change to the agreenent just to
reflect the date of today's date as the start date of

the, or the commencenent date of the agreenent, and

t hen, of course, the ending date will correspond to
t hat .

Additionally, | did place in here incorrectly
t he paragraph concerning -- it's usually standard in
the contracts -- it's the paragraph concerning the

O fice of the Inspector General having jurisdiction
over this contract. And the Ofice of the |Inspector
General does not have jurisdiction over CRAs. And so
when | make the change to the date, | wll be making
the change to take that out as well.

And | understand that your former clerk is no
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1| longer with the CRA, and |I'lIl be nmaking the change to
2| the clerk as it relates to the request for, any request

3| for public records in this docunent.

4 And |'m prepared to answer any questions you
5 | have.
6 CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. Any questions for

7| Ms. Wnn in regards to this itenf

8 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

9 CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

10 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.
11 Ms. Wnn, in regards to negotiation and

12 | discussion of the contract, there were a few things

13| that | was reviewing in the contract that concern ne.

141 The initial retainer of $10,000 is going to be based on
15| the first 40 hours of service, so if this firm provides
16 | two hours or 40 hours, they're still going to receive
17| that $10, 000 retainer, correct?

18 M5. WYNN: That's correct.

19 COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON: That was the first

20 | concern. And then the second concern is in regards to
21| billing of calls to the Conmission. Any tine that we
22 | actually nmake a call to our representation, we will be
23| billed for those services within those hours?

24 M5. WNN: That's correct.

25 COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Ckay. And out side of
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that top 40, it wll be 250 per hour?

M5. WNN: That's correct.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Ckay. My concerns were
the pricing. Everything else |ooks standard in the
contract based upon what we saw, but the pricing was ny
bi ggest issue. Wth our responsibility to our
t axpayers, the last few years of |egal services we've
had an average maxi mumof, | believe, 7,600 is the
maxi mum we paid to the previous firm

In regards to discussion and negotiation, in
good faith I'd be willing to counter with this anmount
that we've offered to this firmfor the sake of keeping
our consistent |egal services and rate conparable to
what we've been paying so that we don't push the budget
that we've had over the last ten years in regards to
| egal services.

|'mecstatic with the firmthat we've
sel ected and al so the representation that we will have,
but I would actually want to see if we can actually
reduce that initial retainer, possibly to a flat 40
hours with the sane retainer, but |ooking at a maxi num
of between 7,500 and $8, 000 for retainer purposes, and
then still being billed at that additional 250 per hour
for services over the 40, just because we want to keep

It consistent wwth what we've been doing and wth
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payi ng for our |egal services.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANIER  Any ot her questions in regards
tothis iten? Go ahead, sir.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Conmmi ssi oner Lawson, | appreciate your
coments, and | too kind of thought that was
concerning. But this is actually conpletely
I nconsi stent, because while we had a firmthat had one
attorney, this firmis bringing three attorneys. And
certainly I"'mnot trying to not be frugal, but, you
know, | don't want to sit here and -- you know, this is
conplex, and | think what we do need is soneone that's
going to hit the ground running.

Quite frankly, just |ooking at the nature of
t he various subject matters that's going to be covered
in this, from Sunshine Law to special district |aw,
muni ci pal | aw, CRA, general Florida statutes, public
records, you know, | certainly don't have an issue wth
t hat anmount, but | just wanted to point to you that
they aren't consistent. You know, we had one attorney,
and you know, those were the terns for quite sone tine.
And, you know, |'mokay with it. So that is ny
response to you.

But | did have a question to perhaps
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M. Evans regarding this contract. Does this contract
cover -- it wouldn't include any CDC | egal services,
would it?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: No --
Madam Chair, if | may?

CHAIR LANIER Go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: No, it
doesn't cover CDC services. They actually have their
own | egal representation.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay. So, but because
the CRA is connected with the CDE, and | know I'm
thinking in terns of how we conduct the audit, we have
a CDE separate audit and then we al so have the CRA
audit, does the sanme apply here, that they'l|l be the
counsel for the CDE?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: They w ||
be the counsel for the CDE, yes, sir.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Okay. Al right, thank
you, Sir.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you. Any ot her
gquestions in regards to this itenf

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if | may?

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, go ahead, sir.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: During
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that period when this itemwas going to cone before the
Board, there was correspondence and conversations that
were happening with the Pittman Law G oup related to
CRA busi ness and naking sure that they were up to
speed.

And so | know the attorney had specified that
the contract -- making it effective today. But |
wanted to see if | can get direction fromthe Board to
basically nake the firmwhole for the services and
review that they have done in good faith fromthe tine
when this was supposed to cone before the Board.

Remenber, the reason that this did not cone
fromthe Board, unfortunately, we had a situation
related to COVID that required us to postpone the
neeting, and so there was an inpetus that we were going
to be noving forward on that. And so we were providing
I nformati on and nmaking sure that they could be up to
speed and hit the ground running.

So | was going to see if | can get
aut hori zation fromthe Board to effectively nake them
whole now. We were still working wwth M. Haygood,
because he was still counsel of the CRA but we thought
It was only prudent to make sure that the new counsel
was up to speed with regards to sone of the things we

have going on so there's a short |earning curve for
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themto be able to provide service to the CRA

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Questi on.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER MCOY: M. Evans, do you know
exactly what that amount is?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: | do not
know exactly that amount. | can certainly provide that
and bring that back on a subsequent agenda with the
actual anount, if that's the pleasure of the Board.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Well, ny thinking is
we're on, what, the 29th of the nonth, and | nean if
we're tal king sonmething that's -- you know, | don't
even want to estinmate and guess incorrectly what that
amount is. Wuld this contract, if it went into effect
t oday, would that paynent for $10,000 a nonth cover the
nonth of July, or would that essentially start August
1?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: | think
what we woul d probably do is end up rolling it from
you know, the start of. So the 29th would actually be
the -- so the 29th of every nonth conceivably woul d be
that 30 day period or that nonth, or we would | ook to
prorate it for the nonth. | don't think we got into
t hose specific nuances.

Ms. Wnn, if you had sone comments wth
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regards to that?

M5. WYNN.  Wel |, another suggestion, if the
parties are all anenable, is that the work that they
did fromJuly 14th until today could be billable at
$250 an hour, so you get away fromthe nonthly retainer
for the nonth of July because it was not a full nonth
anyway.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY:  That sounds -- wel |,
Madam Chai r .

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COWM SSI ONER MeCOY:  |'m okay wth that, but
| just don't want to blindly circunvent the processes
that's set forth and why we actually get contracts and
have | egal agreenents to establish that rate.

And certainly it's nothing to you, M. CRA
Director, but you know, we would be essentially
aut hori zing the paynent of |egal services when the very
Itemthat we passed or we voted on on consent was ] ust
that | egal services that generally always cone to the
Board. So | don't have a problemwth allowing for, |
guess, exactly what Ms. Wnn stated, but | didn't want
to kind of start off, you know, upside down, if you
will.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: And Madam

Chair, 1f | may?
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1 CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

2 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: And |

3| asked the question as it relates to | egal services, and
41 that's been sonething that's been a practice. There's
5| no actual policy that says that the invoices that cone
6| in-- we still are going to bring the invoices as part
7| of the agenda, but | did want to know that that's just
8 | been common practice for the CRAto effectively do

9| that, to bring those invoi ces.

10 But the reason that we did provide them

11| information is we were having a |lot of substantive

12 | di scussions and conversations and thought it was only
13| prudent to make sure that they were on the front end of
14| sonme of those conversations.

15 So if it is the pleasure of the Board, | can
16 | bring that back with what the billable rate would be
17| and the services that were provided, and that wll be
18 | sonmething that you can authorize at your next regular
19 | neeting.

20 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.

21 Any other itens in regards or questions in

22 | regards to this itenf

23 COW SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.
24 CHAIR LANIER: Yes, go ahead, sir.
25 COW SSI ONER LAWSON: | want to ask staff if
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we know what the average hours, nonthly, that our
previous | egal counsel was billing for the | ast
probabl y six nonths.

CHAIR LANIER:  Any response?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if I may?

CHAIR LANIER.  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: | believe
the last six nonths probably was around that 78 to
7,500 mark.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Total hours, M. Evans?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: For the
si x nmonth period?

COW SSI ONER LAWSON: No, per nonth. If we
can give just the last three nonths, what were the
hours, if you can pull that up for us?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: [|f you
can give ne a nonent, |I'd have to --

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you. And to that
point, while M. Evans is pulling that up, | wanted to
tell ny colleague, Council man McCoy, one of the biggest
things that we have to | ook at is we do have the
representation fromthree attorneys fromthis firm but
at the sanme tinme | believe that this initial offer was

what was provided and put into the RFP. | don't
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bel i eve any negotiation or discussion wwth regards to
the item was done.

If we go back to when our great Gty Manager
and CRA Director cane, there was still going to be
di scussi on about contracts, because ny profession, and
a few of us, we negotiate contracts for a living. And
based upon this price point, it wouldn't be nickel and
dimng. |It's getting the nost bang for our buck.

So we do have a fiduciary responsibility to
our taxpayers. At the sanme tine, an ask | think would
be necessary versus just giving what was put on the
table. And that's where the request would cone in,
because | ooking at the hours that we're going to be
billed, that price is going to take us about 30 percent
hi gher in regards to our budget we've been operating
for the |ast couple years.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. Thank you.

Do you have any information for Comm ssioner
Lawson, M. Evans?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, we're pulling it fromour system

CHAIR LANI ER  Okay, very good.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Questi on.

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: So Conm ssi oner Lawson,
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1| 1 certainly respect that, and you know, | would be the
2| one that woul d be naking that argunent, and you know, |
3| respectfully understand your position. You know, |

41 don't care either way. If you want to submt an offer,
5| a counteroffer, then that's fine.

6 Ms. Wnn, or perhaps even the better person
71 is M. Evans, the last contract we had, was that even
8 | adjusted during the tine of the last 16 years wth that
9| firm because when | | ooked at that agreenent, | think
10 | that agreenent took us all the way back to -- it nust

11| have been at | east 2004 maybe?

12 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam

13| Chair, if | nmay?

14 CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

15 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: | believe
16 | that there wasn't -- what | saw when we did the

17| research was basically a nenorandum or an agreenent

18 | that had the stipulated billable rate. That was what
19| carried the relationship in perpetuity. | don't think
20 | there was an actual contract per se that was utilized
21| for legal services. And | don't think that there was
22 | any adjustnents, to ny know edge, to the billable rate
23 | since the inception of the relationship. M. Haygood
24| is onthe line. He can provide nore specificity on

25| that.
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CHAIR LANIER:  Very good. So M. Haygood, do
you want to speak to that issue? M. Haygood? There
you go.

MR HAYGOOD: It was a 265 per hour fee that
was charged to the CRAin the inception of the
r et ai ner.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair.

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. | have
the nunber. So based on the last three nonths, the
amount has been about $8, 300 per nonth.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. So are the
guestions answered, sir?

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER: Go ahead, sir.

COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  So to that point -- go

ahead. |'msorry. Madam Chair?
CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.
COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON: | guess to that point,

we' ve been payi ng an average of about 30 hours based
upon the price point of 265 an hour, and the average
anmount of 8,300 for the last three nonths is only based
on 30 hours. So we'd be paying $10,000 for the 40 hour

mark. And | just wanted to see if ny col |l eagues woul d
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1| be in support of negotiating a price with the firm
2| being that there was no negotiation done fromthe

3| initial RFP.

4 VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Madam Chai r.
S) CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.
6 VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: | certainly

7| understand the concern for the anpbunt of noney. But |
8| think we have to take into consideration, as M. MCoy
9| said, what we're getting for this amount. | think with
10 | the experience, the rel ationships, the know edge, |

11| think that supports the anount in itself.

12 | nmean, you know, we've paid for things all

13| the tine where we probably didn't always get our

14| nmoney's worth. And so | think for this particular

15| situation, know ng what we're getting, know ng what the
16 | potential is -- obviously, they haven't been with us

17| yet, so we don't have a track record, but just from

18 | track records of other things that we've seen them

19 | being involved with, I'mconfortable with noving

20| forward with this anpbunt in the contract. Thank you.

21 CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

22 Are there any ot her questions about this

23| itenf? Yes, go ahead, sir.

24 COWMM SSI ONER LAWBON: Yes, Madam Chai r.

25 So it's just -- and that's where the question

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 7/ 29/ 2021
34

11 is. | wanted to have this dial ogue and di scussion wth
21 ny col |l eagues because | absolutely want to be uniform

3| when we support this firm |[If we're going to go into a

4| discussion of a price point, |I want to have that
5| amount. If we're going to go forward with this anount
6| and this is where ny coll eagues stand, | want to

7| support themas well.

8 So that's why | wanted to have this

9 | discussion before we take a vote, because if there's
10 | any differences of opinion or any way of us noving

11| forward, let's talk about that, and then otherw se, we

12 | can nove forward with this new firm

13 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, sir.
14 Madam C er K.
15 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam

16 | Chair, you have public comment cards.

17 CHAIR LANFER:. Ch, I'msorry. It's been a
18| long day. |I'mso sorry. Public comment, please, item
19 | nunber four, please.

20 THE CLERK: W have Ms. Brabham foll owed by

21| Ms. Larson.

22 CHAIR LANFER: | did not forget about you,

23| Ms. Brabham | just --

24 M5. BRABHAM Ms. Mary Brabham Rivera Beach.
25 | was in here when the presentations was made
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for both attorneys, the Pittman Law Group as well as
Attorney Haygood. | sat in, | took notes, |
(i naudi bl e) --
CHAIR LANIER Pull the m crophone up,
Ms. Brabham There you go.

M5. BRABHAM | sat in here. | went through
the presentations of both. | agree with what McCoy was
sayi ng, as well as Conm ssioner Anderson was sayi ng.

We can only get as good and great as we are.

The Pittman Goup is a firm It is three or
maybe four attorneys in there. W have a tendency that
when we have one attorney and their areas are not
precisely in those areas, we have to go outside, and we
spend tons and tons of noney. And what we are in now
and how we are to proceed, we need the expertise of
t hat roundabout that this firmcan bring.

' msort of saddened when | hear about we
t axpayers when we can give different groups and stuff
noneys and stuff and ask the Manager to set aside these
noneys here to pay for this when we're trying to nove
forward and then have what we need in order to nove us
forward. W have to stop this reprobated m nd. Either
you're going to be right or you're going to be w ong.

It Is no mddle here when we're trying to do the things

that are right to nove us forward and to have what we
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need in order to nove us forward.

| have no problemin paying for good service
because renenber what | said in the interview | want
the butter and the neat. | don't want the bread. |
want the butter and the neat. So if | pay you, you're
going to produce in all of those areas what you need to
produce in, because this is the CRA and | always say
the CRAis the Gty itself.

So we will only be as great as we are. And |
want to believe that all of you all are great, because
Ms. Brabham want to be great too. And |I'mnot great,
but I want to be great. And whoever we have, hopefully
that if they don't work out, renenber what | said
before, we're not going to keep you around here,
because you' re wasting our taxpayers' noney. That's
where the taxpayers' noney cones from

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, M. Brabham

THE CLERK: Ms. Larson.

M5. LARSON: Bonni e Larson.

|'ve advocated for a firmto be our attorney
for along tine. Only when we get M. Jonat han Evans
does he put that before the Board, because we ask one
attorney to do all kinds of different situations, and
one attorney is not well versed in everything we ask

himto do.
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Now, my question nowis | heard you say
sonet hi ng about we'd have three attorneys there. W're
not going to get Sean Pittman, because he's our
representative; so it's not going to be him it's going
to be three other people. Are we limted to those
three people? | nmean what if we have a situation and
those three are not well versed in it? Are they going
to, you know, allow other attorneys to step in and give
us good advice? | hope so.

The thing | noticed when | started reading
the contract -- you know | |ike to read contracts. But
| was reading it online, and one thing | noticed right
away was at sone tines during a contract we have to,

Ri vera Beach has to certify letters to our vendor and
themto us. Wat | noticed right away is there's no
address in there for Pittman law firm W need that to
be on the first page where we announce them W need
their address, their |egal address.

And they have -- they say they're going to
gi ve copi es of correspondence to Tamara at the CRA, and
they list the BB&T address. No. |s Tamara the one
who's not there anynore? |'mnot sure. Anyway, we
need our docunents to go to M. Jonathan Evans al so.

W can't have it going to just one person. And |ike |

said, the address is at the BB&T building. W're
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nmovi ng, so, you know, that's got to be changed.

There's one paragraph in there about their
charges which | eaves things kind of open-ended, al npost
li ke you're witing a blank check. | can't tell you
what page it's on -- | think it's in the beginning --
because | don't have a copy, but it's very open-ended
about what they can charge us for.

When | woul d ask for docunents at the CRA, |
woul d often be told M. Haygood has the ori gi nal
docunents. Well, don't we have a copy here? No, he
keeps all our docunents. Woa, that's a poor system a
really poor system W're the City. W need the | egal
docunents as well as our attorney, whoever that is. W
need to have that. So that was al ways an issue with ne
that they said he's the one who has it, and he's the
only one who has it.

Ch, okay. Al right, so this is Sean
Pittman's firmthat we're hiring. Howis that going to
af fect us because he's now an enpl oyee, because he's
al so our representative in Tallahassee? How s that
going to work out? |Is that a conflict of interest, or
what's going to happen there with that when we sign
this agreenent?

Al so, when we have contracts other than the

Pittman --
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CHAIR LANIER  Sorry.

M5. LARSON. Ckay.

CHAIR LANIER: So sorry, Ms. Larson.

Are there any other comments for this itenf

THE CLERK: There are no nore public
coment s.

CHAIR LANIER M. Evans, could you speak to
a couple of those issues that were raised?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,
Madam Chai r .

The Pittman Law Group i s going to, of course,
provide |l egal services to the CRA. There are two
attorneys that will be assigned to us if this contract
noves forward. M. Pittman wll also junp in,
dependi ng on what ever the needs of the agency are. |
woul d assune that if his -- in his firmif they cannot
provide the service, then they would | ook to bring
addi tional |egal counsel in that can assist in
facilitating whatever the challenge or issue may be
with the CRA

But | know M. Pittman will be involved. He
still wll serve as the principal |obbyist on behalf of
the City and continue to do that. That's why he has
t he conpetent and capable staff that he has to be able

to work with the CRA exclusively.
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| did have a conversation with staff. W do
have all the | egal docunents. W are the custodi ans of
t hose docunents, so we, in fact, do have them

And | believe that may have been all the
guestions that were just asked by the speaker.

CHAI R LANI ER  Very good.

M5. WYNN: Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

M5. WYNN:  To provide a bit of clarification,
the contract states that not only M. Pittman, but
Attorney Smith and Attorney MKinney WIlians, as well
as other nenbers of the firmw Il be available to
assist. So however many nenbers of the firmare at the
firm enployed by the firm they wll be at the
di sposal of the CRA, should they need them

W will add the address of the Pittman Law
G oup to the contract while we're making all these
ot her changes.

And there also is no conflict, because
M. Pittman or -- and none of the nenbers of the firm
are enpl oyees of the CRA. They're all independent
contractors.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. Thank you. Any
ot her questions before we call this question? Very

good.
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Madam Cl er k.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: So Madam Chair,
Comm ssi oner Lawson offered a -- |'msorry, | don't
know where we left off. Was there sonmething you were
| ooki ng for, Conm ssioner?

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes, | was | ooking for
a discussion in regards to negotiation of the contract.
There was no negotiation that was done in regards to
the pricing. There was an acceptance of what the
initial offer was. M col |l eagues, based upon the two
coments, seemlike there is a direction of noving
forward wwth the price as is. | didn't hear fromthe
ot her two col | eagues.

So Madam Chair, call the question. Moving
f orwar d.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

Madam C er k.

THE CLERK: Comm ssi oner M Coy.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Botel.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Lawson.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.
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1 THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

2 CHAI R LANI ER  Yes.

3 THE CLERK: Motion carries.

4 CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

S We have a 7:30 public comment for our public

6| coment, not on specific agenda itens. Do we have any

7| public comrents for our regular public coment tine?

8 THE CLERK: Yes, we do.
9 CHAIR LANIER: Al right, very good.
10 Pl ease be rem nded the CRA Board of

11| Comm ssioners has adopted rul es of decorum governi ng

12 | public conduct during official neetings which has been
13| posted at the front desk. In an effort to preserve

14| order, if any of the rules are not adhered to, the

15| Comm ssioner Chair may have any disruptive speaker or
16 | attendee renoved fromthe podium fromthe neeting

171 and/or the building, if necessary. Please govern

18 | yoursel ves accordingly.

19 Public comments shall begin at 7:30 unless

20| there's no further business of the CRA Board of

21| Comm ssioners, which in that event, it shall begin

22 | sooner. In addition, if an itemis being considered at
23| 7:30, then comments fromthe public shall begin

24 | imediately after the item has been concluded, which is

25| this case.
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Any persons who would |Iike to speak during
public comment, please fill out a public comment card
| ocated at the front desk and give it to the staff
before the public comment section is announced.

Madam d er k.

THE CLERK: The first --

CHAIR LANIER: Pl ease say that public coment
card --

THE CLERK: Ch, sorry.

CHAIR LANIER: -- the public comment section
IS now cl osed.

THE CLERK: The public comment section is now
cl osed.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

THE CLERK: | have Mary Brabham foll owed by
Mar gar et Shepherd, then Erica Davis, Bonnie Larson, Rod
James and Ms. Paul k.

M5. BRABHAM Ms. Mary Brabham Riviera

Beach.

|"mgoing to give a shout-out. M. Brabham
w Il never be accused of not being a participator
I nstead of a spectator. On last Saturday, | attended

the seniors, you know, the senior little thing there.
And they canme out because they was glad to get out.

That's all that | was (inaudible). COVID has | ocked
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t hem down, so you know, whenever they can get a little
breat her, oh, they enjoyed that.

Don't you tell what happened either. Mayor,
don't tell what happened. M. Brabham not going to
tell either. But I'mgoing to tell you all the
(i naudi ble). And Tessa had Ms. Brabhamtrying to do
sone, and | told them | never win anything, just bring

me sone linanment. Please bring us sone |inanment.

On that note there, | agree with you all
throwing that bid out. It was convoluscent. It wasn't
air tight. It was flaws in there, not because of how

It was put out. But we have to do a better job as a
Cty, because | was in with the Pittman G oup, and you
only had four. And that was the Pittnman G oup and
Attorney Haygood, and one was from M am and one from
over on the west coast, and they w thdrew

|'"'mgoing to tell you, Lawson, why they --
Counci | man Lawson, why sonetines they w thdraw
Because they look at this Cty as being lined up and
pl anned by the playbook, so others do not want to cone
I n here because they know it's a fixture sonewhere. So
we have to stop that. W are in the sane node here
with the two garbage collectors here. The sane thing
I s happening here. W nust do better.

Now, how we are to do better? W get -- |
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totally agree with sone of what M. Evans has said.
Put those paraneters in there so that both wll be
wei ghed equally and not on a blind justice scale
whereas it is tilted, because this is what this Cty
here has done to this Gty here. And you wonder why
you do not get people in? These are a |lot of the
reason why you do not get themin. So we have to do
better, and I'mglad that you threwit back out. So
let's get it right.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you; thank you,

Ms. Brabham

THE CLERK: Ms. Shepherd.

M5. SHEPHERD: Margaret Shepherd, Rivera
Beach.

Thank you, Ms. Lanier, for nmaking that
comment. M phone's blow ng up, and they're saying
t hank you for (inaudible). Sonetines we need clarity.
Soneti mes people don't understand. But when you start
talking, it's comng through. They understand.

Now, with that, | am deeply happy for the CRA
moving forward. |'mvery happy with the projects
that's going on. | amindeed glad to know about the
Rei magi ne Riviera Beach. Those that didn't cone, God
bl ess you. They said 35 canme, and 35 is going to nake

the decision. Well, if you had been here wth your
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not her, your brother and your sisters, everybody, you
woul d have had a great crowd.

But | think the presentation just went on
fabul ous. W know where we at, we know where we goi ng
with the city, and now we know where the CRA is going
to take us. | amindeed happy to see these prograns
noving on. And if nobody went over to see the public
i brary, shanme on you. |If you have not seen WAl greens
torn down, shanme on you. The Cty's noving. Sonebody
said they didn't see this. WelIl, you wasn't there.

How coul d you see anyt hi ng?

But | want to say to you all, please cone out
and support your city. If you don't support your hone,
t hat nmeans that who are you to support your city? Your
city is the nost precious gift that you can give to
your grandchil dren.

My daughter, Summer, told ne, she says: |'l]|

never conme back here. And | said: Wll, why? She

says: Nothing here. | said: Wll, you cone back in
the next four or five years, you will see it. And she
said: Well, by that tinme, you'll be dead. | said:
Stop it, Summer; stop it, Summer. |'mgoing to be
alive. She said: | don't know, | don't know.  But,
you know, that's ny little girl. She always got

sonething smart to say. But | nade sure |'ve told when
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t he groundbreaki ng start noving, |I'mgoing to give her
a free trip back here to R vera Beach.

|"'m proud of ny city. And nobody else is
proud? |I'mproud. M famly noved here. M dad cane
fromthe Bahanmas. M uncle, aunts lived in Rivera
Beach. |I'mproud to live in the city. Shane on you.
Thank you.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, Ms. Shepherd.

THE CLERK: Ms. Davi s.

M5. DAVIS: FErica Davis, Riviera Beach.

| just want to piggyback off what Ms. Brabham
said earlier about taking our RFP and our City business
serious. People are |ooking at us, and they are
di sgusted by wanting to cone in here, but we're al ways
with these personal issues or these technical issues
that we can't get right in order to bid and nmake a
decision on a project. Tine is noney and noney is
tinme. And it's tine out of their tinme and noney out of
their pockets that they cone in and put their things
together in order to get business and do busi ness out
here in the Gty of Riviera Beach.

What needs to happen to cut down the tine,
there is no negotiation when you're getting ready to
nmake a decision on a contract. No negotiation

what soever. Make sure you do that before you even step
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1| to this Council. That neans both Council and staff,

2| before you even step in here to even say anyt hi ng about
3] all the things you' re worried about, whether it's the

4| negotiated contract, whether it's any question that you
5 | have.

6 You need to have a workshop or sonething to

7| cut down on the tinme and not cone in here when it's

8| tinme to nake a deci sion on sonething, to cone and then
9 | have questions about it. You guys need to comruni cate.
10 | Do your homework when the staff give you your agendas
11| or whatever, or talk about that in a workshop to say,

12| well, okay, well, we need to do this or I got a

13 | question about this, so when you cone to nake that

14 | decision on saying yes or no on this contract, you can
15| do so.

16 Because you got to treat it |ike corporate.

17| Treat it |like a corporate business, because this is

18 | getting out of hand with all these najor contracts and
19| you can't nmake a decision or you got to throw it out or
20| it's prolonged, such as the Marina project. There's no

21 | reason for that Marina project to be four years going

221 in. It's ridicul ous.

23 So you guys, all of you have to do better
24| with how you -- you got to oversee, backtrack. You
25| need eyes. If you need eyes to see the contracts or
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what ever, then do so. But we need to stop doing this,
getting right up here and then saying, well, | want to
do this, | want to do that. It doesn't nmke any sense.
Treat it |like a corporate business, because the boss
man in the corporate business won't go for this. W
need to do better.

And our police officers need nore police
officers in the budget. So when you discuss that, we
need to hire nore police officers. Thank you.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Thank you, Ms. Davis.

THE CLERK: Ms. Larson.

M5. LARSON: Bonni e Larson.

| asked about a court reporter. Do we or
don't we have a court reporter? | didn't quite
under st and what the response for that was.

kay. Al right, we put out an RFP for a
clerk for the CRA, and | know there's a long list of
things for that person to do. But in there it said
they had to have a degree, they had to have this and
that, but there could be an exception if you had
sim |l ar experience.

Forget those exceptions. You either want an
education or you don't, because there's sonething to be
sai d about having an education. So let's not put in

t hose exceptions, because that's -- that can be
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Interpreted in a different way, and we'll get sonebody
i ke we've had before, friends or famly. So let's not
do that. Let's close it up.

Ch, also, it was said that they woul d change
the address on the Pittnman contract, they would get
their address on there. But | didn't hear it nentioned
we need to change the address and nanes of who we're
giving the contract to, who they're giving the contract
to and the correct address on there, because it still
had t he Broadway address.

| think we could have a disclosure fromthe
public when they cone to this podiumto disclose if
they do not live in the city, and also if they work for
t he vendor being considered. You need to know that.

We had sone cards. | picked up sone cards,
and this is fromthe Recreation Departnent. Wat |
noti ced was we have sone of these cards, they're
printed on very nice paper and everything, but we pay
tw ce as nuch because we print the same thing on both
sides. W don't need to do that. W don't need to pay
double for these cards. Let's just pay single. Sone
of them have different things on either side, that's
fine, but the ones that have the exact sane thing on
both sides, you know, let's not do that.

Ch, we tal k about vendors not being
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Interested in Rviera Beach. That's been for years and
years and years. But you know what? These vendors
have not heard we have a new guy in charge. They don't
know M. Jonat han Evans and that he plays fair and he's
now running the Cty. They need to know that so they
know it's not going to be the sane old Rivera Beach
with the sane old criteria that we had before

Ms. Brabham or sonebody asked -- no.
Sonebody tal ked about the tearing down of the
Wal greens. W had -- when | was a kid, the Gty Hall
was at the location where they're tal king about putting
It now.

| didn't knowit was a City Hall because, you
know, | wasn't interested in that. But anyway, that
thing sat there for years and years and years in a
di |l apidated -- | have pictures of it. The roofs were
caving in, there were broken out w ndows, the rebars
were all -- it was just a ness. And that sat there for
years.

| and a coupl e ot her people begged the
Council, tear down those buildings so we don't | ook so
bad on Broadway, and they didn't do it for years and
years. Many years after this, after the new Gty
Hall -- well, it's old now, but the one on Bl ue Heron

was built, those buildings sat there. And that
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di | api dated building, | alnost got high when | drove by
t here because people were doing drugs in there all the
time, all the tine.

CHAIR LANI ER Thank you, Ms. Larson.

MS. LARSON: Thank you for doing things now,
t hank you.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

THE CLERK: M. Janes.

MR. JAMES: Hi. Rod Janes, R vera Beach.

My comment's going to be pretty brief. |

want to tal k about the water issue. People have been

tal ki ng about this water issue. In ny opinion, the
water issue is dead. | put out a post on Facebook with
regards to that. | ended up neeting with the staff.

They expl ai ned everything to ne thoroughly. And in the
Rei magi ne Riviera Beach, they also stated that, you
know, we're getting a new water plant. W understand
the water bill's going up and that's the reason why, or
one of the reasons why. So to ne, that issue's, you
know, it's a dead issue.

What | think should happen is | think the
wat er departnent shoul d, you know, probably put out a
vi deo, a You Tube video or sonething to kind of get
ahead of all of these allegations and stop, you know,

propagating these m struths.
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And in addition to that, | attended a
neeting, and you know, there was an el ected official,
you know, present who didn't dispute any of the
comments that was bei ng said.

And lastly, the -- a nore dedicated and
concerted effort in bringing business to the west side
of the tracks. So that's, you know, maybe if the Board
can, you know, focus on that, that would be greatly
appreciated for snmall businesses on the west side of
the tracks. Thanks.

CHAIR LANI ER  Thank you, sir.

THE CLERK: Ms. Paul k.

M5. PAULK: Good evening. M nane is Doretta
Paulk. 1'ma resident of the City of Riviera Beach.

And | thank M. Lawson for letting nme know,
because when I'min error, | can definitely say sorry
about the Sunshi ne Law prohibiting both Chair and
hi nsel f in speaking privately concerning. But, yes,

t hank you for informng nme of that.

And also, | think I was definitely wong
concerning that | think there's nutual -- the comrent
was nmade nutual respect between the both of you. And
|'"mvery glad to know that, because this, sonetine it
didn't seemlike this was happening. It seened like it

was |1 ke disrespect towards Council man Lawson agai nst
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1| Chair. But that's not how it was.

2 So anyway, when | amwong, | definitely wll
3| be proud and say, hey, | was in error. And | thank

41 both of you all for your service, all of you all for

5| your service.

6 Anot her thing concerning, when | do | ook at

7| the Planning & Zoning neetings, it's very cordial. |

8| nmean it's snooth like butter, and it seem|li ke respect
9] is with each one of the Council people that sits on the
10 | Planning and Zoning. And | know Ms. Cark, | think

11| she's the Chair. | know M. WIly, he's onit. And ny
12| friend here, Margaret Shepherd, Ms. Shepherd's on it,
13| and it just seens like it goes very well.

14 But now | see that | was in error, that you
15| all have nutual respect for each other and you all get
16 | along, so that's great, because that's not the prospect
171 that we see when we're hearing these things. It's like
18 | contention, you know.

19 And another thing I want to comment on, it

20 | was said at the [ast Council neeting how nmuch does the
21 | Manager get for salary for doing the CRA. So | hope we
22| can put this to bed that he's getting absolutely zero.
23 | And what Manager in any city who's taking care of both
24 | different divisions of the Gty is not getting paid for

25| both divisions that he is covering?
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| think that shows regard, the | ove that he
has for the Gty and the |ove that he has for all the
citizens. He's doing all this work and getting
absolutely zero. And if it comes up again, maybe the
peopl e who want to contradict this, maybe they should
go to M. Sherman, because he's our financial chief,
and he can set this straight.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you.

M5. PAULK: | thank you all very nuch --

CHAIR LANI ER:  Thank you, M. Paul k.

M5. PAULK: -- very nuch for what you do for
us, M. Evans.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you.

THE CLERK: There are no nore public
coment s.

CHAI R LANI ER  Thank you so nuch.

M. Evans, do you have any responses to sone
of the comments nmade at the public coment?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:. Yes,
Madam Chai r .

Wth regards to the job description for the
clerk, of course we're |ooking for sonebody that
obviously neets all the prerequisites for the job and
certainly retains the educational requirenent.

That caveat is placed in there that in a | ot
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of cases, sone fol ks have becone Certified Minicipal

Cl erks or Master Municipal Cerks for X anobunt of years
In the industry, so we did want to provide for that
opportunity, that if you've got sonebody that has 25 or
30 years of experience that may not have a degree, but
have worked in nultiple governnent entities or one
governnment entity, for that matter, that they are also
considered. But we are going to |look to hire the best
and the brightest to help us nove the agency forward.

Wth respect to the water quality issue, we
are in the process of setting up a series of, | would
say road tours. W're actually going to be going to a
coupl e of parts of our community and havi ng sone
| n-depth conversation with the community with respect
to water quality and sone of the things we've got on
t he horizon, especially related to the new water
treatnment plant.

And |'m happy to report to the Board that
that solicitation has closed, and we have received four
submttals for a partnership with the Gty of Riviera
Beach associated with a new water treatnent plant.
Amend renenber when we did put out the solicitation, we
said in 36 nonths we want sonething to be up and
operational. So that's refreshing to know, that four

entities have assenbled teans for the purposes of

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 7/ 29/ 2021

57

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

working wiwth the Gty to bring that to fruition.

We're al so going to be having sone nore
conversations with the Board as part of the budget
process to | ook how can we spur sonme econom c growh
and redevel opnment and how do we hel p and support sone
of our | ocal businesses. W have a project that wll
be comng to the Board for nore di scussions as to how
the CRAis going to take nore of a | eadership role with
t he Bl ue Lagoon project, to help that particular
opportunity cone to fruition.

And as a result of that particular
Initiative, there's two nore business incubator spaces
that hopefully we'll be able to bring to market and
have avail able, as well as how do we | ook to expand
out side of the CRA boundaries wwthin the Cty to help
and support sonme of our |ocal business, especially in
| i ght of sonme of the things we're seeing related to
COVI D and sone of the challenges that are occurring.

So whether it's grants, whether it's
educati on, whether it's opportunities to do business
with the Cty, we're going to make sure that we | eave
no stone unturned and | ook at sone policy, public
policy that the Board can put in place to help
facilitate sone small business growth, and al so tapping

into some of the relationships with the County to pull
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on sone of the resources that they got through the
Aneri can Rescue Plan where they got $236 mllion that
we certainly would | ove to hel p them spend.

CHAIR LANIER  Very good. Thank you, sir.

Before we get back to our item nunber five, |
woul d just like to welcone the Pittman law firmto the
Cty of Riviera Beach, and | ooking forward to a | ong,
fruitful relationship with your firm And we
appreci ate having you on board.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: He wants to say
sonet hi ng.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Go ahead, sir.

MR SM TH. Thank you on behalf of nyself and
nmy partner, Opal WIlianms and Sean Pittnman. W | ook
forward to work wwth the Gty in providing great
response to the Cty.

One thing that was nentioned earlier about
contacting the firm you will receive contact
information for all nenbers of the firmregarding those
phone calls, that we wll be cognizant of the billing
of the phone calls. Sonetines if it's just a phone
call, a phone call, it's just a quick question. But
you W Il receive contact information for all of us.

And | think what was nentioned earlier about

having a large firm you wll have access to every
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menber of the firmto answer your questions at any
time, and you'll receive all of our contact infornmation
In the norning. Look forward to it.

CHAIR LANI ER Thank you so nuch, sir.

Any response fromthe coll eagues for our new
| aw firnf?

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COMM SSI ONER MECOY: It's a little bit off
subj ect, but you know, | get in this position after a
f ew hours.

M. Evans, we have sone really nice chairs

over at the chanbers. These have got to be the nost

unconfortable chairs at about three hours in. | have
a -- oh, gosh, | can't even renenber. | have a clip in
ny back. | had back surgery. So this isn't the best.

And |"msorry for saying that, because |'mjust so
unconfortable right now | had -- it's called an ALIF,
a lunbar fusion. So yes, M. Evans, are those being
used, because at this point, I"'malnost like |I can't
sit still.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, that's actually by design, especially that
chair.

No, we can |look to find nore confortable
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chairs. | don't believe the chairs that we have at the
dais woul d actually go under these, but we can
definitely get sone other chairs for these. So that
wll be sonething staff will work on tonorrow.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay, thank you.

And thank you -- | want to say Senator Smth,
but thank you, M. Smth, who served as our Senator
when | worked in the Legislature. So thank you for
com ng here to Rivera Beach, and we | ook forward to
good things. Thank you.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: | just want to echo
those enotions. | appreciate M. Smth being here.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: Sane here, for
the whole firm

CHAIR LANIER  Yes, thank you so nuch.

Let us nove forward, people.

| tem nunber five, Madam C erk.

THE CLERK: The request for the approval of
t he execution of a devel opnent agreenent and
agreenent for sale and purchase by and between the
agency and RBCDC 11th Street, LLC for the sale and
devel opnent of the 11th Street Townhouse Project,

finding that the sales price represents fair val ue,
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finding that the project elimnates slumand blight,
and directing and aut horizing the Chairman and
Executive Director to take such actions as shall be
necessary and consistent to carry out the intent and
desire of the agency.

The acceptance of public comment cards are
now cl osed.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Move that we approve the
proposed devel opnent agreenent for the 11th Street
Townhouse Proj ect.

VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Second.

CHAIR LANIER M. Evans.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, | will ask that the
Di rector of Nei ghborhood Services, M. Annetta Jenkins,
make this presentation.

CHAIR LANIER M. Jenki ns.

M5. JENKINS: Good evening. And thank you,
Chai rperson Lanier and to the other Comm ssioners,

M. Mayor, our new attorney and M. Evans. Thank you

for the opportunity to bring the final docunent to you
for the 11th Street Townhouse Project, a project that

we have been contenpl ating for sone nonths.

You have seen the project sunmary and terns

several tinmes, and at the last tine that this was
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before you, there was sone di scussi on about sone
concerns about the restrictive covenant peri od.

And with -- in conjunction wth M. Haygood,
as CGeneral Counsel for the CRA, and he's on the |ine,
and M. Edw n Ferguson, counsel for the CDC, and al so
I n seeking counsel fromour new attorneys at the
Pittman Law G oup, we brought you a final docunent.

And | just want to point out that the change
in the terns there that speaks to the consensus that
came fromthis Board the last tinme this was before you
was around the timng of the restrictive covenant. And
the attorneys have cone up with two restrictive
covenants for this project.

In terms of security, the |and woul d have a
nortgage, a note, a restrictive covenant during the
construction period, and at the conpletion of
construction, the restrictive covenant renmains in
perpetuity. And that is a covenant to nake sure it
remai ns as hone ownership, not for rental.

And then in terns of the financing, during
the construction period there's a restrictive covenant
that says that for no nore than 25 years for an end
buyer who receives any subsidy. And that speaks to the
di fference between the workforce units and nmarket rate

units, as you asked us to do.
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So having said that, | present this contract,
and | wll stop at this point and see if there are any
guestions or concerns. And we | ook forward to your
approval and continuing to nove this project forward.

CHAI R LANI ER Thank you for your
presentati on.

Are there any questions for Ms. Jenkins in
regards to this itenf

COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead, sir.

COWM SSI ONER LAWSON: Ms. Jenkins, | just
wanted to thank you for the amazing work that you're
doing. This is just another project that is going to
represent what our Cty is looking to do, continue to
grow, address slumand blight in our CRA District,
provi de hone ownership. So you're addressing and
hitting on all the points that our Council has put out
fromthe day we were actually elected until today. So
com ng out of the ground with these projects is what we
want to constantly see, so thank you, and | support
this project.

M5. JENKINS: Thank you.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: |, for one, am
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very happy to hear about this project comng in. If it
could get done in the next nonth, | would be very
happy. Thank you.

M5. JENKINS: Talk to M. Sirnons.

CHAIR LANTER Al right, very good.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: | don't think we can do
that. We're not permtted for that.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: What are we not
permtted for?

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  We can't encourage him
on, you know, adjusting the tine line on it.

M5. JENKINS: |I'msorry, that was a bad job.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: He knows that. He's the
master of --

CHAIR LANTER He's just nessing with you.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  But, you know, Madam
Chair, if I can?

CHAIR LANIER Go ahead.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: Do you know how many
people call nme, and | have to literally forward it over
to the Manager because they just think that | have sone
I nherent control to direct staff. And | just want to
be clear, because they're going to be like | heard it
at the neeting that you can contact so-and-so.

So thank you for clarifying, M. Jenkins.
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1 M5. JENKINS: |'msorry.

2 CHAIR LANIER.  Very good. And you are not
3| alone in people calling, asking for mracles to be

41 made. And we try as hard as we can, but you know, we

5| all understand that we have to follow the rul es as

61 well.

7 COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

8 CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

9 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: | just also want to

10 | thank Ms. Jenkins. She's done an excellent job with
11| this project. It's going to be beautiful and a real

12 | wonderful addition to the community. So thank you.

13 M5. JENKINS: Thank you.

14 CHAIR LANIER  Very good. WMadam d erk.
15 THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.

16 COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

17 THE CLERK:  Conmm ssi oner Botel .

18 COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

19 THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Lawson.

20 COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

21 THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.
22 VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

23 THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

24 CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

25 THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.
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CHAIR LANI ER Thank you. [|tem nunber six.

THE CLERK: Resolution to approve the
execution of the contract with public-private
partnership advisory firmJones Lang LaSalle for the
Phase || Marina project in accordance with the attached
pr oposal .

The acceptance of public comment cards is now
cl osed.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: So noved.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Second.

CHAIR LANIER:  Very good. Are there any
public comment cards for this itenf

THE CLERK: There is one public coment.

CHAIR LANTER Al right, go ahead wth your
presentation, and we will do that public coment.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: (| naudi bl e.)

CHAIR LANFER:  No, we're going to have the
presentation first so that you can hear it and then you
can make your conmments.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair and nenbers of the Board, | ask that our Planning
and Devel opnent Director, M. Scott Evans, make this
present ati on.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: Madam Chair and nenbers of

the CRA Board, tonight is a resolution to approve a
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conpletion of a contract for public-private
partnerships with the firmJones Lang LaSalle. And
this is for the Phase Il Marina project. And we've
attached their proposal.

And on May 2021 of this year, the Board
approved a resolution which selected three firns for
utilization for public-private partnerships. And the
resol ution sel ected Avison Young, Jones Lang LaSalle
and Lanbert Advisory and directed staff to sel ect one
of these qualified firnms. The joint work team
requested proposals fromall three firnms, and they have
sel ected Jones Lang LaSalle as the best qualified team
to assist for the project.

The proposal is broken up into three
di fferent phases. The first phase is project review
and el enment analysis. This would take approxi mately
two nonths, and this includes review of all project
background materials, full review of the devel opnent
proposal, review and assessnent of devel oper
performance, review of the related parking anal ysis.
And this will result in the conpletion of the proposal
anal ysis, which would then be presented to the CRA
Board for your consideration.

Phase two woul d be negoti ati on of the naster

devel opnent agreenent and the key ground | ease terns.
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This will include participating in a series of
negoti ation neetings with the Gty and the CRA,
devel opi ng a negotiation term sheet and preparing

materials to assist the Board in negotiating the

agr eenent .

" msorry, could soneone get ne a gl ass of
water? | shouldn't have eaten popcorn before | canme up
her e.

CHAIR LANIER: | was about to do the
Hei mich, man.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: This
presentation tends to get himchoked up.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: That's nuch better.

The third phase would be to finalize the
devel opnent agreenent, and that would be to negotiate
ground | eases and present themto the Board. And that
woul d take approxi mately three nonths.

The cost for the contract would be funded
t hrough our approved budget, and specifically that |ine
itemis the Marina Village Phase || project support.

Phase one w il take approximtely two nonths,
so that's between August and Septenber, with
presentations of their proposal and analysis in
Cct ober. And phase one woul d cost approxi mately

75, 000.
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1 CRA staff recommends that the CRA Board adopt
2| the proposed resolution directing the Chair and the

3| Executive Director to conplete an agreenment with Jones
4| Lang LaSalle. And their vice president, M. Jereny

5| Becker, is available by video if the Board has any

6| questions related to their agreenent.

7 COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: Madam Chai r.

8 CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. Go ahead, sir.

9 COWM SSI ONER McCOY: M. Evans, so did you

10 | say --

11 CHAIR LANI ER  Be specific about which Evans.
12 COW SSI ONER McCOY: M. Scott Evans, did you

13| say that they were going to have the proposals for two
14 | nont hs?

15 MR, SCOIT EVANS: The very first two nonths
16 | of the phase of their review would be the project

17| review and an el enent analysis. And at that tine

18| they'll look at all of the materials that we've

19| received thus far, they'll conduct interviews with CRA
20 | Board staff, they will discuss the project with the

21 | devel opnent team and they will also consider the

22 | public parking analysis that we've conpleted. So then
23| they'll conplete that review, and the deliverable for
24 | that would be a proposal analysis that would conme then

25| before the CRA Board before we nove to phase two of the
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contract.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Fol | ow - up.

CHAIR LANIER  Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So M. Evans, | guess
who proposed the two nonths? That seens quite
extensive if they are -- this is their specialty. |
mean I'mtrying to understand where did two nonths cone
from and why, you know, why do we need two nonths?

MR. SCOTT EVANS: When we asked for their
proposal, we did specify the Board's desire to nove
quickly. Two nonths is as fast as they felt that they
could do it, because there's a | ot of background

materials for themto review.

And for the project they'll also have to
gat her sone of the materials -- which we've already
started -- fromthe devel opnment team And then they

will want to go through them and then discuss themwth
t he devel opers so that they can understand the

proposal, the pro formas and how t hat woul d best assi st

the City.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Fol | ow up.

CHAIR LANIER  Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: So that sounds good, but
you know, | guess in terns of a conplete tine |line,
because if this isn't going to work, | don't want to

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 7/ 29/ 2021

71

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

spend anot her seven nonths to try to figure that out.
You know, quite frankly, if this is their specialty,
you know, | was thinking -- and | can't be really, you
know, putting the tine on it, but | nean two and three
weeks, perhaps a nonth, you know, in my opinion.

But | nean | don't understand what exactly
about reviewing the solicitation, | guess the financing
mechani snms, you know, and havi ng di scussion with
adm nistration as to, you know, what the CRA's position
is that it would really require that rmuch tine.

MR, SCOTT EVANS: | nean what we could do is
try and accelerate that. So the two nonths is the
target. And if the Board wanted to hear fromthem and
you know, get a progress report and see how far we've
cone, we could have them cone back to the neeting and
update you on the status.

| think part of the tinme line is that not
only do they have to review all the materials, but then
t hey have to prepare their report, which then needs to
be reviewed by staff and then provided to the Board, of
course, seven days in advance of your next neeting. So
that's also playing into the tine frane, is that they
wll actually, if they have a two nonth tine frane,

t hey woul d have to conplete their analysis in six weeks

I n order to make that next Board agenda.
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COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay. | would certainly
li ke to see that sooner. And you know, it just seens
| i ke, you know, when you think you're crossing the goal
line, it gets noved. And | certainly want themto do a
t horough job, but you know, quite frankly, | thought we
sel ected them because this was their specialty.

And you know, | don't know how conplex it is,
but the elenents that |'ve seen seemto suggest that,
you know, if they can assess it, they'|ll be able to
det ermi ne whet her or not, you know, the feasibility of
It, and you know, it can be brought to staff and then
subsequently to the Board and then we can nove from
there. But that doesn't -- two nonths doesn't seem
practical .

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: | have a question about
phase one and what triggers noving to phase two. If in
phase one the Jones LaSalle, Jones Lang LaSal |l e deci des
or recommends to us that there is not sufficient
financial support or the devel oper does not have the
experience and financial capacity, then do we just --
what do we do?

MR SCOIT EVANS: At that tinme they would --

their deliverable, which is their proposal analysis,
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1| would be presented to the CRA Board, and at that tine

21 you could make a determnation if you wanted to nake

3| changes or if you wanted to start over or whatever the
4| proposed analysis determ nes. You would have a variety

5| of options at that point.

6 CHAIR LANIER: Did that answer your question?
7 COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Yes. |'msorry.
8 CHAIR LANIER:  Ckay. Are there any other

9| questions in regards to this iten?

10 | wanted to ask how long would it take for an
11| assessnent of the proposed nmaster devel oper's capacity
12| to perform you know, |ook at, you know, their

13| financials, their track record? How |l ong do you think
14| that that would take? That should be fairly quickly,

15| you know. Basically --

16 COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Madam Chair, that's

17| exactly what the question | asked.

18 CHAIR LANIER: Yes, that's -- yes, |'m asking
19| what's the -- because | nean | think that what you're
20 | saying is that there is maybe other things that are

21| included in this review. But we're just basically

22 | tal king about background, just basically financials in
23| terns of are they in a position to be able to undertake
24 | this task.

25 MR SCOIT EVANS: And | would at this point
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refer to their Vice President, M. Jereny Becker. |
beli eve he m ght be able to comment on what conponents

of that first phase could be done in an expedited

manner .

MR BECKER: Hi, Scott. | just appreciate
everyone's tine. [|'mactually only on audio right now.
My apol ogi es.

CHAIR LANIER.  Who's this?

MR. BECKER: This is Jereny Becker with Jones
Lang LaSal | e.

CHAIR LANIER  Yes. Ckay, go ahead, sir.

MR. BECKER: And | apol ogi ze for being only
on audi o.

But | would say this. You know, in terns of
devel oper capability, (a), | think that is always part
of a project feasibility analysis, and this would be as
well. W were asked to reviewthe totality of the
proposal , and candidly, devel oper financials are a part
of that. Your current selected devel opnent teamis
actually two firnms, so there's a little bit nore
background when it conmes to two devel opers.

And candidly, the overall devel opnent
feasibility, that's a part of it. It's certainly not
the entirety. It's not the end-all, be-all.

Cobviously, if you have a devel oper who's not
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financially capable, that's a nonstarter, and you know,
we woul d certainly analyze that as well. But again,
we' ve been asked to analyze the deal as a whol e, and
that is certainly, you know, what we are -- what we
intend to do and what we specialize in.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. That answers ny
questi on.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANI ER: Go ahead, sir.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: My question is for
M. Scott Evans.

M. Scott Evans, that's not the sane question
that | asked you. So maybe it needs to be bifurcated
In that, you know, we just take the financi al
feasibility part and that becones the initial thing.
They review -- I'msorry, not the capacity. WlIl, the
capacity and the feasibility of the finances that's
proposed. And then that kind of gets us off to a
start.

Because | don't want the firmof LaSalle to
start, you know, creating this whole plan if we haven't
even got past step A And | think that that's nost
| nportant, especially now that we've been -- you know,
this has been discussed for over three years.

M. BEvans, can we -- M. Jonat han Evans, can
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1| you offer anything?

2 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:  Yes.

3| Madam Chair, if | nay?

4 CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

S EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Wth

6| regards to the review of el enent eight, because based

7| on the conversation that we had with the Board, the

8| Board wanted to look at the elenents individually from
9| the standpoint that if you | ooked at the project in its
10| entirety, the ability to bring a project of that

11| magni tude and one devel oper, one devel opnent team being
12| able to do that and having the financial capabilities
13| to do that would invariably be a heavier |ift.

14 So based on the direction that the Board

15| provided was to | ook at el enent eight and be able to

16 | determne the financial feasibility associated with

171 that. So | would envision that the analysis that wll
18 | be conducted is the financial feasibility and the

19 | devel opnent teanis wherew thal and capabilities and

20 | financial neans to bring el enment eight and the

21 | associ ated assets to the table.

22 And then after that assessnment is done and

23| then there's activity going, then subsequent el enents
24 | would be reviewed. But there are major conponents that

25| would still have to cone back to this Board as part of
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t he di scussion, one of the nodifications of the
proposed site plan as it relates to parking, also
ground | ease conditions, a lot of itens that are in
correlation of being able to determne is this project
feasible and is the Board willing to nmake the
concessions that woul d have to be required in order to
bring that.

So there's a lot of additional clarity that
we need to get to the Board as part of the review
process. Now, we are going to nove that as quickly as
possi bl e, but there was direction that was provi ded by
this Board to | ook at these el enents individually.

| think the proposal and the scope speaks to
the entire project, and they would be the firmthat
woul d I ook at the entire project, so they wll build
upon things. But we would | ook nore specifically and
nore exclusively on el enent eight, and subsequent
el enents would cone on line. So that may, you know,
speed up the process.

But there is sone subsequent follow up
conversations that, after the analysis, or at |east a
portion of the analysis is done, we need to have a
conversation with the Board to say what are you willing
to do as it relates to part of the arrangenent to

facilitate the structure that's necessary to bring
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those elenents -- that elenent out of the ground.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

M. Jonat han Evans, that certainly seens
very -- alittle nore specific by addressing the
el ements and the feasibility of It as opposed to, you
know, just dropping, you know, everything and say, hey,
you know, take everything. | want to at |east get a
starting point, because | don't want to, you know,
spend too nmuch energy on, you know, working on through
it if for some reason, you know, we feel that we have
to pivot and go in a different direction. That's ne,
M. Evans.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: And Madam
Chair --

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: -- if
there's any deviation fromthe Board or the Board is in
agreeance with that particul ar pathway, please provide
us sone direction so we know that we are, in fact,
going to acconplish what the Board wants to see rel ated
to the review of this, because obviously, there's a | ot
of other elenments that are associated with it.

This is a large one in and of itself, but we

just want to make sure that we have clarity fromthe
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1| Board that it's to | ook at elenent eight, the financial
2| structure, and what would have to occur to facilitate

3| the transaction for the purposes of the devel opnent of

41 the townhonmes -- or the condos.

S COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

6 CHAIR LANIER Go ahead.

7 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: For purposes of those

8 | people who are listening fromhone and want to know

9| what elenent eight conprises, that's the garage and

10| the -- could you just be clear about that, M. Evans,
11| pl ease.

12 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: So the
13 | el enent eight consists of the devel opnent of the

14 | apartnments or condos or what have you, roughly, |

15 | think, about 135, if |I'mnot m staken, Scott?

16 MR, SCOTT EVANS: Yes.

17 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: And what
18 | was proposed was one particul ar parking garage that

19 | woul d accommpdate both towers. Now it's |ooking that
20 | the parking garage would be incorporated in each of the
21| towers, so it would be different, and there was a

22 | discussion as one garage that woul d connect both

23 | towers.

24 So there's other conponents that we need to

25| bring back to the Board to nake sure that you're in
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agreeance of what sone of the nodifications are to
those elenents to facilitate them noving forward.

Al so, that particul ar proposal, and based on
the subm ssion, that it also contenplates that the
devel opnent is an affordabl e devel opnent that | everages
the financing that's avail able, the tax credits that
are avail able through the State for workforce housing.
And so that's another nmmjor fundi ng conponent
associated with that particular elenment, so that wl|
be revi ewed.

And as we spoke sone tine ago that we need to
make sure that the Board -- if the Board is going to
support that project when it |ooks to cone back to you
possibly in a year for the application for the tax
credit program that it is a project that is eligible
to receive the |local contribution or |oan, what have
you, for the purposes of facilitating the stacking of
t he fundi ng, which roughly is about $650, 000, simlar
to the sane process that we went through wi th Berkel ey
Landi ng.

So there's sone nuances into that, the ground
| ease, what's the ground | ease terns that the Board is
considering, and if you're in favor of the structure as
far as the parking and how that is able to facilitate.

Scott, is there any other conponents?
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MR, SCOTT EVANS: Yes. It also includes
el ements zero through five, which is the waterfront
restaurants, the build-out of the Event Center, and
then al so sonme market retail in the center of the
Mar i na.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chair, may |
foll ow up?

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: So, but what |'m hearing
M. Evans, Scott -- excuse nme -- M. Jonathan Evans say
Is that initially Jones Lang LaSalle will be I ooking at
el enment eight, and then once we're past that, then
they' Il go back and | ook at el enents one through
what ever.

My question back to M. Jonathan Evans is if
it's yet to be determ ned by decision of this body what
the nature of the housing will be, for exanple, wll it
be affordable, will it be workforce, will it be market
rate, how can Jones Lang LaSal | e anal yze t he proposal
wi t hout having that information fromthis Council ?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if | my?

CHAIR LANIER  Go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: The

subm ssion, in and of itself, and the discussions we've
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had with the Board that there was direction that was
provided that in the original submssion it was
contenplated that it would have workforce housing, and
then in subsequent conversations that we've had with
the Board it's been workforce housing.

Now, there's been Board nenbers that have
said that they want to see a market rate product, but
the overarching direction that's been provided by this
Board is that it still has that affordable or workforce
conponent. And that was fundanental to the subm ssion
that was responded to when the Board did put out --
when we did put out the solicitation.

And M. Scott Evans, correct ne if |'m wong.
In the solicitation docunent, wasn't that an itemthat
was requested as part of the RFP or RFQ process that
was utilized at the tine, that there was a request for
sonme wor kf orce conponent ?

MR, SCOTT EVANS. Yes, we did anticipate that
t here woul d be affordable housing within the Marina
Vill age project.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Affordabl e or workforce?

MR, SCOTT EVANS: |'mnot sure that it was
delineated. [|'mnot sure which termwas used, but
| i kel y af fordabl e.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: | see a difference
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bet ween affordabl e, workforce and market rate, and |
see themas sort of a hierarchy. So | just wanted to
know if in the original request there was that

del i neation, but | guess you're saying there wasn't.

MR SCOIT EVANS: Yes, | think what we did
was we said that we desired housing and that they
shoul d provide a list of the types of housing and what
ki nd of subsidies would be included in that.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Ckay.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: So | think it was --

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: So we left it open
initially, and what canme back to us was that it was
af f ordabl e and wor kf or ce.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: Yes. Well, what cane back,
| think, was a mx of uses. |It's sone private
residential envisioned in the future.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: Ckay, thank you.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Any ot her questions in regards
to this itenf

| just wanted to say that, you know, of
course ny col |l eagues know ny position on this whole
Marina project. You know, four or five years we've
been having this discussion about this particular
project, and you know, we haven't even got past the

poi nt where we know if the people who are supposed to
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1| be our nmaster devel opers have the financial wherewthal
2| to even do this.

3 And | think a lot of tinmes when we have had
41 this conversation up here and putting the cart before
5| the horse and we're tal king about different types of

6 | housing and we're tal king about all of this, and we

7| don't even know, we don't even have anything that has
8 | been done by a reputable, certified, you know,

9| financial (inaudible) to say if the developers are in a
10 | position to be able to do it.

11 And | think it is a very sinple -- it's a

12| very sinple item Does the naster devel oper have the
13 | opportunity or the financial wherewithal to conplete
14| the project? And if it's a master devel oper, that

15| means all of it. Can you conplete all of 1t? That's
16 | the purpose. That is the definition of master

17| devel oper, basically. You can do all of this and you
18 | can -- you know, you do all of this work that we're

19 | doi ng because you can, you know, we have the noney to
20| do all of this piece here and there.

21 So if we're going to | ook at different

22 | pieces, you know, now we need to | ook at, you know,

23 | additional devel opers. You know, they can only do one
24 | piece or they can only afford one piece or they can

25| only be, you know, certified for one piece in terns of
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1| financial wherewithal, then we have to | ook at other --
2| opening this up to other devel opers for opportunities.
3 So, you know, we have this and have had this
4| conversation for the last four or five years, and it

5| seens as if we have not even noved an inch in terns

6| of -- and | know that what we're doing now, especially
7| M. Jonathan Evans has, you know, nade sure that we're
8| in a position going forward that we know exactly what

9| we're getting ourselves into here.

10 So | can appreciate the fact that he has

11| brought on these experts to be able to |l et us know,

12 | because, you know, you're talking about a $65 mllion
13| contract for the garbage. W're tal king about 100 to
14| $200 mllion for a project that has not even seen the
15| light of day.

16 So, and also, in addition to that, you know,
17| we have this conversation about Rei magi ne Ri vera Beach.
18 | And, you know, we're tal king about this big investnent
19| to the city. | want the Cty, the CRAto go out to the
20 | public, to the residents and say, |ook, this is what

21 we're trying to do over at the Marina. Gve the

22 | residents the information that we're doing on all of

23 | these big projects, because we're having this

24 | conversation about the Marina and have not had one

25| comunity neeting about it with the residents of the
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city.

And if we're going to be noving forward with
sonet hi ng that expensive, 100 -- | nean in the
newspaper, you know, sonetines they say a $300 mllion
deal. If we're noving forward wth sonething that

huge, it has to cone to the comunity and to the
residents to be able to have the same conversation. It
shoul d not just be us tal king about this. And if we're
going to go forward and put out City Hall to the public
to talk about, the fire station, then we need to do the
same thing with this particular project. This is a |ot
of noney.

So we're having these discussions about we
don't even know if the devel oper who won the bid is
financially capable enough to do the project. And
we've had this conversation for the |last two years
about if they are capable of doing this. And |I'm not
saying that they're not. | ampro developnent. | am
pro econom c developnent. | want this to happen.

But | don't want us to be in a position five
years from now where we're holding the bag here and you
have projects that are -- | nean | ook at the whol e deal
with Boynton Beach. | nean they're stuck wth the
project that they tried to go forward wth but did not

have all of these things in place.
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So | think that as we're tal king about this
Marina deal, we need to talk to the community about it.
This is sonething that they want to know about. And |
know as, you know, taking off this Councilwoman's hat
and putting on ny resident, lifelong resident hat, |
woul d want to know all of this.

So didn't nmean to go on that rant, but | just
wanted a place to kind of get out that, you know -- and
| know all of ny colleagues are just kind of
frustrated, you know, that this project has just
| ingered and |ingered and |ingered.

So M. Evans, once again, Jonathan Evans, |
appreciate you trying to put these things in place so
that we don't get down this road and find oursel ves
stuck |i ke Boynton Beach.

So | mean that's ny say. But, you know, it's
just that this is a |ot of noney we're tal king about,
and if we're going to have these conversations with
oursel ves, we need to have these conversations with the
community and wth the residents about what we're doing
here. And that's all | have to say. Sorry about that,
peopl e.

Are there any other questions?

COW SSI ONER MCOY: One last -- well, | just

wanted to kind of nmake sure we're -- so --
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1 CHAIR LANIER: Go ahead.

2 COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  -- | think, M. Evans,
3| is that sonmething for you to take, because the itemis
41 still -- 1 mean the question still remains on the

5| resolution. W're going to authorize them | just had
6 | concerns about what the next steps forward are in the
7| tinmeline. But you know, with all intents and purposes,
8| you know, | want to see that we nove forward. | think
9] the tinme line and what actual ly happens next needs to
10 | be tweaked at the staff level. But | think, you know,
11| the resolution is what it is.

12 So | think do we have -- so we go to public
13 | comment s?

14 CHAIR LANIER.  Yes, we do. Yes, we'll start
15| wth the Council coments, and we'll get the public,

16 | and then if you want to cone back, we can have sone

17| other things to say.

18 Madam C er k.

19 THE CLERK: Ms. Brabham

20 M5. BRABHAM Ms. Mary Brabham Riviera
21| Beach. I, for one --

22 CHAIR LANIER:  Hold on one second,

23| Ms. Brabham let ne get the tine up. One second. |
24| don't want you to lose your tine. Al right, go ahead.

25| They got it.
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M5. BRABHAM Ms. Mary Brabham Rivera Beach.

|, for one, and many ot her residents that
live in this city here, we've been wagging with this
for six or seven or five years. This apple is too big,
and it 1s not ripe.

Just two nonths ago we had this article in
t he paper about the other group that was not
financially stable. Qur advisers here -- and | hope
that you're listening to Ms. Brabham That's just what

you are. You are advisors to let us know that our i's
are dotted and our t's are crossed and our financi al
and feasibility in the directions that we are shoul d
and supposed to go.

We hol d you accountable for this. The noneys
Is just not there. Stop, stop, stop, stop fooling
yourselves. It's just not there. Just like we threw
t he WAste Managenent out, and I'mnot saying if that's
what you all want to do, but it's just not workable.
And | amtired of it, along wwth the city in general.

I n phase one, the project review and el enent
analysis, it will review our project background
materials for review of devel oper proposals, review an
assessnent of devel oper perfornmance, eval uation of

proposed financial support requested fromthe Cty and

the CRA and review of the devel opers' experience and
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1| financial, financial capacity to undertake this
2| project. Review of related parking anal ysis conpl eted

3| by Desman Par ki ng.

4 The City Manager just said you had one
5| pocket. Now two pockets will have to be incorporated
6| in those hours there. It is a lot of gaps in here.

7| When those two groups first canme in this chanbers here
8| over there, M. Brabham stood there and said, wait a

9| mnute, it's flawed. And Scott Evans was there. And |
10| said the project was tainted then. M. M| er-Anderson
11| and Dr. Botel, you were there. You were headed in the
12 | right direction then.

13 And all of these years here, this is what we
14 | have been stuck in this node here, trying to please and
15 fan. It's tinme out for it. It's tinme out for the

16 | Board. It's tine out for it. |If the shoe can't fit,

171 it's no way that you can wear that shoe, and we nust

18 | give others a bite of this apple.

19 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, Ms. Brabham |

20 | thank you for your conments.

21 M5. BRABHAM It shoul dn't have been this way
22| fromthe beginning. Tine out for this.

23 CHAIR LANIER: Are there any nore public

24 | comment s?

25 M5. BRABHAM | |ove themall, but time out.
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are there

card in.

didn't do

we' ve had
bef ore we

good.

CHAIR LANI ER Madam O er k.

THE CLERK: Comm ssi oner M Coy.

CHAIR LANIER  No, no, no, he -- |'m asking
any nore public coments.

THE CLERK: Oh. No nore public coments.
CHAI R LANI ER:  Ckay.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Maybe | got a conment
No, unl ess sonebody put it in for nme. |
it.

CHAIR LANIER. Al right, very good. So
our public comment. Any other comments

call the question about this itenf? Very

Madam d er k.

THE CLERK: Conmm ssi oner M Coy.
COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Conmm ssi oner Botel .
COW SSI| ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

THE CLERK:  Comm ssi oner Lawson.
COWM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.
VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.
THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.

THE CLERK: Mbtion carries.
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1 CHAIR LANI ER:  Thank you. [|tem nunber seven.
2 THE CLERK: Presentation and di scussi on,
3| Marina Village Rivera Beach Event Center, unw nding new

41 market tax credit financial agreenents.

S The acceptance of public comments is now

6 | cl osed.

7 CHAIR LANIER. Do we have any public comment
8 | cards?

9 THE CLERK: No, we don't.

10 CHAIR LANIER: Al right, very good.

11 M. Evans, Jonat han Evans.

12 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
13 | Chair and nenbers of the Board, |I'd ask for Scott

14 | Evans, our Pl anni ng and Devel opnent Director, to nake
15| this presentation.

16 CHAIR LANIER: M. Evans.

17 MR. SCOTT EVANS: (Good eveni ng, Madam Chair
18 | and nenbers of the Board.

19 Qur new market tax credits agreenents and the
20| financial structures associated with themneed to be

21| closed. And they have a seven year tine period. So

22 | previously the CRA has hired the law firm of by Bryant
23| MIller Adive to assist us in unw nding those

24 | transactions. And that process is al ready underway, in

25 | accordance wth our agreenents.
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And the first phase of that process is an
unwi ndi ng of our agreenents wth the banks who hel ped
us with that transaction. But what will remain for
this Board to nake a decision on is how they want to
proceed in the future with the unw ndi ng of the
agreenents, and primarily with who you want to be
responsi ble for the operation, managenent of the Event
Center.

Now, the next steps in this process, Bryant
Mller AQive presented to both the Gty Council and the
CRA Board previously to try and provi de sone background
on this fairly conplicated unw nding. So follow ng
tonight's presentation, Bryant MIller -- Bob Reid from
Bryant MIler Aive has another presentation for you
t oni ght .

But follow ng tonight's neeting, what we're
trying to look for is Board direction on which agency
that you want to operate and run the Event Center
noving forward. And we need to know that so that we
can devel op the unwi nding of the agreenents. And so if
we get sone direction tonight, whether it's the CRA or
the City itself, who are probably the nost two |ikely
options you m ght consider, then we can devel op those
agreenents in August so that we can bring them back

before you in Septenber for approval.
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1 And then we al so envision that there's been
2| several questions of the Board related to the future of
3| the CDE, which is one of the entities that was created
41 in order for us to receive the new market tax credits.

5| And we're also planning to have a presentation in

6 | Septenber.
7 So after we've devel oped the agreenents to
8| unwind the transactions on our side, then we'll also go

9| through a presentation that will be provi ded by Bryant
10| MIler dive on what the CDE is and what the future of
11 it could be, and to try and get the Board's

12 | recomendations for what they would like us to do with
13| that entity going into the future. So that's another
14| step that we were looking to bring to you in Septenber.
15 But toni ght we have a few options that we

16 | really need to get sone feedback on, because we need to
17| start preparation of those unw nding agreenents. And
18 | the current operational node is that the CRA operates
19 | and manages the Event Center, and it's |leased fromthe
20 City. The Gty actually owns the | and underneath. So
21| we have a few determ nati ons.

22 And with that, 1'd like to introduce M. Bob
23| Reid fromBMO. He'll go through the various options

24| that we're trying to get Board direction on. And if we

25| could get that direction, you can always change it. So
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11 if we develop the agreenents that are approved, say

2| perhaps for the CRA Board -- | nean for the CRAto

3| continue to nanage it, then we woul d devel op t hose

4 | unwi ndi ng agreenents, but you would al ways have the

5| ability in the future to nmake changes to that or to

6 | conme back and reassess, you know, who you would like to

7| manage the Event Center.

8 And with that, I'd like to introduce M. Bob
9| Reid.
10 MR. REID: Thank you. Pleasure to neet with

11| you all again.

12 And | can report to you that the unw nd of

13| the new market tax credit transaction closed today, so

141 it is over, it is done. And it's what is left are the

15| interactions between the R viera Beach Event Center,

16 | the Riviera Beach CDE, the Riviera Beach CRA and the

17| Gty of Riviera Beach.

18 So what we have here is really to decide

19| where is the best place to house the Event Center where
20| it would be operated and naintai ned, marketed, utilized
21| by which entity would take the best of that. And that

22 | woul d be, you know, nore than likely either the CRA or

23| the City itself.

24 So really, the first decision would be which,

25| between the City and the CRA, would be the ones that
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woul d, or the entity that would take on that |long-term
obligation to market the facility, operate it and
maintain it, which is a, you know, ongoing financi al
obl i gati on.

What you have in your agenda packages toni ght
is a slightly graphically changed presentation that was
presented to the City a few weeks ago, hopefully nuch
easier to read. And skipping through that, there's
really a few situations or a few questions that need to
be addressed.

As we -- as | said earlier, the City is stil
the owner of the |land underneath the Event Center. The
Event Center is leased to a limted liability conpany
that is really the alter ego of the CDE --

CHAIR LANIER:  The slides need to be
advanced?

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Well, I'mon the next
slide and he's not, so --

MR REID. Well, nove it to -- let's see,
one, two, three -- fourth slide, Now Wo Owmns What ?

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Keep goi ng.

CHAIR LANI ER  kay, go ahead.

MR REID. Ckay, so --

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: We're not there yet.

Keep goi ng, because that's only the -- you're on the
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second slide here. Keep going to the fourth, he said.
Who' s advancing the slides?

MR, SCOTT EVANS. (Oh.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Ch, Scott.

MR REID: | have no control over them or |
woul d be happy to.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: It was
t he popcorn.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: There you go.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: It's the
popcor n.

MR REID:. There we go, all right.

So goi ng back where we have the City owns the
land, it is |eased to the Event Center LLC, which is,
I n essence, an instrunentality of the CDE. And they
owe the new market debt to the CDE, the sonewhat paper
debt at this point. The CDE owes a recoverabl e grant
back to the CRA

The CRA is currently the master tenant of the
Event Center, and as such, they have currently the
obligation to operate, maintain and nmarket the Event
Center. Under that | ease, they also have an obligation
to nmake substantial |ease paynents to the Event Center,
whi ch were designed to denonstrate financial viability

In that entity for purposes of the new narket tax
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1| credit, and they are not really needed at this tine.

21 So we have a circle, if you wll, of obligations where
3| various parties owe each other basically the sane

41 dollars in a big circle.

S Go to the next slide. I'mnot sure if its

6 | progressed or not.

7 These are basically questions, you know, and
8| | think the main question is which entity is in the

9| best position to undertake the |ong-term oversight of
10| the Event Center, and is there any reason to transfer
11| the underlying property ownership fromthe Gty, for
12 | exanple, to the CRA

13 And dependi ng on who w nds up -- whoever is
14| going to have the long-term operation and mai nt enance
15| obligations for the Event Center should be either the
16 | owner of the Event Center or a lessee fromthe Cty so
17| that they have the possessory rights that are

18 | necessary.

19 | would skip the next couple slides and go
20 to -- the first line, it says: Option One, CRA Retains
21 | Managenent .

22 |f the decision is to have the CRA be that
23| long-termentity or the entity with the long-term

24 | obligation to operate and naintain the facility, then a

25| few steps need to be taken.
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1 Nunmber one, the CDE needs to transfer the

2| debt it now holds, or holds through an instrunmentality
3] and will hold directly, the nortgage | oans that

41 represented the new narket tax credit loan to the Event
5| Center. Those need to be transferred to the CRA

6| basically in satisfaction of the recoverable grant that
7| the CRA nade to facilitate this whole transacti on.

8 The CRA and the Event Center LLC then can

9| basically termnate, which | would suggest, the master
10 | | ease between the CRA and the Event Center LLC and

11| exchange for the cancellation of the underlying

12 | nortgage notes and either an assignnent of the ground
13| lease fromthe City to the CRA or a new ground | ease

14| fromthe Gty to the CRA

15 MR SCOIT EVANS: And if | could just junp in
16 | right at that point --

17 MR REID: Yes.

18 MR, SCOTT EVANS: This is the option that

19 | staff is recommending. Due to our current placenent in
20 | the budget process and the City and the CRA devel opi ng
21 | our budgets, we currently have proposed themin a

22 | manner that would neet option one.

23 Now, all of the details and financial costs
24 | related to the running of the Event Center of course

25| will be | ooked at both by the Gty Council and by the
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CRA Board during our future budget workshops. But
because of where we are in the budget adoption cycle,
this would be the easiest option for us to inplenent
now, even if the Board decided to change at a future
date, because we are currently, the CRAIis currently
operating and managi ng the Event Center.

And we think that there are sonme future
changes that we've heard the Board would like us to
consi der, including how we can nmake it nore financially
profitable. And we have sone -- we'll also include how
we propose to do that as we nove through the budget
process. And one of themwould just be to | ook at how
we operationally nmanage and operate this facility, in
addi tion, of course, as we nove forward with the
bui |l d-out, having nore rents, of course, would help
al so.

But | just wanted to say at this point that
this is the option that staff is recommendi ng that we
do currently. And of course, whichever decision the
Board nakes, you could always cone back at a future
time and say, well, at this point we would |ike the
Cty Council, or rather the Gty itself to manage it.
So you always have the option to change in the future,
but currently we're preparing our budgets for your

review in accordance with this option.
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CHAIR LANTER Al right, before you go any
further, sir, | have a question on the floor for you
two guys.

Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Thank you, Madam Chair.

M. Scott Evans, so the CDE would transfer
and assign the nortgages to the CRA. So what happens
to the cash on hand or accunul ated cash? Wuld that go
over to the CRA as well?

MR. SCOTT EVANS: | would et M. Reid answer
that. But no, | don't -- the CDE' s accunul ated cash is
the difference between the rent that we paid each year
and their nortgage paynents and sone of the operati onal
things that they still contributed to. | think
I nsurance was one of them But no, those dollars would
remain with the CDE until we got this Board's direction
I n Septenber what you wanted to do with the CDE. And
that's approxi mately $700, 000.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY:  Ckay, foll ow up.

CHAIR LANIER Go ahead.

COWM SSI ONER McCOY: The other thing is you
spoke of the build-out. So if we do assign the
nort gages over to the CRA, then the CRA would
ultimately accept, inherently, the responsibility of

t he buil d-out.
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MR SCOIT EVANS: Yes. \Wichever entity you
want to manage and operate the Event Center will have
to solve for finding about 1 to $1.5 mllion to assi st
in the build-out of the currently vacant spaces in this
bui l di ng. And sonme of those CDE dollars, which is over
$700, 000, could, of course, assist in that. But at
this tine we're not asking the Board to nake a
determ nation on what the future of the CDE is, but
there are dollars in the CDE that could contribute in
the future, yes, M. MCoy.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Thank you.

COMM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Madam Chai r.

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: M. Scott Evans, when
you say that this is the recommendati on of staff, |'m
guessing that that's the CRA staff. Does the Gty
staff concur with that recommendati on?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if I may?

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: |'ve had
ext ensi ve conversation was the Manager --

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: d ad to know.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: -- and we

concur with the recomendati on.
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| think as it relates to where we are in the
budget process and then what the inpact would be to the
wor kf orce, you know, if they do cone over to the Cty
side, now you have a situation where you have a | arge
segnent of the enployees. Now, where do we slot them
in the pay plan? Now they're represented enpl oyees and
the |ike.

And so there's a lot of other itens that we
believe that we really need to do our due diligence
bef ore we woul d ever consider that. And where we are
In the transaction, it would probably take us at | east
six nonths to be able to bring sonething that the Board
can consider. And so our recommendation would be to
nove forward as di scussed.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you.

CHAIR LANIER: Al right, go back to the
presentati on.

MR, SCOTT EVANS. Ckay. M. Reid, do you
want to continue?

MR REID. Certainly. The other two
potential options are in the presentation in the next
two pages, which is the Gty takes over managenent and
It winds up staying under the guise of the R viera
Beach CDE, which is -- has sonme affiliation with the

Cty, but is not a Gty controlled entity like the Cty

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 7/ 29/ 2021

104

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

and the CRA is.

Again, it goes back to who is going to be
responsi bl e and has the financial wherewthal to take
on that |ong-term operation, maintenance, buil d-out and
mar keting of the Event Center. So --

CHAI R LANI ER:  The presenter, we have a | ot
of background noi se from your presentation.

MR. REID: | apol ogi ze.

CHAIR LANIER. That's okay. Go ahead,
pr oceed.

MR REID:. See if | can quiet it down a
little bit. Unfortunately, | can't really control
what's going in the m crophone.

The really, | guess, the biggest question for
this body is really those ongoi ng expenditures. You' ve
got, | think Scott said a mllion and a half esti nated
bui |l d-out costs, you have ongoi ng, you know,
oper ati onal expenses for the property. And you know,
which is the entity that is best positioned to be able
to, you know, assune those obligations?

And all things considered, that woul d
probably be either the Gty or the CRA. The CDE has a
limted revenue generating ability, so -- because of
their operations. So we're really, | think froma

financial standpoint, looking at the Cty or the CRA
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taking on that obligation. And so | think the real
decision is which entity is the best place for nowto
house that responsibility.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL:  Madam Chai r.

MR REID: As Scott said earlier, this is not
a once you nmake the decision, you're forever | ocked
into it.

COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes. Hold on.

MR. REID: Yes, four, six, eight years down
the road it can change.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Presenter, hold on one second.
We have a question.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Thank you. | want to
nmake a notion that we approve going with option one
where the CRA retains managenent.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON:  Second.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Any discussion in regards to
this iten? W didn't even get -- | really wanted to
hear --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: (I naudi bl e.)

CHAI R LANI ER:  Public comments for this item
Madam C er k?

THE CLERK: No, there are no public comrents.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: That was the end of the
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present ati on.

CHAIR LANIER: Was that the end of it?

MR, SCOTT EVANS: Yes.

CHAIR LANTER | didn't see a third option.
It was the option of the CRA, the City, and what was
the third one?

MR. REID: The CDE, the Gty or the CRA

CHAIR LANFER. Ch, the two options, | see.

MR, SCOTIT EVANS. There was three options,
Madam Chair. But in order for the CDE, | think there
woul d have to be a | ot nore structural changes that
woul d have to take place in order for that to be an
option that we pursue, and we're really not in a
position to pursue that option at the nonent because we
woul d have to do a | ot nore due diligence in order to
prepare the agreenents for that particul ar option.

CHAIR LANFER.  Well, | nean it seens ny
coll eagues like the first option. But | do like the
option of the City retaining control so that they can
mai nt ai n ownership and control of the property, but --

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

CHAIR LANTER  -- that's just ny druthers.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chair, ny
understanding, if I'"mcorrect, is that we can do that

I n Septenber, COctober, Novenber, at sone future date
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when it mght be easier froma budget standpoint.

CHAIR LANIER | see.

Go ahead, sir.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Well, actually, not so
fast, because ny question that | was going to ask, so
associated with the current |osses, obviously it's
going to take a long tine to even get a, | guess
perhaps even if | could use the word break, to get to
the break even point. So | guess if we do option one
and assign the nortgages, so the CRAis now going to
carry those | osses on its books?

MR. SCOTT EVANS: As the Event Center is
currently operating, it is a loss. And whichever
entity takes over, whether it's the City or the CRA,
until there's changes made, that loss will continue.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: Right. But ny question
I s does that now carry over to the CRA those | osses?
So starting at -- | nean even if we just wite off what
the | osses are, just starting at nonth nunber one and
carrying forward, that's going to create |osses on the
books.

MR. SCOTT EVANS: Yes, under the current
arrangenent, it's approximately 650,000 a year.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY:  So froma holistic

financial standpoint as far as sone of the other
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financing itens that we've tried to do, like did we --
you know, | guess we did the BB&T | oan. So |ike what
does that do as far as our capacity to borrow noney if
we're now taking on such a loss wwth no real plan on
how we' re going to get that back where it can actually
generate revenue is ny concern. And that's the first
part.

CHAIR LANIER: Go ahead, sir.

MR REID: |If |I can answer that, to sone
extent those | osses, and |'ve not |ooked at your books,
but there is a substantial rent paynent due under the
current master tenant agreenent between the Event
Center and the CRA, in addition to which, it's a net
| ease, so that the CRA is responsible for all of the
operati ng expenses, nai ntenance, repairs, whatnot.

So by elimnating that master tenant
agreenent, you are elimnating those substantial |ease
paynments which are affecting the loss, if you wll,
being currently booked to the CRA, because as naster
tenant under that lease, it is the one who is carrying
t he burden of those | osses.

CHAIR LANTER | see. Does that answer your
question, M. MCoy?

COWM SSI ONER McCOY:  No.

CHAIR LANTER. It doesn't?

Fl orida Court Reporting
561- 689- 0999



Rl VI ERA BEACH CRA 7/ 29/ 2021

109

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW SSI ONER McCOY: But we, you know - -

CHAIR LANI ER No, no, no, ask your question.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY: | guess | don't
understand that. You know, he's --

MR SCOTT EVANS: May | 7?

CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes, go ahead. M. Evans, go
ahead.

MR, SCOTT EVANS. So previous years the cost
to the CRA to manage the Event Center would be a
mllion dollar loss. By proceeding with unw ndi ng of
this transaction, the loss is going to be reduced to
650, 000.

And then what we'd |like to do is, whether
It's the CRA or the Cty, is undergo a study to review
t he operations, costs and revenues so that we could
bri ng back sone changes to this Board for your
consi deration that would help further change that. So
by unwi nding the tax credit transaction, we are
reduci ng the loss that the CRA experiences.
Unfortunately, it's still --

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Can | clarify and ask a
guesti on?

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

COWM SSI ONER Mt COY: So M. Scott Evans, |
think 1've heard that the CRA currently isn't absorbing
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any of the losses currently associated with the
operation of the Marina Event Center. That's only
prospectively. So if we exercise option one, at that
point we wll be absorbing the |losses. Am| correct?

MR SCOIT EVANS: Well, we've absorbed the
| osses since it was first constructed.

COWMM SSI ONER McCOY: R ght, but | thought
that was with, specifically wwth the Marina Event
Center. What is that, the RBMEC?

MR, SCOTT EVANS. Yes, because of the way the
new market tax credit transaction was set up, any
| osses didn't occur to the CDE. They, in fact, nade a
profit every year, which can now be reinvested into the
project for build-out or whatever the Board --

COWMM SSI ONER MECOY: Can | insert a
clarification? But right now at this point, we're not
carrying the | osses on our books at the CRA is what
| "' m sayi ng.

MR, SCOIT EVANS: This year the CRA is
responsi ble for any losses in this building.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY:  No, no, no. | nean
before the dissolving of the tax credits, before that
burns off, we're not carrying | osses on our books
related to the Event Center operations.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
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Chair, if I may?

CHAI R LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: We are.
And that's an operational cost. So the cost for us to
provi de the services here, payroll costs, insurance or
what have you, it is at a deficit, but it's considered
as part of the operational budget. It's no different
t han Barracuda Bay. W don't showit -- we know that's
a |l oss, but our budget is balanced and we utilize other
revenue to be able to subsidize.

So it is still a situation where it shows up
I n the budget, but it is not in a specific line item
that shows that this particular operation is at a | oss.
So it is always reflected in the budget docunents. W
just balance it out as part of the revenue intake wth
the CRA. So it's always been there since the inception
of the relationship.

COW SSI ONER McCOY: Ckay. And if | can just
add this last point.

CHAIR LANIER Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY: Coul d you have -- you
know, and | brought this up before, you know, the
mai nt enance of just the common areas of Bi centenni al
Par k, and even, | guess, the pronenade out there, that

essentially is the Gty's property that the CRA has
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been covering. So you know, froma standpoint, a | ot
of the |osses aren't necessarily generated by the
operation of the Marina Event Center. There are conmon
area costs that goes into that.

So and, you know, | don't know, it could not,
no way possible could it have been this conplex to put
this deal together just to take it apart, because, you
know, this is just beyond ne. And it takes only four
or five tinmes, and | still don't understand it. So
that's, you know, why |I'm asking these questi ons,

M. Scott Evans and Jonat han Evans.

CHAIR LANFTER  And | have to agree wth
M. MCoy in the sense that it seens like the Gty
woul d be nore in a position to cover those | osses than
the CRA. And the way that, you know, the way that it's
| ooking, | think the Gty is in a better position to do
t hat .

And | understand that it nmay be a budget
I ssue at this tinme for it and this was just for

di scussion. This was not, you know, for sonething that

we shoul d be voting on. And because | still do, as
M. MCoy does, | still do have sone questions about
this --

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chair.
CHAIR LANFER  -- so what option it should
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be.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chair, if | could
t hough, we have the ability to change this six nonths
down the road. Ri ght now adopting option one nakes it
easier, if you wll, for the staff to make those
staffing changes, to nmake those changes to the -- it
becones an issue of allowing the staff the tine to nmake
this transfer. So doing this tonight accomodat es
staff's request to have this set up this way.

And then ultimately, if we -- | nean
ultimately, the CRAis not going to be in existence, so
of course we want the City to be, you know,
responsible. But at this point in time, the best thing
to do would be to say to the staff we'll go ahead, this
body approves option one, and then ultimately the Cty
can take over, but for right nowthe CRAwIIl do this.

And | just have one other quick question, if

CHAI R LANI ER:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER BOTEL: When is the CRA budget
process begi nni ng?

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Wl |,
we' ve been --

CHAIR LANIER: M. Evans.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,
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Madam Chai r.

We are incorporating that in the discussion
wth the Cty budget. So you're going to hear about
the Uility District, the Gty, the CRA --

COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Ckay.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: -- all of
It In one instead of having the additional neetings.

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Ckay, thank you.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, if I may?

CHAIR LANI ER  Yes, go ahead.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: To
provi de sone additional clarity, we do need a decision
fromthe Board this evening. W are still going to go
t hrough a conprehensive analysis. And | had a
di scussion with Scott not too |ong ago about if the
City was to operate it, the costs associated with it if
the CRA continues to maintain it, what is the cost, and
then bring that back in subsequent discussion and then
sonme recomendati ons on the marketing pronotion and the
cost that we levy related to activities and events and
prograns.

And so we are going to end up bringing this
back to you, but for the purposes of the budget

process, on the City side |'mnot, at this particular
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1| nmonent, not really enthused about taking an operation

2| that's a $650,000 | oss | eader, because then that puts

3| it onthe City side. So howdo |I find the $650,000 to
4| balance the budget? So it would actually put us in a

5| precarious situation if we made the transfer

6| immedately.

7 Now, if we have conversations and di scussions
8 | and we can plan accordingly, we may be able to see,

9| okay, is there a situation with sonme of the staff

10| com ng over, is there sone other positions that we

11| have, is there sone tweaks that we can nake to operate
12| alittle bit nore efficiently.

13 There's a very conprehensi ve anal ysi s that

141 1'd recommend us goi ng through, which we are going to
15| do before we made that. But if we were to transfer it
16 | to the Gty right now, the bal anced budget that 1'Ill be
17| sending to you on Saturday, | would have to find

18 | $650,000 to balance it out to be able to accept the

19 | operation as it is right now versus the situation where
20 | the CRA' s budget is already prepared and has been

21 | absorbing the deficit related to the revenues versus

22 | the expenditures.

23 CHAIR LANIER: And | certainly understand

24 | that nmuch better. Could |I offer an amendnent that we

25| do this tenporary until we can do a noderni zation pl an
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so that we can cone back and know where this is,
because it seens if it's a -- it's not an issue of, you
know, who has what, but an issue -- to ne it clearly
| ooks |ike a budget issue. So we can, you know, wth
t he caveat that we can bring this back.
COW SSI ONER BOTEL: | think that's the
under st andi ng.
CHAIR LANI ER:  Yes.
COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: And | don't -- | nean |
accept that nodification to the notion if --
CHAIR LANIER  Yes, that's what we do.
COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: Does the second of the
noti on accept that nodification?
VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.
COW SSI ONER LAWSON: Madam Chai r.
CHAIR LANIER:  Yes. Yes, sir, go ahead.
COWMM SSI ONER LAWSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

While we're just nmaking a decision right now

for our budget discussions, we will be bringing this
item back, | really think that we have to address it
I mmedi ately, because for seven years we still have dirt

I n our Marina, we have space that's been not utilized,
and we could have invested into building it out and
getting a tenant in there to generate sone additional

revenue.
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So | really think that we have to | ook at the
managenent and operations of the Event Center, whether
It"'s inthe Gty or wwthin a private sector, to get
this done imediately. So once we do nove forward with
this just for the budget item | think this is an item
t hat needs to cone back immediately to us. As quickly
as the budget is announced and processed, we need to
di scuss what we're going to do with this event space
and have sone tough discussions about it to figure out
how we can nove forward.

Because an unfini shed Marina, when | wal ked
t hrough and saw dirt inside of the Marina, and it's
been there frominception, and not even utilizing that
rental space, whether it's for expansion of what's
currently here or additional space, it doesn't nake any
sense. And that actually shows why we are | osing the
noney, because we have a | ack of managenent.

So we can nove forward tonight with keeping
it wthin the CRA just for the budget tal ks, but as
Counci | worman Lanier stated, let's nmake sure that we
bring this back as quickly as we can.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANI ER  Thank you, sir.

COW SSI ONER McCOY:  Madam Chair.

CHAIR LANFER. | agree with that.
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Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER MeCOY: (Ckay, that's fine.

So M. Evans, CRA Director, can you ask the
Manager, can you ask the Manager to have this a part of
t hose departnental quarterly reports that we get from
M. Sherman, because quite frankly, if you' re bal ancing
t he budget, there's no real expectation, and | think
the auditor was right on point that we know or
understand that the real, true operations of the Marina
Event Center, because we've never seen that. And that
I's so tough for us to make a deci sion about this when
that's the case.

And to M. Lawson's point, that is absolutely
fine, and | support it. But the grand question is we
go back to the issue of parking. Can you really afford
to put one point however much, $1.5 mllion into
bui | ding out that space and we currently don't even
have, you know, enough parking to accommobdate the
exi sting anenities around the Marina? So this is
sonething that has a | ot of strings and tentacles
attached to it, and | think we have to be able to get
t his addressed sooner than |ater.

EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Madam
Chair, 1f | my?

CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, sir.
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1 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS:

2| Absolutely. And Council person, to your point, we are

3| going to bring all the progranms and activities that we
41 charge a fee for service as part of the quarterly

5| reports so you can be able to see realtine which

6| operations are exceeding their projections and are

7| generating revenue versus those that are | oss | eaders,
8 | because we nmay want to nmake sone tweaks or

9| nodifications to be able to capture or take a | ook at
10 | these operations if we can nmake sone efficiencies to be
11| able to continue to make sone i nprovenents.

12 So that will be incorporated in the quarterly
13| reports that we provide by finance that shows, you

14 | know, our |edger to be able to see which is running in
15| a deficit and which is exceedi ng projections.

16 CHAIR LANI ER  Thank you, M. Evans.

17 And | want to call the question, but | want
18 | to nmake sure that we know we bring this back according
19| to -- not according to, but | agree with M. MCoy in
20| terns of all of these tentacles. | think that for a

21| long tinme, you know, this Board has kind of been in the
22 | dark about all of these streans that could or could not
23 | happen. So bringing that information, by having the

24| Finance Director to lay it out, that is sonething that

25| we definitely need to knowin terns of information to
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1 nove forward.

2 And with that being said, Madam C erk.
3 THE CLERK: Comm ssi oner M Coy.

4 COW SSI ONER Mt COY:  Yes.

S THE CLERK:  Conm ssi oner Botel .

6 COW SSI ONER BOTEL:  Yes.

7 THE CLERK: Comm ssi oner Lawson.

8 COW SSI ONER LAWSON:  Yes.

9 THE CLERK: Co-Chair M| er-Anderson.
10 VI CE CHAI R M LLER- ANDERSON:  Yes.

11 THE CLERK: Chair Lanier.

12 CHAI R LANI ER  Yes.

13 THE CLERK: Motion carries.

14 CHAIR LANIER  Very good. That is the end of

15| our agenda. Any comments, M. Evans?

16 EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR JONATHAN EVANS: Yes,

17| Madam Chair.

18 We had an opportunity to host the Governor
19| fromthe U S Virgin Islands, as well as the Senate
20 | President and other Senators that were in the Riviera
21 | Beach Marina, telling them about sone of the great

22 | things that we have goi ng on.

23 | do want to say, unfortunately,

24 | Council person Lawson, the Mayor and | have taken the

25| liberty to take one for the teamto be the first ones
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to go visit themin the U S Virgin Islands, and then
t he next del egation we can definitely send.

But nonet hel ess, they're excited about a
relationship with the Gty of R viera Beach. And we
did proffer the opportunity to work wwth themin a
sister city relationship, and the Mayor did present the
Governor wth a key to the Gty of Riviera Beach.

And so they were very appreciative of the
hospitality and had an opportunity to take a brief tour
of the fulfillnment center that is on 13th and President
(bama, fromthe conpany that we are not supposed to
name, that wll be operating here in the Gty of
Ri viera Beach, as the U S. Virgin Islands is getting
the sane type of facility.

So they did take a tour of the facility down
in Mam. And this facility here in Riviera Beach is
going to be a unique facility that is going to provide
basically expedited service, that you can conceivably
order sonething that day and get it later on in the
afternoon. And roughly right now, it's about 200 jobs,
and the mnimum starting wage i s $15 per hour.

| f any of the Board nenbers are interested in
taking a peek into the building as it nakes progress,
we do have sone contact information fromthe

construction manager that's running the project, as
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1| well as a representative fromthat conpany that is on
2| site as they do sone of the build-out.

3 So we were definitely enthusiastic about the
4| opportunity to work with the Port, Tropical Shipping,
5| and we are excited about the relationship that we're

6| going to have with the U S. Virgin Islands.

7 And t hat concludes ny comments.

8 COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: Madam Chai r.

9 CHAIR LANIER:  Yes, go ahead.

10 COWMM SSI ONER BOTEL: | do think that it ought
11| to be the decision of this august body as to the

12 | conposition of that del egation. However, | know --

13 CHAIR LANIER: The conposition of that

14 | del egation, of course. There are no wonen.

15 COW SSI ONER BOTEL: Yes, what happened to
16 | the --
17 CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good. Comments from our

18 | attorney.
19 MR SMTH:. | just look forward to being of
20| service to the Gty. And thank you for your kind

21 | consi deration.

22 CHAI R LANI ER:  Thank you, sir.
23 Mayor ?

24 MAYOR FELDER: No comments.

25 CHAIR LANIER: M. Lawson.
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1 COW SSI ONER LAWSON: Thank you, Madam Chair.
2 And first and forenost, | just wanted to

3| welcone our new attorney to the team W are excited
41 to nove forward. Thank you so nuch for actually com ng
5| to work with the Gty.

6 For residents that didn't get to hear

7| earlier, we're going to be hosting a Congress Corridor
8| Community Town Hall. D strict 5 wll be hosting a

9| series of town halls starting on August 5th. It wll
10| be at 6:30, with a tour of the library. W're going to
11| be | ooking at addressing public safety, youth

12 | enpower ment prograns, Fire Station 88, Parks naster

13| plan, and al so having a condensed version of the

14| Reimagi ne Riviera Beach. That's going to be hosted by
15| M. Gty Manager, Jonathan Evans.

16 So please, residents, if you' re avail abl e,

17| please cone out to the library next Thursday at 6:30

18| p.m This is going to be focused on the Congress

19 | corridor, but what we will do is be hosting different
20 | foruns throughout the community over the next two

21| nonths, two to three nonths, so that we can really just
22 | take our ideas, discussions and concerns fromthe

23 | residents into the communities to have them answer any
24 | questions or concerns they may have with staff there.

25 So col | eagues, again, you're wel cone.
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Pl ease, | would love for you to attend so that our
residents can get directly to our staff and to their
el ected officials.

Thank you so nuch, Madam Chair.

CHAI R LANI ER  Thank you, sir; thank you,

Sir

Counci | woman Bot el .

COWM SSI ONER BOTEL: | made ny comments at
the earlier neeting. |1'll pass.

CHAI R LANI ER:  Very good.

Pro tem

VICE CHAIR M LLER- ANDERSON: | just wanted to
repeat ny announcenent fromearlier. The nedical
det ox, potential nedical detox center that may be
com ng by 14th and Broadway, they'l|l have a community
neeting for those that live in the area. The neeting
w Il be on Tuesday, August 3rd at 5:30 p.m at J.AY.'s
Mnistries, 2831 Avenue S. W do -- or the man that is
runni ng the center definitely understands that the
community wants to be involved, so please nake sure you
cone out on August 3rd at 5:30.

CHAIR LANI ER  Thank you. W are adjourned.

(Wher eupon, at 9:37 p.m, the proceedi ngs

wer e concl uded.)
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1 CERTI FI CATE

4 | THE STATE OF FLORI DA g
5 | COUNTY OF PALM BEACH )

6

7

8 |, Susan S. Kruger, do hereby certify that
91 | was authorized to and did report the foregoing

10 | proceedings at the tinme herein stated, and that the

11| foregoi ng pages conprise a true and correct

12 | transcription of nmy stenotype notes taken during the
13 | proceedi ngs.

14 The certification of this transcript does

15| not apply to any reproduction of the sanme by any neans
16 | unl ess under the control and/or direction of the

17| certifying reporter.

18 | N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny

19| hand this 9th day of August, 2021.
20

21
22

23

Susan S. Kruger
24

25
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1| ADJOURNVMENT
2 The CRA Regul ar Board Meeting was
3| adjourned at 9:37 p.m The m nutes were approved by

41 the Board of Conm ssioners on

Shirley Lanier, Chairperson

0 Jonat han Evans, Gty Manager

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25
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Independent Auditor’s Report



HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
The Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
Riviera Beach, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, and each major fund of the Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the Agency),
a component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

West Palm Beach Miami Hollywood
Phone (561) 655-2664 Phone (305) 331-8768 Phone (954) 966-4435
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund
of the Agency as of September 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3—8 and 32—33 respectively be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2021,
on our consideration of the Agency, a component unit of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency, a
component unit of the City’s, internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

Hollywood, Florida
June 24, 2021
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (Agency) Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) is intended to provide the readers of the Agency’s financial statements with a general overview of the
financial activities during Fiscal Year 2020. This report and related financial statements include the consolidated
financial position and result of activities of the Riviera Beach CDE, Inc. (RBCDE), which is a controlled entity of
the Agency. Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The information in this section should
be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes.

HIGHLIGHTS
Financial Highlights

e As of fiscal year end 2020, the Agency’s total net position increased by $2.253 million, or 28.88%, which is a
slight increase from the prior year’s deficit of $8.025 million.

e For FY 2020, total revenues increased slighted by $0.307 million or 3.33%, over those reported in the prior
year. This is due mainly to an increase in taxes and interest.

e For FY 2020, total expenses decreased by $1.147 million, or 13.63%, over those reported in the prior year. This
is due mainly to an increase in operating expenses and interest costs.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Agency’s basic financial statements provide information on both the Agency as a whole (government-wide)
and the major individual funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the Agency’s finances, in
a similar manner to a private-sector business. The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting.

The government-wide financial statements include:

Statement of Net Position — This statement presents information on the Agency’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. This statement format combines and consolidates the
governmental funds’ current financial resources with capital assets and long-term obligations.

Statement of Activities — This statement presents information showing how the Agency’s net position changed
during the fiscal year. All changes in revenues are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements present functions of the Agency that are principally supported by
tax increment financing (governmental activities). The governmental activities of the Agency include general
government activities and redevelopment projects.



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide readers with an overview of each fund and its related function in a traditional
format. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that maintain control over resources that are segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The Agency uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate legal compliance
with financial related legal requirements. The General Fund is the only governmental fund that is used to account
for the operating activities of the Agency. The General Fund also includes the activities of the redevelopment
programs which are funded by restricted debt proceeds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources and
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than government-wide financial statements and, therefore, useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds are reconciled
to the government-wide statements to facilitate the comparison between the two presentations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to the full
understanding of the information presented in the government-wide and the fund financial statements and is
required by generally accepted accounting principles.
Required Supplementary Information
In addition to the basis financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplementary information concerning the Agency’s budget to actual results for the General Fund. The Agency
adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net position may serve as a useful indicator over time of the Agency’s financial position. Assets and deferred
outflows of resources were less than liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $5.548 million as of September

30, 2020, an increase of $2.253 million, or 28.88%, over last fiscal year. The following is a condensed version of
the Statement of Net Position presented in the basic financial statements section.

The remainder of this page was left blank intentionally.



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets $28,286,968  $23,035,223 $5,894,722  $5,780,020 $34,181,690 $28,815,243
Capital assets 7,754,006 8,574,731 7,994,645 8,320,227 15,748,651 16,894,958
Total assets 36,040,974 31,609,954 13,889,367 14,100,247 49,930,341 45,710,201
Deferred outflows of resources 433,400 128,683 - - 433,400 128,683
Current and other liabilities 2,411,797 4,397,742 23,728 138,753 2,435,525 4,536,495
Long-term liabilities 39,666,356 35,319,652 13,755,312 13,737,499 53,421,668 49,057,151
Total liabilities 42,078,153 39,717,394 13,779,040 13,876,252 55,857,193 53,593,646
Deferred inflows of resources 54,887 47,030 - - 54,887 47,030
Net investment in capital assets 1,424,748 1,814,943 - - 1,424,748 1,814,943
Restricted 6,329,258 8,128,833 8,332 8,331 6,337,590 8,137,164
Unrestricted (13,412,672)  (17,969,563) 101,995 215,664 (13,310,677)  17,753,899)
Total net position $(5,658,666)  $(8,025,787) $110,327 $ 223,995 ($5,548,339)  (7,801,792)

The Statement of Activities that follows shows changes in the Agency’s net position for fiscal years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019. Changes in the net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

e For FY 2020, total revenues increased slighted by $0.307 million or 3.33%, over those reported in the prior
year. This is due mainly to an increase in taxes and interest.

e For FY 2020, total expenses decreased by $1.147 million, or 13.63%, over those reported in the prior year. This
is due mainly to an increase in operating expenses and interest costs.

The remainder of this page was left blank intentionally.



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The following is the Statement of Activities presented in the basic financial statements section.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 50,000 $ 422,304 $ 323,904 $ 318,288 $ 373,904 $ 740,592
General revenues:
Taxes 8,717,479 8,378,475 - - 8,717,479 8,378,475
Other revenues 341,267 23,720 84,928 67,683 426,195 91,403
Total revenues 9,108,746 8,824,499 408,832 385,971 9,517,578 9,210,470
Expenses:
General government 3,048,739 2,571,614 - - 3,048,739 2,571,614
Redevelopment program 2,800,814 4,206,078 - - 2,800,814 4,206,078
RB CDE - - 522,500 559,941 522,500 559,941
Interest and debt costs 892,072 1,073,191 - - 892,072 1,073,191
Total expenses 6,741,625 7,850,883 522,500 559,941 7,264,125 8,410,824
Change in net position 2,367,121 973,616 (113,668) (173,970) 2,253,453 799,646
Net position - beginning (8,025,787) (8,999,403) 223,995 397,965 (7,801,792) (8,601,436)
Net position - ending ($5,658,666) $(8,025,787) $110,327 $ 223,995 ($5,548,339) $(7,801,792)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The focus of the Agency’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Agency’s financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The Agency’s governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of
$17.755 million in comparison to the prior year’s ending fund balance of $10.892 million. This increase is due mainly
from unspent bond proceeds.

BUDGETARY ANALYSIS FOR THE GENERAL FUND

For FY 2020, the original budget was not amended during the fiscal year. The General Fund’s budget for FY 2020
was $9.148 million. Actual revenues fell short of the budgeted revenues by $0.039 million due mainly to a reduction
in rents and leases. Actual expenditures were below the budgeted amount by $4.461 million due mainly to a reduction
of real estate and redevelopment program and capital outlay expenditures.



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

ANALYSIS OF CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2020, the Agency’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) amounted
to $15.749 million, a reduction of $1.146 million over the prior fiscal year. Capital assets include land, buildings,

improvements, furniture, and equipment.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land $5,913,241 $ 3,913,365 $ - $ - $5,913,241 $3,913,365
Buildings and improvements 2,464,261 5,489,868 8,875,700 8,875,701 11,339,961 14,365,569
Furniture and equipment 348,782 327,159 518,451 518,451 867,233 845,610
Total capital assets 8,726,284 9,730,392 9,394,151 9,394,152 18,120,435 19,124,544
Accumulated deprecation (972,278) (1,155,660) (1,399,506) 1,073,925) (2,371,784) (2,229,585)
Total capital assets, net $ 7,754,006 $ 8,574,732 $ 7,994,645 $ 8,320,227 $ 15,748,651 $ 16,894,959

Long-term Debt

As of September 30, 2020, total long-term debt amounted to $55.409 million, which represents an increase of $5.292
million or 10.56%. During FY 2020, Series 2011, 2013A, 2013B, and 2018 were refunded and Series 2020A and

2020B were issued.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Series 2006 $1,823,621 $2,374,543 $ - $ - $1,823,621 $2,374,543
Series 2011 - 7,850,000 - - - 7,850,000
Series 2013A - 2,190,000 - - - 2,190,000
Series 2013B - 4,970,000 - - - 4,970,000
Series 2018 - 8,807,000 - - - 8,807,000
Series 2020A 13,297,000 - - - 13,297,000 -
Series 2020B 16,338,000 - - - 16,338,000 -
Advance from City 10,194,621 10,194,621 - - 10,194,621 10,194,621
Recoverable grant - - 7,298,000 7,298,000 7,298,000 7,298,000
Loans payable, net - - 6,457,312 6,430,766 6,457,312 6,430,766
Total long-term liabilities $41,653,242 $36,386,164 $13,755,312 $13,728,766 $55,408,554 $50,116,949




RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The Agency’s budget for FY 2021 includes an increase in tax increment revenues of 6.11%% due to an increase in
real estate values. Focus will continue to be placed on redevelopment projects, which include promoting development
of the Broadway Corridor, provision of parking to facilitate and promote new growth in the City, expansion of the
neighborhood programs that will enhance the quality of life of the community, improving residential property values,
and to provide residents with improved neighborhoods. The Agency will continue to focus on developing and
implementing the second phase of the private development opportunities within the Marina Village and encourage real
estate development and related new jobs and business opportunities within the CRA District.

The Agency primarily relies on tax increment financing from property taxes to assist with the operations of the Agency
and its subsidiaries. For FY 2021, total budgeted expenditures are $13.807 million. The following table shows the
composition of the expenditures:

Core operations $ 3,906,366
Development programs and projects 5,537,369
Capital projects 289,000
Debt service payments 4,073,244

Total expenditures $ 13,806,979

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s finances. Questions concerning this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Riviera Beach Community
Redevelopment Agency, 2001 Broadway, Suite 300, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Receivables, net
Deposits held with others
Internal balances
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Loans receivable
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows for FRS Pension
Total deferred inflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits and other liabilities
Bonds and notes payable
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Recoverable grant
Advance from City of Riviera Beach
Compensated absences
Net FRS pension liability
Bonds and notes payable
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows for FRS Pension
Deferred inflows for deferred rents
Total deferred inflows of resources

Primary Government Total
Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government

$14,462,187 $104,419 $14,566,606
6,329,258 1,148,439 7,477,697
- 17,060 17,060
60,927 - 60,927
136,596 (136,596) -
20,988,968 1,133,322 22,122,290
7,298,000 4,761,400 12,059,400
5,913,241 - 5,913,241
1,840,765 7,994,645 9,835,410
15,052,006 12,756,045 27,808,051
36,040,974 13,889,367 49,930,341
433,400 - 433,400
433,400 - 433,400
195,735 23,728 219,463
50,968 - 50,968
3,094 - 3,094
2,162,000 - 2,162,000
2,411,797 23,728 2,435,525
- 7,298,000 7,298,000
10,194,621 - 10,194,621
197,328 - 197,328
1,801,407 - 1,801,407
27,473,000 6,457,312 33,930,312
39,666,356 13,755,312 53,421,668
42,078,153 13,779,040 55,857,193
23,495 - 23,495
31,392 - 31,392
54,887 - 54,887




RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A Component Unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,424,748 - 1,424,748
Restricted 6,329,258 8,332 6,337,590
Unrestricted (13,412,672) 101,995 (13,310,677)
Total net position ($5,658,666) $110,327 ($5,548,339)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Program Revenues

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Grants

Charges and Govern- Business -
Function / program Expenses for . mental type Total
. Contrib- e ..
services . Activities Activities
utions
Governmental activities:
General $3,048,739  $50,000  $ - ($2,998,739) 5 - (52,99%8739)
government
Real estate
and redevelopment 2,800,814 i - (2,800,814) - (2,800,814)
Interest on long
torm debt 892,072 - - (892,072) - (892,072)
Total government 6,741,625 50,000 ; (6,691,625) - (6,691,625)
activities
Business-type activities:
RBCDE 522,500 323,904 - - (198,596) (198,596)
Total business-type 522,500 323,904 ; ; (198,596) (198,596)
activities
Total primary $7,264,125 $373,904 $ - (86,691,625) ($198,596) ($6,890,221)
government
General revenues:
Taxes 8,717,479 - 8,717,479
Interest 9,574 84,928 94,502
Miscellaneous 331,693 - 331,693
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 9,058,746 84,928 9,143,674
Change in net position 2,367,121 (113,668) 2,253,453
Net position — beginning (8,025,787) 223,995 (7,801,792)
Net position — ending ($5,658,666) $110,327 ($5,548,339)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 220

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,462,187
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted 6,329,258
Due from other funds 687,240
Deposits held in escrow 60,927
Investment in joint venture 6,930,000

Total assets 28,469,612
Liabilities
Accounts payable 195,735
Accrued liabilities 50,968
Unearned revenue 31,392
Due to other funds 10,433,534
Other liabilities 3,094

Total liabilities 10,714,723
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 50,421
Assigned to:

Redevelopment 17,704,468

Total fund balances 17,754,889

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 28,469,612

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach,

Florida)

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Fund balances of governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore, are not reported in governmental funds:

Capital assets

Less: accumulated depreciation

8,726,284
(972,278)

Long term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds:

Issuance of refunding bonds

Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences

Net pension liability

(22,135,000)
(7,500,000)

(197,328)
(1,801,407)

Some revenues are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore are deferred in funds.

Certain deferred inflows/outflows related to pension are not reported on
the modified accrual basis of accounting:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

43,340
(23,495)

Net position of governmental activities

§ 17,754,889

7,754,006

(31,633,735)

446,329

19,845

$  (5,658,666)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Revenues
Taxes $ 8,717,479
Charges for services 50,000
Interest 9,574
Miscellaneous 331,693
Total revenues 9,108,746
Expenditures
Current:
General government 3,586,802
Real estate and redevelopment program 2,800,814
Debt service:
Principal retirement 2,495,922
Interest 892,072
Capital outlay:
Capital outlay 80,901
Total expenditures 9,856,511
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (747,765)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of notes 29,635,000
Other financing use - refunded bonds (22,024,098)
Total other financing sources (uses) 7,610,902

Net change in fund balances 6,863,137

Fund balances - beginning 10,891,752
Fund balances - ending $ 17,754,889

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component Unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $ 6,863,137
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the

statement of activities, the costs of those assets are depreciated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 2,099,493
Depreciation expense (149,144)
1,950,349
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. These amounts are the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items:
Payment to escrow agent 22,024,098
Issuance of bonds and notes (29,635,000)
Principal paid on bonds and notes 892,072
(6,718,830)
Some revenues in the statement of activities do not provide current financial (15,638)
resources and therefore not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. ’
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Change in net pension liability 514,983
Change in deferred inflows related to pensions 23,495
Change in deferred outflows related to pensions (304,717)
Change in compensated absences 54,342
288,103
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 2,367,121

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
Riviera Beach
CDE, Inc.
Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 104,419
Cash - restricted 1,148,439
Accounts receivable 17,060
Total current assets 1,269,918
Non-current assets
Loans receivable 4,761,400
Building (net)
Furniture and equipment (net) 85,257
Total non-current assets 12,756,045
Total assets 14,025,963
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 23,728
Due to affiliates 136,596
Total current liabilities 160,324
Non-current liabilities
Recoverable grant 6,930,000
Note payable 368,000
Loans payable, net 6,457,312
Total non-current liabilities 13,755,312
Total liabilities 13,915,636
Net position
With donor restrictions 8,332
Without donor restrictions 101,995
Total net position 110,327
Total liabilities and net position $ 14,025,963

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Riviera Beach

CDE, Inc.

Operating revenues
Rents and leases $ 323,904
Total operating revenues 323,904

Operating expenses
Asset management fees 24,500
Accounting fees 16,875
Bank charges 345
Management service fee 50,000
Loan servicing fee 1,000
Depreciation of capital assets 325,583
Total operating expenses 418,303
Operating income (loss) (94,399)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 84,928
Interest, including amortization (104,197)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (19,269)
Change in net position (113,668)
Net position - beginning 223,995
Net position - ending $ 110,327

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Payments

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid on debt
Net cash (used) in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in real estate
Investment earnings
Net cash (used) in investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of year

Balances - end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by

operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)

by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Riviera Beach
CDE, Inc.

$306,845
1,933

308,778

(240,585)

(240,585)

(68,885)

(68,385)

229,575
84,927

314,502

313,810
939,048

1,252,858

(94,399)

325,583

(17,060)
350,501
(255,847)

$308,778

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
(Agency) is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the basic financial statements. The policies are
considered essential and should, therefore, be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements.

The accompanying basic financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for governments in the United States of America as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the Agency’s significant
accounting policies and reporting practices.

Reporting Entity

The Agency was established by a special act in 1969 of the Florida Legislature under Chapter 163 to develop
and revitalize the blighted areas of the City of Riviera Beach (City). The Agency’s services are rendered wholly
within the boundaries of the City and its activities and transactions are intended to benefit the City by returning
improved property to the City’s tax rolls to enhance the business and cultural environment of the Agency’s area
and to provide employment to its citizens. The Agency was created by the City’s Resolution No 130-84 dated
August 7, 1984.

Community redevelopment agencies (CRA) are a common governmental tool for redevelopment in the State of
Florida and operate on a budget generated by an increase in property taxes within a defined area. Once a CRA
is established, a percentage of the increase in property taxes goes to the CRA. This tax increment is used to
finance the redevelopment projects outlined in the Community Redevelopment Plan. The principal mission of
the Agency is the preservation or enlargement of the community redevelopment area’s tax base from which
taxing authorities receive tax revenues to carry out public initiatives that stimulate the rehabilitation or
redevelopment of the community redevelopment area.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and GASB Statement No. 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units; the Agency is considered a blended
component unit of the City. The Agency is reported in the City’s basic financial statements, as required.
The Board of Commissioners of the Agency is comprised of the members of the City Council.

Riviera Beach CDE, Inc. (RBCDE) — The RBCDE was organized in May 2011, pursuant to the laws of the State
of Florida as a 501(c) (3) non-profit corporation and its primary mission is to provide investment capital to low-
income communities or persons of low-income and to engage in other community development activities for
neighborhood improvement and community and economic development by providing sustainable job
opportunities for low income residents. The RBCDE is certified by the U.S. Department of Treasury, CDFI Fund,
as a Community Development Entity. The RBCDE is governed by a Board of Directors that consists of a
minimum of five directors. At least three directors must be either City or CRA employees and two shall be
residents or business owners of the CRA area and represent low income communities.

The RBCDE is the sole member of the Riviera Beach Event Center, LLC (RBEC) which was formed in
September 2013 pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida as a limited liability company. The RBEC is also
recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as a tax-exempt organization under section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The purpose of the RBCDE is to facilitate the redevelopment and improvement of areas of blight
and deterioration within the municipal limits of the City and to own and operate a community facility open to
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

the public. These entities are part of a combined New Markets Tax Credit financing redevelopment of the Marina
and to provide a community event center for the residents, businesses and visitors of the City.

Separate financial statements are issued for the RBCDE and the RBEC. The statements may be obtained from
the Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency, 2001 Broadway, Suite 300, Riviera Beach, Florida
33404.

Principles of Consolidation - The RBCDE and RBEC are consolidated and all material intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. In accordance with standards prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), the RBCDE evaluated its interests and determined that based on the rights
afforded to it in the agreements, the RBCDE controls the RBEC and both entities have been consolidated in its
statements. The financial statements for the RBCDE and RBEC are included in the Agency’s financial statements
for fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. These
statements present summaries of governmental activities for the Agency. The government-wide financial
statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Assets and liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement
of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in
the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then use unrestricted resources, when needed and as appropriate.

Fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon thereafter, to pay for liabilities
of the current period.

For this purpose, the Agency considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end
of the current fiscal period. Incremental property taxes, interest income, and certain loan repayments are
susceptible to accrual. Other revenues that are generally not measurable until actually received are not accrued.
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures are recorded only when payments are due.

The General Fund is the Agency’s primary operating fund which accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Agency
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $750 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

Capital assets which are purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost and capital
assets which are donated or contributed are recorded at estimated fair value on the date received.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Outlays for capital assets
and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of
the related assets, as applicable. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 40 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent developer deposits held in escrow and cash restricted for capital improvements.
Proceeds of revenue bonds are set aside in accordance with bond covenants or by ordinance are classified as
restricted assets. Restricted long-term assets are not required to be presented on the balance sheets of
governmental funds under the modified accrual basis of accounting; however, certain assets are restricted as to
their use. Such assets include debt proceeds and amounts held for debt service.

Compensated Absences

Regular full-time employees may accumulate, within certain limits, sick leave annually. A liability is accrued
for unused vacation leave at year end. Sick leave is accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the
employee only to the extent that it is probable that the employee will be compensated for the benefits upon
termination or retirement. Compensated absences are accrued when earned in the government-wide and
enterprise fund financial statements. Compensated absences liability is calculated based on the salary rate in
effect at year end. In the government-wide financial statements, compensated absences liability is classified into
two components - amounts due within one year (current portion) and amounts due in more than one year (non-
current portion).

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary
fund type Statement of Net Position. Bonds payable are reported net of bond premiums or discounts and deferred
refunding amounts. Premiums, discounts, and issuance costs are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Deferred amounts on refunding are amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of
the old debt or the life of the new debt using the straight-line method, which does not result in a material
difference from the effective interest method. Costs of issuing bonds and deferred charges on refunding bonds
are capitalized in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs during the current period.
The face amount of the debt is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Debt
issuance costs and debt payments are reported as expenditures.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Fund Balance Policies

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting Governmental Fund Type Definitions, establishes accounting
and financial reporting requirements for governmental funds and criteria for classifying fund balances.
Accordingly, the governmental fund financial statements report fund equity classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Agency is legally bound to honor the specific purposes for
which amounts in fund balance may be spent. Amounts which are restricted to specific purposes either by a)
constraints placed on the use of resources by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation are classified as
fund balances.

Amounts which may be appropriated, modified, or rescinded for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by the Board are classified as committed fund balances. Amounts which are constrained by the intent
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed are classified as assigned fund balances.
Fund balances can only be assigned by the Board. Non-spendable fund balances include amounts which cannot
be spent because they are either a) not in spendable form; or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Fund balances for governmental funds are displayed in the following classifications depicting the relative
strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used. The fund
balance classifications are summarized below:

Non-spendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are a) not in a spendable form; or b) legally or
contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted - Amounts that are restricted for specific purposes by a) constraints imposed by external providers;
or b) imposed by constitutional provisions or through enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the Board.

Assigned - Amounts intended to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Assignments of fund balances are made by management based upon the direction of the Board.

Unassigned - Amounts not restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes.

Committed fund balance is used first, followed by assigned fund balance, and then unassigned fund balance
when expenditures are incurred for the purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications may be used.

The Agency uses restricted amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, unless
there are legal agreements that prohibit doing this, such as grant and loan agreements that require dollar for dollar
spending. The Executive Director has created assigned fund balance for major program expenses associated with
the Marina and the Clean and Safe program.

Net position

Contributions received, if any, are recorded as with or without donor restrictions depending on the existence
and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net
position without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the reporting period in which the support is
recognized. Other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net position with donor restrictions,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
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ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net position with donor restrictions are classified to net position
without donor restrictions and reported on the statement of activities as net assets released from restriction. It is
the RBCDE’s policy to recognize gifts of long-lived assets as unrestricted support in the period in which the
assets are placed in service.

Restatement of net position

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to certain presentation. The
reclassification resulted in certain restatements to the net position for the beginning net position for FY 2019.

Use of Estimates

Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates. Significant estimates used in these
financial statements include allowances for uncollectible accounts.

Budgets

The Agency’s Board adopts a balanced operating budget and appropriates funds for the General Fund on an
annual basis. Appropriations are legally controlled at the object code level and expenditures may not legally
exceed budget appropriations.

Tax Increment Financing

In January of each year, the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser’s Office and the City of Riviera Beach
provide the Agency with an estimated tax increment financing amount. When the final tax roll valuations are
issued, the Property Appraiser’s Office notifies the Agency of the actual payment and the shortage is remitted to
the Agency. If there is an overpayment, a refund is requested from the Agency.

Income Taxes

The RBCDE and RBEC are exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c) (3) of the IRC, except for income
taxes on “unrelated business income," as defined in the IRC. Management believes that all material activities of
the RBCDE and the RBEC are not subject to income taxes. The RBCDE and RBEC are required to file and does
file tax returns with the IRS and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of
the RBCDE do not reflect a provision for income taxes and the RBCDE and RBEC have no other tax positions
which must be considered for disclosure. Income tax returns filed by the RBCDE and RBEC are subject to
examination by the IRS for a period of three years. The first year that the RBCDE was required to file tax returns
with the IRS was 2014.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts in demand and time deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturity dates within three months of the date acquired. Deposits are held in qualified
public depositories (QPD) pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act.
Provisions of the act require that public deposits may only be held at QPD. The Act requires that QPD deposit
with the State Treasurer, eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as determined by the
provisions of the Act. The Treasurer establishes minimum required collateral pledging levels. Collateral must be
deposited with an approved financial institution. Potential losses to public depositors are covered by applicable
deposit insurance, sale of securities pledged as collateral and, if necessary, assessments against other QPD of the
same type as the depository in default.

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Oct 1, 2019 Sep 30, 2020
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $3,913,365 $3,325,607 ($1,325,731) $5,913,241
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,913,365 3,325,607 (1,325,731) 5,913,241
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 5,489,868 - (3,025,607) 2,464,261

Equipment 327,158 21,624 - 348,782
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,817,026 21,624 (3,025,607) 2,813,043
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 854,248 134,727 (332,527) 656,448

Equipment 301,413 14,417 - 315,830
Total accumulated depreciation 1,155,661 149,144 (332,527) 972,278
Governmental activities capital assets, net 8,574,730 3,198,087 (4,018,811) 7,754,006
Business-type activities:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 8,875,700 - - 8,875,700

Equipment 518,451 - - 518,451
Total capital assets being depreciated 9,394,151 - - 9,394,151
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 744,418 221,893 - 966,311

Equipment 329,234 103,960 - 433,194
Total accumulated depreciation 1,073,653 325,853 - 1,399,506
Business-type activities capital assets, net $8,320,498 ($325,853) $ - $7,994,645
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITY

Long-term liability activity for fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 is as follows:

Governmental activities
Community Redevelopment
Project Notes, Series 2006
Redevelopment Revenue
Notes, Series 2011
Redevelopment Revenue
Notes, Series 2013 A
Redevelopment Revenue
Notes, Series 2013B
Redevelopment Revenue
Notes, Series 2018
Redevelopment Revenue
Notes, 2020A
Redevelopment Revenue
Notes, 2020B

Advance from City

Total bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities

Recoverable grant
Loans payable, net
Total business-type activities

Total long-term liabilities

Beginning Ending .

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Am(;):::tY]z:: mn
Oct1, 2019 Sep 30, 2020

$2,374,543 $ - ($550,922) $1,823,621 $578,468
7,850,000 - (7,850,000) - -
2,190,000 - (2,190,000) - -
4,970,000 - (4,970,000) - -
8,807,000 - (8,807,000) - -
- 13,297,000 - 13,297,000 1,413,000
- 16,338,000 - 16,338,000 749,000
10,194,621 - - 10,194,621 674,641
36,386,164 29,635,000 (24,367,922) 41,653,242 3,415,109
142,986 54,342 - 197,328 -
1,286,424 514,983 - 1,801,407 -
37,815,574 30,204,325 (24,367,922) 43,651,977 3,415,109
7,298,000 - - 7,298,000 -
6,439,499 17,813 - 6,457,312 -
13,737,499 17,813 - 13,755,312 -
$51,553,073 $30,222,138 ($24,367,922) $57,407,289 $3,415,109

Community Redevelopment Projects Note, Series 2006

The Agency issued two series of bond anticipation notes to finance the development and implementation of
capital projects included in the Community Redevelopment Plan. The Series 2002A note, in the amount of
$5,010,000, was issued in March 2002. The Series 2003A note, in the amount of $2,000,000, was issued in
August 2003. Series 2002A and Series 2003 A notes were retired in full on July 5, 2006. In July 2006, the City
issued the Community Redevelopment Projects Note, Series 2006 in the amount $7,175,876 to repay the Series
2002A and Series 2003 A notes. The Series 2006 note was issued by the City; however, the proceeds were used
to refinance the Agency’s debt and the Agency makes the debt service payments. The Series 2006 note bears an
interest rate of 4.19% per annum. Principal and interest payments are secured by a pledge of tax incremental
financing to the City, which in turn has subordinated its interest to BB&T Bank and the Series 2011 note.
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Future debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 578,468 $ 64,291 $ 642,759

2022 607,392 39,447 646,839

2023 637,761 13,361 651,122

Total $ 1,823,621 $ 117,099 $ 1,940,720

Redevelopment Revenue Notes, Series 2011

In 2011, the CRA issued Redevelopment Revenue Notes, Series 2011 in the amount of $25,570,000 to acquire, construct
and equip certain capital improvements according to the Community Redevelopment Plan. The notes bear a fixed interest
rate of 4.44% per annum and paid semi-annually each February 1 and August 1. The notes are secured by a pledge of and
first lien on the CRA’s tax increment revenues.  These notes were refunded in August 2020.

Redevelopment Notes, Series 20134 & 2013B

In August 2013, the CRA repaid $7,855,000 of the Series 2011 Notes by refinancing the debt and issuing two new tax-
exempt notes: Series 2013A in the amount of $3,550,000 and 2013B in the amount of $8,000,000 were used to pay down
the original debt and for the purposes as stated above. Series 2013 A Notes bear interest at 3.01% per annum and will mature
on August 1, 2025. Series 2013B Notes bear interest at 4.50% per annum. Series 2013A and 2013B Notes are secured by a
pledge of and first lien on the CRA’s tax increment revenues. These notes were refunded in August 2020.

Redevelopment Revenue Notes, Series 2018

In November 2018, the CRA issued Redevelopment Revenue Note, Series 2018 notes in the amount of $8,807,000 to fund
various community redevelopment projects with the Riviera Beach CRA including the acquisition and renovation of certain
property within the CRA, marina infrastructure, street improvements, and affordable housing projects to include grants to
low income homeowners, rehabilitation and improvement of existing properties, and infrastructure improvements and other
projects. These notes were refunded in August 2020.

Redevelopment Refunding Revenue Note, Series 20204
In August 2020, the CRA issued Redevelopment Refunding Revenue Note, Series 20204 in the amount of $13,297,000 in
order to refinance its outstanding Redevelopment Revenue Note, Series 2013A and a portion of its outstanding

Redevelopment Revenue Note, Series 2018.

Future debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 1,413,000 $§ 223,962 $ 1,636,962

2022 1,437,000 215,100 1,652,100

2023 1,956,000 189,091 2,145,091

2024 1,997,000 153,687 2,150,687

2025 2,040,000 117,541 2,157,541

2026-2030 2,709,000 306,741 3,015,741
2031-2033 1,745,000 63,549 1,808,549

$ 13,297,000 $ 1,269,671 $ 14,566,671
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Taxable Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement Revenue Note, Series 20208

In August 2020, the CRA issued Taxable Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2020B in the
amount of $16,338,000 to refinance the outstanding Redevelopment Taxable Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2013B and
a portion of its outstanding Redevelopment Revenue Notes, Series 2018 and to fund various community redevelopment
projects within the Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment area including the acquisition and renovation of certain
property within the CRA, marina infrastructure, street improvements, affordable housing projects, and qualified grants and
such other projects as may be approved by the CRA from time to time in accordance with the redevelopment plan.

Future debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 749,000 $ 364,882 $ 1,113,882
2022 749,000 374,136 1,123,136
2023 934,000 356,160 1,290,160
2024 955,000 333,744 1,288,744
2025 970,000 310,824 1,280,824
2026-2030 7,219,000 1,099,440 8,318,440
2031-2033 4,762,000 230,376 4,992,376
$ 16,338,000 $ 3,069,562 $ 19,407,562
Loans payable

Riviera Beach Event Center — NDC Loan A

The Riviera Beach Event Center, LLC (RBEC), a subsidiary of the RBCDE, executed a loan payable with NDC
New Markets Investments LXXXIV, LLC (Lender) on July 8, 2014 in the amount of $4,761,400. The loan bears
an interest rate of 1.00% per annum. The loan is secured by a mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security
agreement, and a performance and completion guaranty from the RBEC. Commencing October 5, 2014, quarterly
payments of interest only are due through January 5, 2023. Commencing April 5, 2023, monthly payments of
principal and interest shall be due based on a 333-month amortization period through maturity on October 1, 2050,
at which time all outstanding principal and any accrued interest shall be due. The following is a summary of
principal maturities for each of the ensuing years through maturity:

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2021 $ - $§ 48,275 $ 48,275

2022 - 48,275 48,275

2023 111,988 47,990 159,978

2024 150,384 46,697 197,081

2025 152,043 45,038 197,081

2026-2050 4,346,985 580,029 4,927,014

Total $ 4,761,400 $ 816,304 $ 5,577,704
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Riviera Beach Event Center — NDC Loan B

RBEC executed a loan payable with the Lender on July 8, 2014 in the amount of $2,028,600. The loan bears an
interest rate of 1.00% per annum. The loan is secured by a mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, security
agreement, and a performance and completion guaranty from the RBEC. Commencing October 5, 2014, quarterly
payments of interest only are due through January 5, 2023. Commencing April 5, 2023, monthly payments of
principal and interest shall be due based on a 333-monthly amortization period through maturity on October 1,
2050, at which time all outstanding principal and any accrued interest shall be due.

The following is a summary of principal maturities for each of the ensuing years through maturity:

S‘i ;izlﬁsg;ggo Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 105,000 $ 20,442 $ 125,442
2022 - 19,503 19,503
2023 45,244 19,388 64,632
2024 60,756 18,865 79,621

2025-2050 61,426 18,195 79,621
Total $ 1,756,174 $ 234,335 $ 1,990,509

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization totaled $332,678 as of September 30, 2020. Amortization
of debt issuance costs on the above loans payable is being amortized under the effective interest method using an
imputed interest rate of 1.31%.

NOTE 5 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The CRA leases commercial office space for its operations. During the fiscal year, the CRA made payments of
$112,265 pursuant to the lease agreements. The term of the lease was further extended through September 30,
2021 with a one year tenant option with a three percent increase in the rental rate of the term September 2020
through September 30, 2021. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Year ending

September 30 Total
2021 $ 115,633
Total $ 115,633

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Effective June 1, 2015, those Agency’s employees who were eligible to participate in the Florida Retirement
System (FRS) became participants in FRS jointly with the City. As provided by Florida Statutes, Chapters
112 and 121, the FRS provides two cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefits plans administered by
the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

As a general rule, membership in the FRS is compulsory for all employees in regularly established positions
for a state agency, county government, or a participating city or special district within the State of Florida.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Enrolled members of FRS, other than DROP participants, are required to contribute 3% of their salary to FRS
and no contribution is required for HIS members. In addition to member contributions, governmental employers
are required to make contributions to the FRS based on state-wide contribution rates established by the Florida
Legislature. These rates are updated as of July 1 of each year.

Employer contribution rates by job class for the period from October 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 and July 1, 2020
to September 30, 2020, respectively, were as follows: Regular — 8.47% and 10.00%, Special Risk — 25.48% and
24.45%, Elected Officers — 56.03% and 58.91%, Senior Management — 25.41% and 27.29%, and FRS DROP
participants — 14.60% and 16.98%. Employer contribution rates include 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy for the period
October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020. The CRA’s contributions to FRS and HIS for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2020, was $148,461 which was equal to 100% of the required contributions for the year.

Certain employees who met specific criteria had the option to continue with the existing plan, a defined
contribution 401 (a) plan, managed by Nationwide Insurance. Seven qualified employees opted to continue with
this plan. Contributions to this plan are immediately 100% vested. Employees are not allowed to contribute
additional funds. The Agency makes contributions to the Nationwide 401(a) plan in the amount of 6% of the
participant’s qualified compensation.

For additional disclosures related to the Agency’s participation in FRS, please refer to Note 13 of the City’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
2006 Note

In July 2006, the City issued the Community Redevelopment Projects Note, Series 2006, in the amount of
$7,175,876 to refund the Community Redevelopment Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 20024 and Series 2003A.
Through an interlocal agreement, the Agency pledged its tax incremental revenues to the City for the payment
of the amounts due by the City pursuant to the Series 2006 Note.

Ocean Mall Redevelopment (OMRD) Loan

The Ocean Mall, a retail property, and the Municipal Beach are owned by the City. The properties are located
within the Agency’s boundaries. In October 2009, the City loaned $10,194,621 to the Agency and in turn, the
Agency provided a grant to Ocean Mall Redevelopment, LLC (OMRD) to make required infrastructure, parking
and beach improvements. On behalf of the Agency, the City advanced the loan proceeds to OMRD based on
draw requests from OMRD for construction of the improvements based on inspection and approval of the
requests by the City.

In April 2011, the City agreed to modify the loan agreement by offering more flexible terms to the Agency. The
loan agreement was further modified in February 2016, in order to enhance the Agency’s cash flow to meet
ongoing operational needs. The Agency’s Board approved the Second Modification to the Loan Agreement.
The terms of the Second Modification reduced the interest rate to zero percent for the remainder of the term of
the loan and the Agency will pay the City fifteen equal installments of $679,641 each October 1st, commencing
October 1, 2023 until the loan is paid in full.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

RBCDE Recoverable grant

The RBCDE entered into a services agreement with the Agency to manage its books, records, and operations.
As a consequence, the Agency has a controlling influence over the day-to-day management and operations of
the RBCDE. Additionally, the Agency's Executive Director was named as the uncompensated non-member
manager of the RBEC.

The RBCDE entered into a recoverable grant agreement with the Agency on December 1, 2013. Funding up to
$8,928,728, payable in installments, was granted to provide funding for the construction of the Event Center.
The grant proceeds are reflected in recoverable grants in the financial statements. Repayment of the grant
proceeds is due upon repayment of loan receivable principal payments, unless otherwise canceled in accordance
with the grant agreement. As of September 30, 2020, the RBCDE received advanced grant proceeds of
$6,930,000.

RBCDE Note payable

During 2013, the Agency over funded the recoverable grant by $368,000. The amount over funded is to be repaid
by the RBCDE out of available cash flow. As of September 30, 2020, the amount remained payable as there was
no available cash flow for repayment.

RBCDE Management services fee

The Agency entered into a services agreement with the RBCDE to manage its books, records, and operations
and for other management services as required. An annual management services fee of $50,000 is due October
31st of each year for services provided during the prior year. For the year ended September 30, 2020, a fee of
$50,000 was incurred.

RBEC Facility lease

The RBEC entered into a facility lease agreement to lease the Event Center to the Agency so that the Agency
could vest control of the operations of the Event Center and to allow the RBEC sufficient funds to service loans
from NDC New Markets Investments LXXXIV, LLC. The Agency took possession of the Event Center upon
substantial completion of the Event Center and receipt of a certificate of occupancy, which occurred April 26,
2016. The lease agreement will terminate on September 30, 2050. Annual rent of $299,349, under triple net lease
terms, shall be increased annually by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, and is due quarterly
in arrears.

RBEC Ground lease
On July 2, 2014, the RBEC entered into an agreement with the City to lease land containing real property of

approximately 36,488 square feet in order to construct and operate a mixed use community center. The term of
the lease is fifty years. The annual rent is $1 for the lease term and was prepaid by the RBCDE.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 8 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Agency purchases insurance through
the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust. There have been no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage during
the fiscal year.

NOTE 9-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Agency has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2021, the date that the financial statements were
issued.

Ocean Mall Redevelopment (OMRD) loan

In October 2020, the City and the CRA agreed to a third modification to the Loan Agreement between the City
and CRA to change the date of the previously agreed to repayment schedule to begin payments in the CRA’s FY
2021 buget year. The CRA shall pay fifteen equal annual installments of $674,641.40 each January 1%,
commencing January 1, 2021 until the loan is paid in full.
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Revenues
Taxes

Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Economic environment
Total current
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Total debt service
Capital outlay:
Capital outlay
Total capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of notes

Other financing use - refunded bonds

Carryover
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
Variance
. . . with Final
(]);;:ﬁnzl BF:(lil a(la ¢ Actual Budget
g 8 Positive

(Negative)
$ 8,727,676 $ 8,727,676 $ 8,717,479 $ (10,197)
- - 50,000 50,000
- - 9,574 9,574
420,000 420,000 331,693 (88,307)
9,147,676 9,147,676 9,108,746 (38,930)
7,812,076 7,812,076 6,387,615 1,424,461
7,812,076 7,812,076 6,387,615 1,424,461
2,495,922 2,495,922 2,495,922 -
1,058,085 1,058,085 892,072 166,013
3,554,007 3,554,007 3,387,994 166,013
2,990,322 2,990,322 80,901 2,909,421
2,990,322 2,990,322 80,901 2,909,421
14,356,405 14,356,405 9,856,510 4,499,895
(5,208,729) (5,208,729) (747,764) 4,460,965
- - 29,635,000 29,635,000
- - (22,024,098) (22,024,098)
5,208,729 5,208,729 - (5,208,729)
2,228,172 2,228,172 11,037,426 8,809,254
(2,228,172) (2,228,172) (11,037,426) (8,809,254)
5,208,729 5,208,729 7,610,902 2,402,173
- - 6,863,138 6,863,138
10,891,752 10,891,752 10,891,752 -
$ 10,891,752 $10,891,752 $17,754,890 $ 6,863,138
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(A component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida)
NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL — GENERAL FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

NOTE 1 -BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Agency prepares its budget for the General Fund on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. The procedures for establishing budgetary data reflected on the budgetary comparison schedule are as
follows:

e Approximately July 1, the Executive Director submits to the Agency Board a proposed operating budget
prepared for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

e Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
e Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a resolution.

e Appropriations are legally controlled at the fund level and expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted
appropriations.

e For the year ended September 30, 2020, expenditures did not exceed appropriations. Budgetary appropriations
for capital outlay were higher than actual expenditures.
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HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund information of the Riviera Beach
Community Redevelopment Agency (the ‘Agency’), a component unit of the City of Riviera Beach,
Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

West Palm Beach Miami Hollywood
Phone (561) 655-2664 Phone (305) 331-8768 Phone (954) 966-4435
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

HCT Certified Public Accountants < Consultants, LLC

Hollywood, Florida
June 24, 2021
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IL.

III.

City of Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
. Material weakness(es) identified? ___yes ~X no

. Significant Deficiency(s)? ___yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no

Prior Year Findings

2019-001 Reporting - SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Condition: HCT noted that the audit report had not been filed with the Florida Department of Financial
Services for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 timely.

Recommendation: We recommend that the CRA reviews the financial reporting processes and make
necessary changes to facilitate timely preparation of financial reports.

Current Year Status: Fully implemented.
Financial Statement Findings

None
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HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 218.415,
FLORIDA STATUTES, LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POLICIES

To the Board of Directors
The Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
Riviera Beach, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the
“Agency”), a component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2021.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida
Auditor General.

Other Reports and Schedule

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs; the Independent
Accountant’s Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards,
AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General, and the management letter in accordance with the rules of the Auditor General of the
State of Florida. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated June 24, 2021, should be
considered in conjunction with this report.

Local Government Investment Policies

We have examined the Agency’s compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes,
Local Government Investment Policies, during the year ended September 30, 2020. Management is
responsible for Agency’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Agency's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the Agency’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Agency’s compliance
with specified requirements.

West Palm Beach Miami Hollywood
Phone (561) 655-2664 Phone (305) 331-8768 Phone (954) 966-4435
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In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for
the year ended September 30, 2020. This report is intended solely for the information and use of
management and the State of Florida Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

Hollywood, Florida
June 24, 2021
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HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Board of Directors
The Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
Riviera Beach, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Riviera Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the
“Agency”), a component unit of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2021.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standard; and the Independent Accountant’s Report on an examination
conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance
requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those
reports and schedule, which are dated June 24, 2021, should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report.  Corrective actions have been taken to address findings and
recommendations made in the preceding financial audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(1)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Agency’s official
title is disclosed in Note 1 to the Financial Statement. The Agency has no component units.

Financial Condition and Management

Section 10.554(1)(1)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Agency has met
one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the
specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Agency did not meet any
of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

West Palm Beach Miami Hollywood
Phone (561) 655-2664 Phone (305) 331-8768 Phone (954) 966-4435
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Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures for the Agency. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the
Agency’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such recommendations.

Special District Component Units

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate that we communicate the
failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to
provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the
audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section
218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district
component units that failed to provide the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with
Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note ant such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Directors, and applicable
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

HCT Certified Public Accountants & Consultants, LLC

Hollywood, Florida
June 24, 2021
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CITY OF RIVIERABEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: 8/26/2021
Agenda Category:

Subject: MARINA VILLAGE: FOOD TRUCK OPPORTUNITY AT SPANISH COURTS

Recommendation/Motion: APPROVAL

Originating Dept MARINA VILLAGE Costs

User Dept. Funding Source
Advertised No Budget Account Number
Date

Paper

Affected Parties Not Required

Background/Summary:

MARINA VILLAGE: FOOD TRUCK OPPORTUNITY AT SPANISH COURTS

Fiscal Years

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact

NO. Additional FTE Positions
(cumulative)

I1l. Review Comments

A. Finance Department Comments:

B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments:

C. Department Director Review:



Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date

Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount

Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email

Type of Contract

Describe

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name Description

MARINA VILLAGE: FOOD
TRUCK OPPORTUNITY AT
SPANISH COURTS

PRESENTATION-
_FOOD_TRUCK_PROGRAM.pdf

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer
CRA Evans, Scott
CRA Internal Review Evans, Scott

Upload Date

8/19/2021

Action
Approved
Approved

Type

Presentation

Date
8/19/2021 - 7:17 PM
8/19/2021 - 7:17 PM
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Florida's Dynamic
Waterfront Community

Marina Village:
Food Truck Opportunity at Spanish Courts



Spanish Courts Food Truck Program

Phase I: (September — November)

Monthly Food Truck Event: Pilot Program (Sept, Oct, Nov.)
Design and seek approval for 2-year program to locate
additional trucks on-site full-time

Create entrepreneur Incubator program to provide local
business owners with funding assistance.

Purchase some site furniture and lighting for Pilot
Program (and 2 year program)




Spanish Courts Food Truck Program

Phase Il: November - January

 Complete site improvements for water and electric

* Minor site enhancements, furniture and lighting
improvements as approved in 2-year program

 Approval of 2-year program applicants and Business
Incubator Applicants, including approval for continuation
of monthly events.

Phase lll: January 2022 - January 2024
e 2-year program begin
 Monthly events resume




%gram: Thursday Tastes of

Riviera Beach

e Pilot Program would consist of three (3) dates:
— September 16, 2021 5:30pm —7:30pm
— October 21, 2021 5:30pm — 7:30pm
— November 18, 2021 5:30pm — 7:30pm

* There is an open invitation to submit their certificate of
liability insurance and business license for consideration
before the interest meeting, if concept is approved.

— Meeting Date: September 9, 2021 at Riviera Beach Marina
Village Event Center at 4pm.




%gram: Thursday Tastes of

Riviera Beach

e Survey during the event:

— Volunteers will have a five (5) question survey to get
feedback on the pilot series from attendees.

 Marketing:
— CRA and City Social Media, Websites, and Newsletters
— TV18

— Flyers at Riviera Beach Marina, Barracuda Bay, Dan
Callaway, City Hall, and the Library.

— Posted on Facebook Group — Socially Distanced Supper
Club for Riviera Beach

— Eventbrite link — Sign Up for Event
— Local Media Release to various news entities




Florida's Dynamic Waterfront Community



CITY OF RIVIERABEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: 8/26/2021
Agenda Category:

Subject: MARINA VILLAGE CARPET REFRESH PROJECT

Recommendation/Motion: APPROVAL

Originating Dept MARINA VILLAGE Costs

User Dept. Funding Source
Advertised No Budget Account Number
Date

Paper

Affected Parties Not Required

Background/Summary:

STAFF IS PRESENTING THE PROPOSED MARINA VILLAGE EVENT CENTER PHASED
REFRESH PROJECT. OUR FIRST PHASE WAS WORKING TO GET ART PIECES ON THE
WALLS TO CREATE AN ART GALLERY. WE HAVE WORKED WITH ARTIST SHOWCASE OF
THE PALM BEACHES DURING 2021 AND WILL BE PUTTING THIS OUT FOR RFP FOR
ADDITIONAL LOCAL ARTISTS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THIS GALLERY. THE
SECOND PHASE OF THE PROJECT IS TO REPLACE THE CARPET IN THE
BALLROOMS BECAUSE THE EXISTING CARPET CAN NO LONGER BE CLEANED
AND REFRESHED TO REFLECT THE QUALITY AND STANDARDS INTERNAL AND
EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS EXPECT.STAFF WENT THROUGH A PROCESS OF
SOLICITING INPUT FROM VARIOUS STAKEHOLDERS ON TYPE OF FLOORING,
COLOR, AND DESIGN. WE REACHED OUT TO SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE CITY
AND CRAAS WELL AS OUR LOCAL RESIDENTS.

Fiscal Years

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact



NO. Additional FTE Positions
(cumulative)

I1l. Review Comments

A. Finance Department Comments:

B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments:

C. Department Director Review:

Contract Start Date

Contract End Date

Renewal Start Date

Renewal End Date

Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount

Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact

Contractor Address

Contractor Phone Number

Contractor Email

Type of Contract

Describe

ATTACHMENTS:

File Name Description Upload Date Type
MEMO- MEMO- MARINA

VILLAGE CARPET  8/19/2021 Cover Memo
REFRESH

PRESENTATION-
MARINA VILLAGE  8/19/2021 Presentation

_CARPET_REFRESH_FOR_MARINA_VILLAGE_.pdf
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RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

600 W. BLUE HERON BLVD.,
SUITE C-225
RIVIERABEACH, FL 33404
PHONE: 561-844-3408

FAX: 561-881-8043

Florida's Dynamic
Waterfront Community

MEMORANDUM
TO: HONORABLE CHAIR AND CRA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FROM: JONATHAN EVANS, MPA, MBA, ICMA-CM, CRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
COPY: CHRIS SMITH, P.A., CRA ATTORNEY

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2021

SUBJECT: MARINA VILLAGE CARPET REFRESH PROJECT

BACKGROUND

Staff is presenting the proposed Marina Village Event Center Phased Refresh Project. Our first phase was working to
get art pieces on the walls to create an Art Gallery. We have worked with Artist Showcase of the Palm Beaches
during 2021 and will be putting this out for RFP for additional local artists for future development of this gallery.

The second phase of the project is to replace the carpet in the ballrooms because the existing carpet can no longer be
cleaned and refreshed to reflect the quality and standards internal and external customers expect.

Staff went through a process of soliciting input from various stakeholders on type of flooring, color, and design. We
reached out to senior management in the City and CRA as well as our local residents.

FEEDBACK ON POSSIBLE OPTIONS:

We created a survey that went out to the CRA and City senior management --- a total of twenty-two (22) members ---
to vote on the eight potential options that would coordinate with the paint scheme and furnishings, on Wednesday,
April 7, 2021 until Tuesday, April 13, 2021. The top two choices were then emailed to the general public through the
CRA Constant Contact list, which went out to 1,576 residents on April 16, 2021 and closed out on April 30, 2021.
This allowed for resident feedback on the samples. There were 121 residents that completed the survey.

We are bringing resident feedback to you today, so we may get your consensus to move forward with this project. We
also have a display to provide additional visual feedback.

SURVEY RESULTS

Public Survey Results were:

Carpet 1 — Blue and Yellow — 58.9% liked it
Carpet 2 — Tan and Blue — 41.1% liked it
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Carpet #1

Crpet 2

BACKGROUND
We have researched other banquet facilities, talked to several commercial carpet experts, and reviewed the original
carpet selection for the Event Center.

e We propose to replace 6,409 s. f. of carpet

e Marina Village Event Center will be down for a proposed total of ten (10) days for renovations

e The total cost for the project is estimated at $65,000 plus a 15% contingency/overage cost. At the time of
ordering, a fifty percent deposit will need to be given to the company.

e The carpet will be installed in segments, so that Hatcher can be used when Newcomb is down and vice versa.
The process will consist of all materials and labor

e Staff will be trained on proper cleaning and maintenance techniques

e Once the approval of the project is made and an order is placed with the company, it will take seven to ten
weeks to receive the carpet.

e The Riviera Beach Marina Village Event Center would need to be closed for these renovations for
approximately ten days.

BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Refresh of the Event Center Space at the Marina Village will continue to make it a destination of choice for meetings
and premier events.

NEXT STEPS
e We will work with City of Riviera Beach Procurement Department to assist us with a Request for Bid process.
o Staff will bring back an item for approval of the proposed contract.
e The third part of this refresh project will be painting and additional greenery.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff is asking for a consensus choice on the carpet pattern as well as providing support for us to move forward with
our plan of action.
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Florida's Dynamic
Waterfront Community

Marina Village Refresh Project
August 26, 2021



arina Village Refresh Project Phases:

e Phase l:

— Art in the Hallway at the Marina Event Center
2021

* Worked with Artist Showcase to have 4 showcases in
2021

e Phase ll:

— Replace the Carpet in the Ballrooms at the
Marina Event Center 2021

 Phase lll:

— Painting and Greenery Update at the Marina
Village Event Center 2022




arpet Selection Process:

e Survey went out with seven (7) potential options
of carpet to City and CRA senior management

— Survey was open to vote from April 7, 2021 through
April 13, 2021

* Samples were then narrowed down to two (2) options

e Survey went out to general public through CRA
Constant Contact to 1,574 subscribed.

— Survey was open to vote from April 16, 2021 through
April 30, 2021

* 121 subscribed contacts completed the survey.




Potential Carpet Samples:

Sample #1 Sample #2




Potential Carpet Samples:

Sample #1 Sample #2

| Feedbak: eedack:
58.9% favored 41.1% favored




efits and Potential Cost — Phase II:

* Benefits
— The refresh of the Marina Event Center
would help continue to make it a destination
of choice for meetings and premier events.

e Potential Costs

— Cost of Money:
* Estimated $65,000 + 15% Contingency
— Downtime of the Marina Event Center
* Ten (10) to Sixteen (16) days downtime of

ballrooms




Florida's Dynamic Waterfront Community



CITY OF RIVIERABEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: 8/26/2021
Agenda Category:

Subject: BERKELEY LANDING PROJECT UPDATE

Recommendation/Motion: APPROVAL

Originating Dept NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES Costs

User Dept. Funding Source
Advertised No Budget Account Number
Date

Paper

Affected Parties Not Required

Background/Summary:

ON OCTOBER 8, 2020, THE BOARD DEEMED THE WENDOVER/PINNACLE TEAM THE
SUCCESSFUL APPLICANT FOR A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA OF OPPORTUNITY FUNDING
CONTRIBUTION LOAN/GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $640,000, NECESSARY TO APPLY FOR
HOUSING CREDITS IN THE RFA 2020-2021 CYCLE. THE SUBSIDY AWARD IS CONDITIONED
UPON THE AWARD OF TAX CREDITS TO THE WENDOVER/PINNACLE GROUP FOR THE
BERKELEY LANDING PROJECT. ADDITIONALLY, THE SUBSIDY IS TO BE USED FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF RENTAL HOUSING UNITS AFFORDABLE TO RESIDENTS WITH INCOMES
NO MORE THAN 80% OF AREA MEDIAN INCOME AND NOT DISBURSED UNTIL CLOSING OF
THE ENTIRE TRANSACTION. STAFF IS PLEASED TO PRESENT THE FOLLOWING UPDATE.

Fiscal Years

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact

NO. Additional FTE Positions
(cumulative)

I1l. Review Comments



A. Finance Department Comments:

B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments:

C. Department Director Review:

Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date

Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount

Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email

Type of Contract

Describe

ATTACHMENTS:
File Name

MEMO-
_BERKELEY_LANDING_PROJECT UPDATE.pdf

PRESENTATION-

_BERKELEY_LANDING_PROJECT Berkeley_.pdf

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer
CRA Evans, Scott
CRA Internal Review Evans, Scott

Description Upload Date Type
MEMO- BERKELEY

LANDING PROJECT 8/19/2021 Cover Memo
UPDATE

PRESENTATION-

BERKELEY LANDING 8/19/2021 Presentation

PROJECT UPDATE

Date
8/19/2021 - 7:18 PM
8/19/2021 - 7:19 PM

Action
Approved
Approved



RIVIERA BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

600 W. BLUE HERON BLVD
SUITE C-225.

RIVIERA BEACH, FL 33404
PHONE: 561-844-3408

FAX: 561-881-8043

Florida's Dynamic
Waterfront Community

MEMORANDUM
TO: HONORABLE CHAIR AND CRA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FROM: JONATHAN EVANS, MPA, MBA, ICMA-CM, CRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
COPY: CHRIS SMITH, THE PITTMAN LAW GROUP, CRA ATTORNEY

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2021

SUBJECT: BERKELEY LANDING PROJECT UPDATE

SUMMARY

On October 8, 2020, the Board deemed the Wendover/Pinnacle Team the successful applicant for
a Local Government Area of Opportunity Funding Contribution Loan/Grant in the amount of
$640,000, necessary to apply for Housing Credits in the RFA 2020-2021 cycle. The subsidy award
is conditioned upon the award of tax credits to the Wendover/Pinnacle Group for the Berkeley
Landing project. Additionally, the subsidy is to be used for the development of rental housing
units affordable to residents with incomes no more than 80% of area median income and not
disbursed until closing of the entire transaction. Staff is pleased to present the following update.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND

Berkeley Landing is a proposed new development adjacent to the Park Manor neighborhood of
Riviera Beach. The proposed development will add approximately $31+ million in development
value on a property currently assessed at $970,030. The project will generate an estimated
$257,786 of ad valorem tax revenue.

CURRENT STATUS

The Pinnacle Group has been successful is securing an allocation of housing credits. Additionally,

Pinnacle has total site control.

1. Two rounds of review with all city disciplines on the site plan, plat and rezoning a section of
the site to create a unified zoning for the entire development.

2. Presentation to CRA and P & Z on August 26" and City Council for approvals in
September/October.




3. Have begun to apply for horizontal permits such as SFWMD, DEP, traffic concurrency and
codifying the FDOT approval for the driveway connection on US 1.

No ok

(February/March).

Design team to work towards construction document completion.

Commencing local recruitment outreach and efforts for construction on in early October.
Working on selection of equity investor and debt providers for this development.

Targeting a closing and commencement of construction in the middle of the first quarter, 2022

Berkeley Landing will have 112 multi-family rental units, 110 affordable and income-restricted,
and 2 market rate units which they anticipate pairing with the two proposed live/work lofts.
Berkeley Landing will contain 28 one-bedroom units, 62 two-bedroom units, and 22 three-
bedroom units, set aside at varying income levels ranging from 30% to 80% of area median
income. The total proposed development cost is in excess of $31 million.

PROJECTED TIMELINE

Item
Pre-Development

Execution of PSA

Phase | Environmental Received
Submitted application to FHFC
Application Final Ranking Approved
Initiate Building Design Process
Invitation to Credit Underwriting
Pre-app meeting

Alta Survey Received

FDOT Pre-app meeting

Pre-app meeting #2

Geotechnical report

Initiate Full Building Design Process
Land Closing

FDOT: Access/Driveway

Submit for review
FDOT review
FDOT approval

Plat Approval (City of Riviera

Beach)

CRA Board Review/Comment
Planning and Zoning Board Review

Start
Date

09/04/18
10/01/20
10/20/20
12/04/20
01/19/21
02/03/21
02/16/21
03/01/21
03/25/21
04/06/21
04/23/21
06/10/21
06/30/21

03/25/21
03/25/21
07/01/21

08/26/21
08/26/21

End
Date

09/04/18
10/01/20
10/20/20
12/04/20
01/19/21
02/03/21
02/16/21
03/01/21
03/25/21
04/06/21
04/23/21
06/10/21
06/30/21

03/25/21
07/01/21
07/01/21

08/26/21
08/26/21



City Council Review/approval

Site Plan Approval (City of
Riviera Beach

Initial Site Plan Submittal

Site Plan Resubmittal

CRA Comments on Site Plan

P&Z Board Approval - site plan review

1st Reading - zoning conformance,
City Council

2nd Reading, zoning conformance
and site plan approval, City Council

Potable Water Permit
(DEP FORM)

Submit Plans to Health Department
Health Department review #1
Health Department issues comments

Submit revised plan to Health
Department

Health Department review #2
Health Department approval

Waste Water Permit
(DEP FORM)

Submit Plans to Health Department
Health Department Review #1
Health Department issues comments

Submit revised plan to Health
Department

Health Department review #2
Health Department approval

SFWMD: Stormwater ERP

Submit permit plans
SFWMD review #1
Comments issued
Resubmit plans
SFWMD review #2
Approval

10/06/21

04/16/21
08/05/21
08/26/21
08/26/21
09/15/21

10/06/21

10/18/21
10/18/21
11/01/21
11/15/21

11/15/21
11/29/21

10/18/21
10/18/21
11/01/21
11/15/21

11/15/21
11/29/21

09/06/21
09/06/21
10/18/21
11/01/21
11/01/21
12/06/21

10/06/21

04/16/21
08/05/21
08/26/21
08/26/21
09/15/21

10/06/21

10/18/21
11/01/21
11/01/21
11/15/21

11/29/21
11/29/21

10/18/21
11/01/21
11/01/21
11/15/21

11/29/21
11/29/21

09/06/21
10/15/21
10/18/21
11/01/21
12/06/21
12/06/21



Building Permits

Submit for Building Permits (including 11/01/21 01/20/22
civil and all major municipal permits &
resubmittals based on comments)

Permit approved/issued 02/16/22 02/16/22

Construction Documents

Design Development 07/01/21 08/16/21
Client Review & Revision 08/16/21 09/10/21
Construction Documents 09/13/21 10/27/21

Construction, Financing,
Leasing & Conversion

Carryover Agreement Executed 07/01/21 07/01/21
LBE and MBE contractor and 09/01/21 09/30/23
employment recruitment process
Equity and Debt Firm Commitments 10/21/21 10/21/21
Executed
Start Construction Bidding Process 10/27/21 01/31/22
Special Needs MOU 11/15/21 11/15/21
Construction Contract Signed 02/01/22 02/01/22
10% Test Met & Site Control 01/31/22 01/31/22
Closing on Debt and Equity 04/30/22 04/30/22
Issue Notice to Proceed to Contractor 05/15/22 05/15/22
50% Complete Construction 12/31/22 12/31/22
Initiate Pre-Leasing/Property 06/01/23 06/01/23
Management
Substantial Completion (100%) 09/30/23 09/30/23
Lease-Up Complete 06/01/23 12/10/23
Stabilized Operations 01/01/24 04/01/24
Conversion to Permanent Debt 04/01/24 06/01/24
NEXT STEPS

Pinnacle will present the project before Planning and Zoning on August 26, 2021 and hopefully
have this project before the City Council in September.

ACTION REQUIRED AT THIS TIME
No action required at this time. Staff is presenting this project for updates.



Florida's Dynamic
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Berkeley Landing Update Presentation
August 26, 2021






Project Updates

. Two rounds of review with all city disciplines on the site plan, plat and
rezoning a section of the site to create a unified zoning for the entire
development.

. Presentation to CRA and P & Z on August 26™ and City Council for approvals
in September/October.

. Have begun to apply for horizontal permits such as SFWMD, DEP, traffic
concurrency and codifying the FDOT approval for the driveway connection on
usS 1.

. Design team to work towards construction document completion.

. Commencing local recruitment outreach and efforts for construction in early
October.

. Working on selection of equity investor and debt providers for this
development.

. Targeting a closing and commencement of construction in the midd)eset

first quarter, 2022 (February/March).




Urban Planning & Design
s

3100/ 3124 Broadway, Riveria Beach, FL

Site Plan




' Project Updates

» Site located at 3100 & 3124 Broadway, a
currently vacant parcel.

« The developers have closed on the land
and have total site control.

* Proposed: 112 units

 Site Amenities: playground, pool, club
room, public art feature, bus stop, green
spaces T
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